Phoenix Journal #177



By Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn

Table Of Contents

CHAPTER 1	1
THE NEWS DESK by Phyllis Linn 7/4/96	1
INDEPENDENCE DAY AGENDA	1
MILITIA ARRESTS	
PARENTS NOT TOLD OF EXPERIMENTAL VACCINE	2
ACCUSED NAZI DEPORTED	3
PLUTOCRATS CORNER VITAMIN INDUSTRY	3
CLINTON'S "VICTIM AMENDMENT" TO THE CONSTITUTION	4
SANCTIONS AGAINST ENEMIES OF THE NWO	4
DOG SAVES FAMILY	
"ECSTASY" MAY CAUSE LONG-TERM BRAIN DAMAGE	5
COCKROACH LINKED TO ASTHMA	
WHAT ABOUT NETANYAHU?	5
NETANYAHU	
CHAPTER 2	7
COL. FLETCHER PROUTY EXPOSES THE CLANDESTINE SOCIETY'S	
AGENDA FOR WORLD CONTROL by Rick Martin 7/4/96	7
CHAPTER 3	23
A HISTORY OF JUDICIAL CORRUPTION IN AMERICA	
by Ray Bilger 7/5/96	
CHAPTER 4	28
MIDNIGHT FOR AMERICA AS THE BELL TOLLS FOR THEE	
by Colonel (Ret.) James Ammerman	
7/1/96 RICK MARTIN	
CHAPTER 5	
CLINTON— THE END IS NEAR? by Eustace Mullins 7/9/96	
ROOTS OF GOVERNMENT	
FILES OPEN TO ALL AGENCIES	
THE STRANGE CASE OF THE ONE THOUSAND FBI FILES	
FREEH A TOTAL NONENTITY	
RELIVING THE NIXON ERA	
WALL STREET JOURNAL COMMENTARY	
CLINTON'S DEATH SONG	
HILLARY'S FLIGHT	
THE ZIONIST COMMITMENT	
MONEY AND TERRORISM	
THE NESHER CELL	
CHAPTER 6	
THE NEWS DESK by Phyllis Linn 7/12/96	
OLYMPIC MYTHS DEBUNKED	
HEEEEEERE'S REAGAN!	49

HEALTH AND WEALTH-FARE	49
NEW FUEL IS SUGAR-BASED	50
IN THE HOLE	51
CIA HUMAN RIGHTS ABUSES IN SOUTH AMERICA	51
'FILEGATE' LINKED TO FOSTER	52
CRAIG LIVINGSTONE	52
WHAT FILES?	53
VERY PERSONAL	53
WHO HAD ACCESS?	53
CHAPTER 7	55
PLANETARY REBALANCING IMMINENT	
AS RESPONSIBILITIES MUST BE MET 7/14/96 EL MORYA	
CHAPTER 8	58
EXPERT WALTER BOWART ON MIND CONTROL	
SHOCKING TRUTH FROM THE CUTTING EDGE	
by Rick Martin 7/17/96	
CHAPTER 9	95
BANKSTERS' SHENANIGANS THE SORDID STORY OF	
SANTA BARBARA SAVINGS & LOAN by Ray Bilger 7/18/96 PART II	
CHAPTER 10	
THE NEWS DESK by Phyllis Linn 7/19/96	
CLINTON SPIED FOR THE CIA	
ROTHSCHILD HEIR SUICIDES	
COMPUTER TALKS BACK	
"FREAK WEATHER" CAUSES WORLD CHAOS	
JUDGE RULES GESTURE IS NOT ILLEGAL	
HILLARY'S TRIP PROMOTES JEWISH AGENDA	
IN MEMORIAM Mary Backman	
AMAZING CROP CIRCLE PHOTO	
CHAPTER 11	
WATCH CLOSELY AS THE TITANS CLASH 7/20/96 SOLTEC	
CHAPTER 12	
HILARION: OUR RESPONSIBILITY TOWARD BALANCE & HEALING	
7/20/96 HILARION	
CHAPTER 13	
A SINCERE PRAYER 3/23/94 #2 HATONN	
CHAPTER 14	
A NOTE CONCERNING EDITORIAL INTEGRITY by Rick Martin 7/26/96	
7/26/96 CATHY O'BRIEN	
CHAPTER 15	
THE NEWS DESK by Phyllis Linn 7/28/96 COMPUTER CHAOS IN 2000	
A CLARIFICATION OF TORAH DOCTRINE	
CDC'S GUN RESEARCH FUNDING SHOT DOWN	
IRS WANTS ITS CUT	
IND WAINTO THE CUL	119

OCHOA OUT OF JAIL	119
AN UPDATE TO: THE SORDID STORY OFSANTA BARBARA	
SAVINGS & LOAN by Ray Bilger 7/26/96	119
GEORGE BUSH AT MILKEN'S ESTATE	119
CHAPTER 16	121
THE COUNCIL ON FOREIGN RELATIONS AND AMERICA'S	
NEAR FUTURE by Ray Bilger 7/27/96	121
CHAPTER 17	125
ATLANTA BOMBING/TWA 800 UPDATE	125

CHAPTER 1

THE NEWS DESK by Phyllis Linn 7/4/96

INDEPENDENCE DAY AGENDA

Have you seen the newly released film *Independence Day*? This statement made by its writer/producer Dean Devlin appeared in a recent issue of the (Los Angeles) *DAILY NEWS*—it couldn't be clearer as to intent, [quoting:]

The reason why it's called *Independence Day* is that we wanted to take what we think of as the best American holiday, strip the nationalism away from it and turn it into an international day. There has been this fantasy that if there was an outside aggressor, the whole world would band together and forget all of our petty differences. [And eagerly welcome in the New World Order! The film acts to soften us up—to anticipate a "real" invasion.]

MILITIA ARRESTS

The handwriting has been on the wall for some time. The militia was used as a concept to manipulate the minds of Americans—to train us to equate anyone who stands for the preservation of the *Constitution* and opposition to the NWO with fanaticism, terrorism, crackpot-ism, and racism. The recipe is simple and often used by the Elite: Take those who oppose your activities, infiltrate and set them up according your agenda, use the media (and potent trigger words) to create strong public opinion against them, and smash them under the guise of the "will of the people", at the same time using the furor as a ploy for instigation of as many "anti-terrorist" (i.e., draconian "anti-citizen, anti-constitutional") measures as possible. This old formula continues to work splendidly on prison planet Earth. Here it unfolds as portrayed in the July 3 issue of *THE BAKERSFIELD CALIFOR-NIAN*, [quoting:]

PHOENIX (AP)—They've threatened to blow up power plants, government buildings, even the Hoover Dam. Some have held military exercises in the desert, firing automatic weapons and setting off bombs [nowhere does the word "allegedly" appear]. With its wide-open desert spaces and tolerance for guns, Arizona has long been a breeding ground for self-styled militia members. The indictment Monday of 12 members of a group called the "Viper Militia" was just one in a series of cases involving paramilitary activity dating back to the 1970s.

Arizona is "in the top five or 10 states" for militia activity, said Bryan Levin, an expert on the movement and assistant professor of criminal justice at Stockton College in New Jersey. He estimated as many as 30 militia groups have surfaced in the state. [Montana and Idaho are other states targeted as threats to the NWO.] Neither Levin nor David Rosenberg, who tracks militia groups for the Anti-Defamation League of B'nai B'rith in New York [say no more!], had heard of the "Viper Militia", the group accused in a federal indictment released Monday of plotting to blow up government buildings in the Phoenix area.

There has been speculation that the group took its name from "OPLAN American Viper", a plan for overthrowing the government that has been distributed anonymously at gun shows and other gatherings around the country. The 68-page document includes instructions for attacking targets from water supplies and rail and communications lines, to airfields, fuel depots and ammunition dumps. It warns of a plot by an unidentified world power to "disarm and enslave the American people." "The whole idea behind it is the violent overthrow of the government," said Morris Dees [another familiar name in the annals of Khazarianism], who tracks hate groups [There's another tactic—accusing your enemy of what you yourself are doing!] for the Southern Poverty Law Center in Montgomery, Ala.

Patriot groups. [See the tie-in with "patriotism.] At least 27 "patriot" groups were active in Arizona between 1994 and 1996, according to a report compiled by the Southern Poverty Law Center's Militia Task Force. But the "Viper Militia" failed to cross the radar of the **nonprofit civil rights organization** [note the well massaged positive image THAT conveys, as opposed to those insidious "patriot groups"]. The task force identified 809 such groups nationwide. The task force report included common organizations that identified themselves as "patriots" opposed to a "New World Order" government conspiracy. Groups identified as having been active in Arizona between 1994 and 1996 were [this list has been abbreviated due to space constraints]:

- —National Alliance, Bullhead City.
- —Chino Valley Militia, Chino Valley.
- —Constitutional Militia, Cornville.
- —Common Law Court, Graham County.
- —Arizona Patriots, Kingman.
- —Common Law Court, Maricopa County.
- —Citizens for America, Mesa.
- —American Citizens and Lawmen Association, Phoenix [Jack McLamb's organization]
- —Sovereign Citizens Movement, Tucson.

[There's lots more, but you have probably already read this stuff in your local "news source", right? Hatonn has comments on this subject as well, on page 2.]

PARENTS NOT TOLD OF EXPERIMENTAL VACCINE

From the June 19 issue of the *MODESTO BEE*, [quoting:]

LOS ANGELES (AP)—To combat a measles outbreak, three clinics gave hundreds of predominantly poor and minority children experimental measles vaccinations without their parents' knowledge from 1989 to 1991, health officials said Tuesday. The consent forms for the government-sponsored study, designed to find out if children can be immunized before their first birthday. said they would get either of two vaccines. It never told the parents one was unlicensed in this country and therefore considered experimental. The study, co-sponsored by Kaiser Permanente of California and approved by the federal Centers for Disease Control in Atlanta, began during a U.S. measles epidemic in 1989.

ACCUSED NAZI DEPORTED

From the June 20 issue of THE ORLANDO SENTINEL, [quoting:]

BOSTON—A man who lost his U.S. citizenship after being accused of running a Nazi secret police unit in his native Lithuania has left Massachusetts for Lithuania, the Justice Department said Wednesday. Aleksandras Lileikis, an 88-year-old retired machinist, was stripped of his U.S. citizenship by a federal judge last month. Lileikis allegedly signed death orders for a number of Jewish men, women and children who were shot near Vilnius, the Lithuanian capital, during World War II. [See how flimsy your rights of citizenship become when Zionist allegations begin to fly—no trial of your peers or confrontation by your accusers. What happened to this man's constitutional rights??]

PLUTOCRATS CORNER VITAMIN INDUSTRY

This article by Tom Valentine appeared in the June 24 issue of *THE SPOTLIGHT*, [quoting:]

Times are certainly changing. Why, it was only a few years ago that doctors and other scions of the establishment were telling everyone that taking vitamin pill supplements was a "waste of money" and "quackery". And now look at what's happened. The big boys, members of the institutionalized food and medicine world we live in, have muscled into the vitamin business. Why? Here's the text of a full page, four color add from the July 1996 issue of *Forbes* magazine. These few words and the well known clout of the company purchasing the ad speak volumes about the nature of our changing attitudes toward vitamin supplements—especially vitamin E—"natural" vitamin E, that is.

"Take heart in the power of vitamin E", is the headline. This is followed by: "A recent British study concluded that a dime's worth of vitamin E from *natural sources* seems to reduce heart attacks by 75% when taken by people with bad hearts. Heart disease is our nation's leading killer, and based on this study, there has never been an easier, or more economical way, to reduce the risk of heart attacks than by taking a daily dose of vitamin E. As the world's largest *natural* vitamin E producer, ADM has the capacity to supply 170 million people with the current recommended daily allowance of vitamin E. We're proud of our role in helping people fight heart disease, and that's something you can take to heart."

The emphasis on "natural" is ours, and that's quite a story. For the first 30 years of vitamin E research. all the studies on the health benefits of vitamin E were conducted with "synthetic" material produced by Hoffman LaRoche, the pharmaceutical giant. Because of a unique capacity to distill chemicals out of vegetable oil in a vacuum, Eastman Kodak company entered the vitamin A and vitamin E business decades ago, but the "standard" had already been established by the synthetic material makers and health advocates were demeaned for daring to suggest there could be any difference between synthetic molecules and natural molecules. However, there is a big difference and that difference has now been verified. Big money people know a good thing when they see it. The formerly largest producer of natural vitamin E—Eastman Chemical—has been "absorbed" following some supply squeezing tactics by the largest soy bean monopolists in the world—Archer Daniels Midland.

Natural vitamin E is commercially extracted from soy bean oil "lignans" or residue. And, to further verify that natural is "in" and synthetic is "out", the other agricultural giant, Cargill, has made a deal with Hoffman LaRoche to provide that drug company with a natural source. Industry insiders say the price of vitamin E will go much higher as the two giant producers tighten their monopoly. On the other hand, health advocates who remember the work of the two "Maverick" doctors—the famous Shute brothers who proposed that vitamin E was the ideal heart support nutrient 30 years ago and were condemned as "quacks"—are saying that even at a higher price, the value of natural vitamin E for better heart health has been established. [Interesting how "expert opinions" change depending on where the \$\$\$\$ are!]

CLINTON'S "VICTIM AMENDMENT" TO THE CONSTITUTION

From a recent issue of *THE NEW YORK TIMES*, [quoting:]

Saying the justice system "too often ignores the millions and millions of people who are completely innocent," President Clinton called Tuesday for a constitutional amendment to protect the rights of crime victims. [Specific details are not provided, but it sure does sound flaky as presented here!] It was the first time in his presidency that he has supported an effort to change the Constitution. Clinton announced his position at a Rose Garden ceremony attended by relatives of murder victims who have become crusaders for such an amendment. Throughout his presidency, Clinton has opposed numerous proposals to amend the Constitution including a balanced budget amendment, school prayer amendment and an anti-flag burning amendment [all Republican-sponsored proposals.]

SANCTIONS AGAINST ENEMIES OF THE NWO

From the June 20 issue of *THE ORLANDO SENTINEL*, [quoting:]

WASHINGTON (AP)—The House unanimously approved sanctions against Iran and Libya Wednesday that would punish foreign companies that invest in the two nations, both accused of sponsoring terrorism. [Their REAL crime is not playing ball with the big boy terrorists.] The legislation is backed by the administration but has drawn criticism from European countries that say it attempts to unilaterally impose U.S. policy on them. The bill, passed 415-0 [must be a real hot potato], lists six possible sanctions options against Iran and requires the president to impose at least two on any person or business that invests \$40 million or more in one year in Iran's energy sector. The Senate passed a similar bill in December sponsored by Sen. Alfonse D'Amato, R-N.Y. Differences between the two measures must be worked out.

The House version mandates sanctions on foreigners who sell weapons, aviation equipment and oil equipment to Libya in violation of U.N. Security Council resolutions. Libya and Iran are both on the State Department list of nations that support international terrorism.

DOG SAVES FAMILY

Here's an upbeat antidote to all the nasty stuff going on in the world today (and every day)! From the June 28 issue of the (Los Angeles) *DAILY NEWS*, [quoting:]

NEW BERN, N.C. (AP)—When a dog spotted a fire sparked by lightning in the attic of his owners' house, he barked. But that didn't work. They ignored him. So Roc, a mix of Chesapeake Bay retriever and rottweiler, rang the doorbell. At 4 a.m., that got their attention. Rosevelt and Linda Matthews and their two teen-age children lost everything but their lives in the Tuesday fire. Roc won their eternal gratitude. The dog never was trained by the family to ring doorbells, though he did it once before to get their attention.

<u>"ECSTASY" MAY CAUSE</u> LONG-TERM BRAIN DAMAGE

From the June 14 issue of *THE ORLANDO SENTINEL*, [quoting:]

LONDON (Reuters)—The street drug Ecstasy can cause long-term effects in users, literally rotting parts of their brains, two British doctors said today. Rodents and monkeys given the drug showed long-term brain damage, they said. Even one dose was enough to cause measurable damage in rats, they said. Tests show that the drug, a type of amphetamine, destroys the connections between brain cells and damages nerve cells that release serotonin, an important brain chemical.

COCKROACH LINKED TO ASTHMA

From the June 9 issue of the *JOHNSON CITY* (Tennessee) *PRESS*, [quoting:]

WASHINGTON (AP)—Five years ago, a team of researchers set out to determine why asthma is such a severe urban health problem. They penetrated the worst neighborhoods in seven big cities and spent \$17 million vacuuming up dust, administering allergy tests and poring over the medical records of poor children. In a few months, their first formal reports will hit the medical journals. Perhaps 50 papers eventually will be published. But in the end, the piles of data largely boil down to a single nasty word: COCKROACHES. The surprising result is likely, in time, to change the way the medical world thinks about childhood asthma. Already, those in charge of the study view these bugs as a serious public health hazard.

The levels of infestation are particularly important because Dr. Alkis Togias of Johns Hopkins, who is looking at a cross-section of teen-age asthma victims in Baltimore, found that the more cockroaches in victims' homes, the greater their chance of being allergic to roaches and the more severe their asthma.

WHAT ABOUT NETANYAHU?

The June 2 issue of *THE ORLANDO SENTINEL* has this to say about that, [quoting:]

JERUSALEM—A conversation with Israelis about Benjamin Netanyahu inevitably comes around to how "American" he is. Some say it with admiration, some with disdain, but they talk of his

American accent, his American education, his Kennedy-style clan and the American name he once tried—Ben Nitay. Above all, they talk about his mastery of "American style" politics [Zionism-saturated?], by which people mean his mastery of pungent sound bites and packaged issues. That Netanyahu's image was massaged by an American, Arthur Finkelstein, came as a surprise to no one. But behind Netanyahu's "Made in USA" facade is a very Israeli core, a native sabra reared on militant Zionism, honed in an elite commando unit and chary of ever giving an inch to his enemies, whether politicians or Arabs.

NETANYAHU

...as deputy foreign minister, Netanyahu gained further renown as the Israeli spokesman during the Persian Gulf War. Quick, succinct and good-looking, he was the voice of Israel day after day on every international network. After Likud lost in the 1993 national election, Netanyahu scrambled past the established figures of the Israeli right to seize the party chairmanship, in the process making numerous enemies in his own party.

After the assassination of Prime Minister Yitzhak Rabin last November, the perception that he condoned or even incited the radical right led to a steep plunge in his standing in the polls. His fortunes changed with four suicide bombings in February and March, which now turned many Israelis against the government. [What a break for him, eh?!]

Your news clippings are appreciated! Be sure to indicate the date and media source and send them to: CONTACT, P.O. Box 986, Tehachapi, CA 93581.

CHAPTER 2

COL. FLETCHER PROUTY EXPOSES THE CLANDESTINE SOCIETY'S AGENDA FOR WORLD CONTROL by Rick Martin 7/4/96

USAF Colonel (Ret.) L. Fletcher Prouty, author of the books *The Secret Team: The CIA And Its Allies In Control Of The World*, and *JFK*, *The CIA*, *Vietnam*, *And The Plot To Assassinate John F. Kennedy*, is well known in clandestine circles. Between 1955 and 1963, Col. Prouty served as Chief of Special Operations for the Joint Chiefs of Staff and in a similar capacity with the Office of Special Operations in the Office of the Secretary of Defense. He also headed the Special Operations Office for the U.S. Air Force.

While he is technically "retired", Col. Prouty has witnessed government clandestine operations for decades and has seen, first hand, the power-broker usurpers at work.

We would like to take this moment to thank Col. Prouty for his willingness to speak with *CONTACT* about our world today, with many retrospective historical insights along the way. It is refreshing to speak with a man of honor, one who is not afraid to "tell it like it is." Our hats are off to you, Col. Prouty.

TRANSCRIPTION OF A TAPED INTERVIEW.

INTERVIEW: July 4, 1996

FP = Fletcher L. Prouty, USAF Colonel (Ret.)

RM = Rick Martin, Senior Correspondent, *CONTACT*

RM: Well, I think it is rather fortuitous, if that might be a good word, that we meet on the Fourth of July.

FP: Yes, it's a good day for it.

RM: Did you find anything of particular interest in the issue of *CONTACT* I sent? Perhaps the Vincent Foster material or anything in particular?

FP: I'll tell you that I'm working on something that involves me in some serious research and writing so I went through it one evening just before going to bed. Of course the title itself always attracts me, because it was Meese who created the term "Iran-Contra". There wasn't any "Iran-Contra", he just created it to figure out a way of making the people believe that the money we were making in Iran was being used for *something*. He figured the Contra was a good idea so he added it to the title. It then more or less set the stage for that which followed because a lot of it was very well staged by the regime in power at that time.

You need to understand that the Contras, like many rebel forces of the period, including the troopers who landed on the beach in the Bay of Pigs, were always supported 100 percent by the United States Government. They didn't need anybody to buy their boots and weapons, tents or all that kind of stuff because it was provided; in fact, THAT was my job. I was in charge of the provision of military aid to clandestine operations of CIA. That was the job I held for nine years.

RM: That is certainly very interesting.

FP: Yes, so I do know the way things work.

RM: Are you familiar with the name Al Martin?

FP: No I don't remember him. Where was he?

RM: He was the one I interviewed on the subject we ran on the Iran-Contra. He was the person who set up some of the money-laundering side of things.

FP: Yes, laundering money was a big deal in those days—and still is.

RM: Was that the first issue of *CONTACT* that you have seen?

FP: I believe so, yes.

RM: I should tell you that it is a relatively small subscription paper but it does go around the world. It's primarily about the U.S. We only have abut 1,300 subscribers, paid subscribers, but it seems to be the kind of paper that people photocopy every week and pass around as you wouldn't believe. I am constantly running into people, and hearing from people, not only across the U.S. but from Canada, Australia and all kinds of places, even South Africa. These people hear about *CONTACT* and then contact us because they know that we will put things into print that the traditional media won't even touch or is afraid to put to press. Therefore our readers, I would comment generally, are elderly, have experienced changes, and are extremely well informed. They are well informed about clandestine operations because we have printed a lot on those topics within the past several years and we just continue to find amazing things we didn't know.

I did not prepare with a bunch of organized questions for you because I thought we could get involved in an open and frank dialogue. Basically we would want to discuss the United States, the status of the world in which we find ourselves, and to even use the "military-industrial" complex is such an old cliche now, as is the New World Order, that I hate to use them. However, we are moving so close to such a restrictive and international life-style that our once great country seems to be on the wane quite rapidly. So I thought we might basically talk about how you view the world of the Intelligence Community in today's society, if you feel it is fundamentally just an octopus out of hand or whatever might be your thoughts on these topics. Let us talk without the concern about "sound bytes" because you can speak your mind freely and we will print it exactly as you offer it.

FP: Let me ask you a question before we begin. I have written two books that you might call

autobiographical on that subject. I wonder if you've seen them.

RM: No, I haven't.

FP: One of them was printed by Prentiss-Hall in 1973, called *The Secret Team*. After it was started and was going very well it all of a sudden just vanished. There are, however, various people around the country who are either still reprinting it or getting it from somewhere. One good source is Tom Davis Books (P.O. Box 1107 in Aptos, California 95001-1107). I permitted him to put them together. That book has done well; just like you're talking about with the paper, it's been all over the world. When I see people with it it is usually a worn out book and they are carrying it around with them.

The other book is one that I did when I was working with Oliver Stone on his film JFK. I didn't intend to do it, it wasn't even in book form at that time. I wrote nineteen articles, in sequence, for a small publication in Santa Monica and what I was really doing was writing about the history of the Vietnam War from the inside view of how it was really done. Stone saw some of those articles and called the Editor, bought up all the back copies and then he called me to work with him. With that start a publisher put the 19 articles together, rewritten of course, and published a book under a rather unusual title. The title explained the contents and because of the movie is called *JFK*, the CIA, Vietnam, and the Plot to Assassinate John F. Kennedy. Too much title, almost, for the front cover. It has just come out in the past month, in paperback. I have no idea how it is doing but again, like CONTACT, it floats through the crowd and you run into it in all kinds of places with all kinds of people.

The reason I bring it up here is that I think those two books would answer almost any question you might have to ask or, if we talk about the subjects here it would confirm them and offer something to look at and read, along with checking references.

RM: Do you by any chance know Gary Wean? He is a Los Angeles detective and did quite a bit of research on the JFK assassination. He wrote a book a number of years back called *A Fish In The Courthouse*, about the judicial corruption in Southern California.

FP: Oh yeah. But you know I didn't really intend to study the assassination except the subject on which I was working, mostly in the Vietnam War period, and it came chronologically so that I couldn't avoid it. Furthermore, I was right there working for the Chairman of The Joint Chiefs of Staff at the time and had access to every darned thing going between the Pentagon and the White House. Therefore I was so very close to it whether or not I wanted to write about it. Therefore I wrote just the facts as I saw them. I am not an interpreter and I had never even looked at that Warren Commission report or any of that information.

RM: Have you ever been asked to keep silent and not speak out? Has anyone approached you about your writing or speaking and told you to keep quiet?

FP: Oh, certain people have come up like that but I'll tell you the honest truth, most of my contemporaries very quietly come over and shake hands and say they wish that they had done it. That includes some people with some pretty big names so the others are the kinds of people who are paid

to come out and attack guys; oh you know, the literary prostitutes who make a living doing that sort of thing. I have been hit by almost every one of them so I'm used to that game.

RM: What do you think about Washington these days? What is the status of, say, the CIA? Do you think it is just an out-of-control monster?

FP: The understanding of it is very much in error today. For instance, Allen Dulles was a lawyer. He worked like a lawyer. I worked with him and did, in fact, work in his home with him so I knew him very personally because our work was so close in our agencies that that was the only way we could manage it sometimes. I know him quite well and respect him. As a lawyer you work for someone. When he came into the CIA he cancelled the administrative section of the Agency as being unnecessary. When you are in Intelligence, the fact that you are walking down the street and find a dollar, all of a sudden you have a dollar—but when you send an agent somewhere and he stumbles over something, they have then something they want to do or something they want to know, and that is called intelligence. They will plant intelligence. Well, as a result, the role of the Agency becomes two things, that it is an intelligence agency is a **Cover-story** for some of the things it does which are clandestine. But it doesn't have the wherewithal for those things so the U.S. Government, through a directive from the National Security Council, has set up a system that requires, not just asks but requires, the military to support the clandestine activities of the CIA. This right away means that the CIA is simply the cover for the clandestine activities supported by the military.

After all, the CIA didn't have any pilots to fly such as the U-2—they wouldn't have known what to do with the thing. So you see that people don't understand the role here. If you begin to understand its role, then it will be found that some things it did do wrong and still does do wrong. There's no question about that. But many other times it clarifies things that should be clarified by the press, but the press likes the *game*. They like to play with it.

RM: Several days ago I did an extensive interview with Walter Bowert and I know that you know him through the Freedom of Thought Foundation.

FP: Is he the fellow who wrote the book *MIND CONTROL*? Oh yes, I know him quite well although I haven't seen him for a long time now but I do know him very well from some years ago.

RM: We have done quite a bit of publication on the issues of MK-Ultra and Monarch Mind-Control Programming and that kind of thing, and we pretty much printed Mark Phillips and Cathy O'Brien's entire story. I guess you might be very informed about that sort of thing?

FP: Well, that is a whole other area where under Gottleib and Cameron and Jolly West at UCLA—those fellow have some very deep CIA activity. That came out of the MK-Ultra Program. That is a different side of this story altogether. It's a very active story *and a very dangerous thing*.

RM: There are lot of victims just walking around today who...

FP: Oh, no question about it. Have you seen the paperback called *TRANCE FORMATION OF AMERICA*? [Call Phoenix Source for ordering information 1-800-800-5565.]

RM: Actually yes.

FP: Then you know that that thing is **going to explode.** And, of course it should. That sort of thing should not be sat on by the press. The press knows as much about it as whoever sat down and wrote that book. They just won't touch it. And that *is* the press.

RM: I thought that Mark Phillips and Cathy O'Brien were both extremely courageous in telling their whole story but to put it down on paper quite so succinctly, boy, that took a lot of courage!

FP: Yes, and it is things like that that don't even seem or appear to make a ripple but, of course, it is making ripples which will grow. It also is standing behind the door for a lot of things that are liable to open up all of a sudden. It wouldn't surprise me a bit. It is similar to the HAARP Project now being discussed by everybody, that is affecting the weather and agriculture as well as physically impacting the people. Have you been into that subject?

RM: We are familiar with the book *ANGELS DON'T PLAY THIS HAARP* which is about the HAARP system and, yes, we have published quite a bit about that. We are actually very, very concerned about it.

FP: Yes, rightfully so. I have the man's three patents and I've been trying to study them, which in itself is pretty difficult, but I've been into that kind of business so I'm working on them now. Back in my days we were doing things like that but nowhere near the magnitude of what capabilities are today.

RM: Let's just let you talk for a bit about your own choice of topics, for instance, what do you see as a concern in today's world? Obviously you have been through a lot, your background is very impressive and you have been through it for a lot of years and have seen the military and intelligence from a side than have very few people. We are out here on the West Coast and obviously our perception is very, very different than from where you sit, so, are there any concerns you would share with our readers?

FP: I have personal concerns that I think should be of concern to more people who I meet. I'm very much concerned about the leadership of the country with respect to this country's people and its infrastructure. Our infrastructure is being worn out, destroyed, and there has been no modernizing until, like Kipling said: "Transport is civilization."

If you grow tomatoes and you can't move them, then they aren't worth a penny. If you have an oil well that's got tons of oil, if you can't move oil it isn't worth a dollar. That is why we are fighting in Bosnia—so we can bring that oil from Kazakhstan. They have to have a route. If we can't make the United States the finest country in the world with the finest transport systems to begin with... I worked ten years with Amtrak and was their principle speech-writer for six of those years for people like Allen Boyd and Don Reichert and Roger Lewis and people like that who really know the business while I was their speech-writer, and I've written on the subject for McGraw-Hill Encyclopedia. If we don't get out there pretty soon we are in serious, serious trouble. I have recently gotten three letters from farmers growing crops which were rotting in the fields and the streets because the

railroad spur lines that used to be into their towns to pick up produce are now closed. The big 18-wheeler trucks can't go over their little ten-ton bridges into town and so the crops are rotting in the fields. That is only one example of the kinds of things which concern me. Our country is simply rotting from the inside while people talk about foreign countries and all kinds of esoteric problems. These are, of course, important, but nowhere nearly <u>as</u> important. The next big thing after the energy crisis, then the banking crisis, and we are now in the beginning of a food crisis that is going to be absolutely terrible.

That is what concerns me today.

RM: I couldn't agree more. The status of the wheat crop around the world is almost decimated.

FP: Yes, have you seen Gerard Colby's new book? Colby wrote the book *DuPont Dynasty*. He has a new one out today that I would say, hands down, is the MOST IMPORTANT IN THE LAST TWENTY YEARS. It is, oh my God, its title is *Thy Will Be Done*. It speaks of the Rockefellers, the petroleum business and the way they are LED BY THE EVANGELICAL SYSTEM, the missionaries into Latin America and other countries, and through the missionaries they get rid of the people and take over the land and oh, it IS the most important book I have seen for years.

It just happens that twenty years ago I knew Colby but haven't seen him since then. He is a remarkable person but that book is EXTREMELY IMPORTANT. It's published by Harper, who has merged now, but it explains the very things we are talking about in much more detail and with much more policy and politics.

RM: Are you then familiar with the concept of Depopulation?

FP: That is part of it but he explains that it isn't actually the basic problem. It is, and you probably know all this stuff, but it's what such as Prince Charles is involved in—the Universal Wildlife Fund and all that—which is one of the most murderous organizations ever put together.

RM: Would you say more about that?

FP: I could talk on all night about it. I'll tell you what—I don't know if you ever read it or not, because I hate to talk about something when I know people are much more informed about something than am I, but do you read the *EIR* [Executive Intelligence Review]? Ok, go back in the *EIR* about six months. They have an issue which is almost the equal of Colby's work but it is all on this one thing about this monstrous system of the World Wildlife Foundation under Prince Charles and many other world leaders, we'll call them, that are intended to create genocide all over the world. It is a terrific series of articles. I had a lot to do with the beginning of them when the subject started and am delighted at what they did with it. It is a bunch of reporters working independently who then put the information together. I don't remember exactly how far back it was but see if you can find it, maybe six or even eight months ago. It is extremely important.

RM: Seriously now, what else concerns you? These are important times and no concern is trivial.

FP: I think one of the biggest failings in the country, because it is so controlled, is the news. I'm sorry TV was invented because I can't stand to even turn my set on—my daughter has to figure out the buttons for me for a ballgame occasionally. I can't stand the newspapers because they are absolutely abominable. They are all getting worse instead of better. It is like *TIME* magazine—have you seen it lately?

RM: No, I don't have much patience with it.

FP: You wouldn't want to see it but it's so bad that if you took one from twenty-five to fifty years ago and compared it to what they are doing today—it is absolutely abominable. The news has deteriorated under control and they are not allowed to do any better. If they got a tape about what you and I are talking about they would not be allowed to print it. And Rick, I'm a long-time member of the National Press Club. I was at the Press Club yesterday. I know a lot of the people there and the poor guys trying to make a living there feel just about as bad about things as I do, but, they have to make a living. They sort of plate themselves with armor and get accustomed to it. It is terrible.

A talk-show host has just asked me to talk about the Pentagon Papers next week because it is the twenty-fifth anniversary, and that Pentagon Papers thing is just nothing other than an absolute pack of lies, all the way from Dan Ellsberg on down. Dan Ellsberg used to work in the office where they put the Pentagon Papers together. He used to work for McNamara. He wasn't just some kid out on the street. [For the full story (from a well researched book, THE USURPERS by Medford Evans) see CONTACT 6/28/94, 7/5/94, 7/12,94, 7/19/94, 7/26/94, 8/2/94, 8/16/94, & 8/23/94 issues; or see Phoenix Journals #'s 99, 100, 101, 102, 103, 104, 105, & 107. See Back Page for ordering information.] You probably know all this anyway. When I worked at the Pentagon these people working on this were only a couple of doors down the hall from me. We all worked for McNamara. In fact, have you studied the Pentagon Papers?

Here is a simple line from one page of the Pentagon Papers, they do them chronologically so you're getting from the 20th of November that there was a conference in Honolulu...

"The 21st of November the conference broke up and some went home and the rest of them started for Tokyo to visit there and the Saigon crowd went home....

"The 22nd of November Ambassador Lodge flies to Washington to speak to the President."

"The 23rd of November, 1963, Ambassador Lodge continues his discussions with the President."

There is never a mention of which President he is talking to. There was a change of presidents in those two days. But that is the kind of history the Pentagon Papers offers. That is just one small example. Have you ever noticed that? You ought to put that at the top of your paper where you write *CONTACT*—about every issue or so, just to wake up the people because the other papers who fought through the Supreme Court to get the privilege to print that stuff don't. Of course they wanted to print that stuff because it was ALL LIES. Of course you can lie by omission of the death of the President and the methods by which the President was killed but the future bunch of kids coming up are going to use the Pentagon Papers as the God's honest truth—because it had to go

through the Supreme Court to have allowance to publish; my God, what a set up job. And, of course the young man who did that is now the President of the Council on Foreign Relations. He is the same guy that put out the Pentagon Papers. You may know him, Les Gelb. He was also Editor of the *New York Times*.

RM: The newspaper business seems to be pretty much gone down the tubes as far I can tell. You can count on one hand the free presses in this country, that are worth anything.

FP: Yes, in Washington here one of the owners of one paper, *Washington Times*, is a minister from Korea, although I don't think that's where his funds come from, but that's the public story, Sun Yung Moon—the Moonies, created the *Washington Times*, pays for it and has invested more than a BIL-LION dollars—all at a loss, and he's a minister from Korea. Now, what the hell is he doing publishing a Washington paper? He competes with the *Washington Post*. The only thing wrong there is the *Post* is a worse newspaper than the *Times*. This is just the way things are.

Many of our major newspapers are owned by foreigners. These are major chains that are formed and dictate what we read here in the U.S. That also includes TV.

RM: My mind is torn here between wanting to ask you about some of your past experiences and current issues. Obviously you were familiar with things like the Phoenix Project in Vietnam and some of those things.

FP: Oh yes, I was in Vietnam during 1952, '53 and '54. And, I was on Okinawa in 1949 when we brought Ho Chi Minh down and put in the government down there. General Galligher, an OSS man, brought him down there and, being on Okinawa, I saw them ship all the equipment that we didn't need for the invasion of Japan, down to Ho Chi Minh so he would be able to make an army, which he did. He then defeated the French with that army.

Then I was back there many times intermittently during the 1960s until I retired. Yes, I'm pretty familiar with it.

RM: Is there anything that hasn't been told that you might care to share?

FP: Well, I've written so much that that is why I think that my book is the best source of information but the biggest thing, if you recall, after the Geneva Convention in 1954 that divided Vietnam into the North and South. There was a little paragraph, the final paragraph regarding the area that said: "Because of the division of the country, which was arbitrary, if any persons living in the South of Vietnam wanted to go to the North," and of course these were both new countries, "or if anybody in the North wanted to go to the South, they should be FREELY permitted to go."

That was put there for a purpose. A little later John Foster Dulles made a speech at the American Legion Convention and he said that "we have moved one-million-one-hundred-thousand North Vietnamese to the South for sanctuary from that horrible business of Ho Chi Minh and Communism." Well, just how do you move one-million-one-hundred-thousand natives whose ancestor-worship is tied to ownership of ground and who never travel **anywhere**—they go nowhere. They are poor

little people who live on farms and so on. You do it only with a form of terrorism. They got six-hundred-and-sixty-THOUSAND of those people on board ships and brought them down to Saigon, three hundred thousand in CIA's Air America's airlines and flew them down, and they then became the insurgents because they had no land, they had no homes, they had no food and didn't even have drinking water. They had to fight to live. So they became the insurgents and we started running counter-insurgency against them. That's how they built up enough people to say there was an "enemy".

How many people have ever realized that about 90%, if you can call it fighting in the modern sense, in Vietnam, occurred in South Vietnam? That is like Canada attacking the United States by invading Florida at Key West.

It is absolutely ridiculous but people never even think about it. That's the whole big story of Vietnam.

RM: It was certainly a proving ground for a lot of experimental projects as well...

FP: Of course, of course... and then, to beat it all, we spent five-hundred-and-seventy-BILLION dollars, lost 58 thousand men and killed over 3-1/2 million people in Southeast Asia.

We dropped more bomb tonnage in the Vietnam area, in Cambodia mostly, four times more than all of World War II. In Cambodia they just dropped bombs in the fields. The fields are so beat-up by bombs that they can't use them to grow anything any longer. And, we weren't fighting Cambodia, technically.

RM: I'm looking at part of a chapter out of Bo Gritz' book, Called to Serve. Do you know Bo?

FP: Oh yeah. I've met him several times. I don't really know him well but I have met him and know of him.

RM: Like I say, I'm torn here between talking about your past experiences and talking about the current state of the world. The current state of the world is so alarming to me and the current state of our country is even more alarming so I hardly know which way to go with this.

FP: Well, I went from a graduate school in banking, University of Wisconsin, and then spent 10 years in the banking world. I could slip over into that area and scare you even worse.

RM: Do you mean the coming collapse? That sort of thing?

FP: Well, (chuckle)—yeah. During the early part of World War II I was in the Middle East and I just happened, because I was a pilot flying different people, to be at the Cairo Conference and at the Tehran Conference. I was not a participant but was there and I knew what was going on. Well, in line with the Cairo Conference Roosevelt carried out a pretty neat little game. You know, they were going to Cairo in October of 1943 to meet with Chiang Kai-shek and with Churchill. Roosevelt's idea was to introduce Chiang Kai-shek to Churchill and then when they would go to Tehran, intro-

duce them to Stalin and then you would have the Big Four of World War II.

Even ahead of that, since that was the scenario in the newspapers, Roosevelt sent a geological survey team by way of Cairo and by way of Tehran and then on to Saudi Arabia, which was neutral at the time, where there were some Americans over there representing the California Standard Oil Company. This geological survey team became my responsibility for flying them from Casablanca to Cairo, to Tehran, back to Bahrain and then into Saudi, where we landed on the sand because there wasn't even a runway there. They showed the California Standard guys (later the company became known as Aramco) where the oil was and how much there was. Gee, we were driving around in a sand-buggy and they would come up to a twelve-inch pipe sticking out of the ground eight or ten inches, unscrew the cap and oil would just bubble out—no pump—no nothing else. They kept telling the team to just come over here and get it because there is all you can ever use right here. Well, when the head of the team went back to Cairo it happened to coincide with the Conference (I didn't know there would be a conference but they did) and they went in to Roosevelt and told him about what they had seen. Immediately at the Cairo Conference Roosevelt ordered the construction of a 50,000 barrel-a-day refinery on the beach, on the sand, in Saudi Arabia where there wasn't even a palm tree—I never saw such a desolate place. That is the famous Tehran of today. In fact, one of the men that we met there was a man by the name of Floyd Oligher, who I think was the founder of Aramco.

In 1968 I ended up knowing him pretty well because I used to have planes going from Cairo and we would drop things down there for them on the ground, you know, newspapers, magazines and some good food—that sort of thing. So, I got to know him pretty well and he sent me a beautiful book that they put out, called the *Aramco Handbook*. It was for internal consumption within their company. I have never seen a better book on the oil situation. I have always been interested in that. That is what is behind Bosnia right now. In fact, it is what is behind a lot of action going on right now. [As Commander Hatonn has pointed out, the same applies to Chechnya.]

This next comment has nothing to do with religion, about people or anything else, it is simply fact: When the nation that is now called Israel was created in 1948, one month later they shut the oil pipelines down that go into the port of Haifa. Well, Haifa happens to be in that little plot of sand they call Israel. But those, and there were eight, pipelines carry all the oil from Iraq through the Mediterranean and to Europe. That is traditional and goes all the way back into the 1930s. In one swoop they shut them off. So then the Iraqis had to build a pipeline through Syria and Lebanon. Years later, when there was a battle against Lebanon, for some reason or another, the Iraqis didn't stop in Beirut, they went all the way north in the area of Latiquia (off the northern coast of Lebanon, near Turkey) and shut off the Iraqi pipeline coming out there. The reason for that was it was competing with British Petroleum.

The British Petroleum guys are the ones who CREATED the country of Iraq to be a plug in the oil pipeline.

Even more, the biggest pipeline in the world is TAPLINE. Kuwait, across the desert, across Jordan and across the southern part of Lebanon to a town called Seiden. This is a historic site from the very old historic days. Also, Tapline is where all the oil from Saudi Arabia goes to the Mediterranean. When the Israelis attack the so-called terrorists in Southern Lebanon, the first place they attack, all

the time, is Seiden. Therefore, the oil flow through Tapline could also be stopped. That being the biggest pipeline in the world, today the ONLY real commercial movement of oil is by double-hull tankers. Double-hull tankers are owned and administered by a neat little organization called The Charter Institute of Transport. They are based in LONDON, ENGLAND.

I was invited to a meeting there in London, in 1982 (the same week that the British invaded the Falkland Islands and I believe it was 1982). It was very interesting because I represented the railroad industry because the exposure was in routing. The speeches were really *something* because they were about what **really** goes on in the control of oil. OPEC is just a playground. The Charter Institute of Transport is the important one thing because you can own all the oil in the world but if you can't move it you don't have anything. You have to have pipelines that stay open or you have to have double-hulled tankers coming for it. In 1973 when they claimed there was an Arab embargo, what it really was is that they were able to keep the tankers out of the Persian Gulf and wouldn't pick up the oil until the price was right. When it went up four times what it had been for ten years, then the tankers began to show up. Nice and clear little subject!

Colby's book [referred to earlier] explains a whole lot of that in great detail. It is a terrific book.

RM: It seems George Bush is spending a lot of his time in that part of the world these days.

FP: Yes, of course.... Well, it all began with his family. See, George Herbert Walker was in on the Baku fields with Deterding [very important], the founder of Dutch Shell [petroleum company] which was a British company despite the Dutch oil shell. He (George Bush) is now one of the big investors in the Kazakhstan oil which is the biggest oil discovery in the world—ever made, formerly controlled by U.S.S.R., but they didn't do anything with it and couldn't move it. If you don't have a shipping port and no pipelines to reach a port they could use, they couldn't move it. It is too expensive to move it by rail. They have a good rail system but you can't move oil by rail, profitably. Bush is in all that and that's why he was President of Zapata Oil and practically cornered the market on the Caribbean and because they had so many drilled oil wells in the Caribbean for the oil that is in there, it also was very nicely discovered that the customs people don't stop the drivers of helicopters [or boats] that go out to these wells so they come and go freely. And so, the boys from Colombia, with their little packages of seven or eight thousand pounds of their valuable stuff, would leave it on the oil platforms and the boys with their helicopters would fly them conveniently into the country.

Zapata is now making much more money with the Colombian product than they ever were making with the oil wells.

RM: We have printed quite a bit about that subject as well. This is not to mention Mr. Bush's pedophelia....

FP: [Only a chuckle without further comment on that topic.] He was a student at Yale when I was a professor there and when he was Captain of the baseball team. I'll have to say, they had a good baseball team and he was pretty good at first base.

Bill Buckley was editor of the Yale Daily News at that time and a bunch of other guys were there

from that late-40s crowd—all at their prime right now.

RM: There are those that say that Bush is still one of the most powerful men in the world.

FP: Oh yes, that is absolutely true. Yes, you don't see him sitting around with those jerks at Bilderberger and Trilateral... he is a long way **above them**. They are only peons.

RM: We haven't heard much from Henry Kissinger lately, what is he doing?

FP: He's a good recorder-secretary as he was when he was with the foreign relations group. That is how he got into the business and then when he ran into Califano(?) and Haig and learned the Black Budget secrets he got to be a bit more popular than he was up at Harvard.

RM: You must know quite a bit about the Iran-Contra situation so were you surprised that it just sort of went away as quickly as it seems to have done?

FP: Let me put it this way. That began in about what, '72? I retired in 1964 but the men who used to work for me, like Secord and North—and when I say that I mean "down the channel" because we had thousands of men working in the system—I knew Secord personally but didn't know North and they both worked for a General who did work for me. What they did is simply carry that system out to where they were supplying Iran with weaponry that they had told the Defense Department would be used by the CIA. Instead, they sold it and made a hell of a lot of money through that enterprise and that was handled through Switzerland. And of course, to explain later how come they were making so much money they said, "Well, we're doing it to finance the Contras." I only know that from "outside" because that was all printed and I wasn't active, myself, at the time. Since, however, I knew the principals, I did know what they did and how they were doing it.

There is a secret little system set up within the government which was set forth in 1954 that makes it so simple to do this kind of thing that one of my biggest jobs ever was to catch people stealing stuff within the system. Mr. Dulles was real good about it and as soon as I would write a name on a piece of paper he would can them—right then.

RM: For as much publicity as Mena has gotten over the years it seems that that whole thing has also just gone away. Starr doesn't seem to have much power or authority in his role as Special Prosecutor. It seems as though they are getting away, literally, with murder.

FP: Yes, and what amazes me is that they never mention the Defense Command. For instance, we have a Radar Defense Command that is so good that it watches about 47 thousand planes a day. When I was running clandestine operations into Cuba I would have to call Colorado Springs and say that "...tonight I'm running a small passenger plane into Cuba, I'm running it from Florida over there and it'll be going at 9:30; for God's sake don't touch it!" And they would let it go on by. Well, if I didn't call, they would have stopped me. They have the power to do it plus the fact that our Sea Frontier people know all the ships at sea. We know all the airplanes that are in the air, all the ships that are at sea—there is absolutely no way in the world, drugs or anything other like that can come in without the daily, regular and consistent help of the United States Government. It is mostly by failing to act. Therefore it is like a policeman seeing someone rob a bank and then come up and

shake hands and offering to go get a cup of coffee and, by the way: "How much did you get today". We're on their side! I was one of the five men sent to Colorado Springs to establish the Air Defense Command in 1950 and I know how it works, what the system is; and when I was in the CIA business I played on that to learn how to let the CIA pass through and also shipping through and we did, of course. Now, it comes to carrying drugs—you get a free pass. Well, Mena happened to be a convenient little landing spot. Nobody, until recently, ever went there. Of course if they did nobody would touch them and certainly not the police. Certainly the U.S. Government wouldn't touch them, so it becomes a legitimate business.

RM: I assume that in your business you are familiar with particle beam weapons and electromagnetic pulsing and some of the capability of mind-control mechanisms. They have available, technologically speaking, ability of using....

FP: I don't really know much about the current advanced stuff other than what I get from others. I did know about it going on. I do know that it is extremely advanced and extremely dangerous. When I retired I don't have access to other than what I hear from others.

I'm actually afraid to take my dog to the vet.

RM: Why, because of fear he'll get a chip or something?

FP: No, I'm afraid they'll turn him into a lion or something.

RM: Well, ok... You have such an amazing background that I want to ask you about everything.

FP: I haven't had anything to do with this. Actually, when I graduated from college I had my cap and gown on and rolled up in the diploma were my orders to go to duty. Every single one of these things I've talked about was simply a function of orders I would be given. I was very fortunate in that I never had a job in the military that I didn't like. I went from one to the other and finally in 1964 I had two kids in college and my military salary couldn't handle that so I had to get out and think of money first rather than what I was doing. But really, I have had the most unusual jobs and I flew four-star generals around so when you have a general up in the air with nothing to do for eight hours or so except talk. I used to go back and talk with them a lot. I flew all the surrendering generals of World War II, from Tunis to Casablanca. That took about eight-and-a-half hours so I would just go back and talk to them. I had a great time talking to those German Generals who had been out there fighting like hell, out there in the desert with Rommel, and I got a full thesis just from talking to those guys.

RM: I'll bet—any surprises?

FP: Yes, they were surprised at our use of artillery. Our army, surprisingly enough, were advanced in how to use artillery so you could fire one shot and then know everything you needed to know from that one shot—as long as you had a good aerial photograph, then turn maybe fifty guns on the target right after that. The Germans really wanted to talk about that. You know, little things like that. It was interesting from my point of view because I had not been near that combat zone. I had

been up in Russia and places like that but I had no experience such as they had. I'm talking about hearing them talk about it—just listening.

Do you know where they went after they I got them to Casablanca? They took them to the Greenbrier, that big resort here in West Virginia where they spent their POW time—right there at that beautiful hotel down there. No wonder they were glad they were through.

RM: Were you involved at all in Operation Paperclip?

FP: Yes, I ran that Operation. I ran all of the flight part of it. Who wrote about that, Tony Summers? He learned about it sitting in my living room here. At least he learned about part of it. I used to run it—out of Wiesbaden and places like that. I didn't select the people and I didn't arrange who they were, I simply provided aircraft and crews and that kind of arrangements. I did know where the flights were going.

RM: Are you at liberty to say how many people were actually brought over in that Operation.

FP: Oh, we never thought of counting them but I used to think there were right around eight or nine thousand. That was judging if the planes that were used were reasonably filled— we knew the numbers of planes.

RM: Were these all scientists?

FP: No, no, in fact something you might find interesting is to get a copy of the Register of the American Society of Psychiatry and you will find that out of something like 6700 psychiatrists in this country, more than 1700 came with Paperclip. Our psychiatry society is just loaded with those characters—Nazis.

RM: Wow!

FP: Just go to the library or some place where you can get the Register from the period of the '50s. This is because that during the '50s they didn't realize that their own little biographical sketches which they inserted were all printed verbatim. Now they are carefully printed. It will really open your eyes because that is the most important movement of any in that group. They simply took over the psychiatry profession in this country. They still have control of it today.

RM: That is a pretty frightening thought.

FP: You can look at the thing and see each name, their school, where they have been practicing, etc. The [*German*] lists come to the war and stop and then all of a sudden you see them entered as members of the American Society here. It is quite startling.

RM: Were there any surprises in what you found out about the Falkland Islands?

FP: No, I was in London when that happened. I was just using that to sort chronology. That wasn't even why I was in London so don't have anything on that.

RM: London is pretty interesting all by itself. I think I would be nervous to travel there personally.

FP: Yes, I would imagine that there is more power exuding from that city than any other in the world today, give or take Peking or Singapore, maybe Tokyo and New York. London certainly is in the top five.

RM: I didn't feel you really wanted to talk about the coming financial collapse? We were talking about food shortages but I mentioned financial collapse and you went rather quiet.

FP: Well, when the Continental Illinois Bank in Chicago failed with \$47 billion on its books—and it failed and shut down the U.S. Government—and if the government didn't help it the corresponding banks, some 2200 of them, would also fail. So, the U.S. Government pumped it back up again and then, from that time on, it put the S&L business right out of business, practically, and then banks failed all over the country. It was an extremely profitable operation and great losers for the U.S. public. It was and is a very, very costly thing.

Now we have an entirely different system of banking which isn't under the same laws as back in those days. Take the FDIC, for instance. Do you realize that was a **private insurance company?** The Government is not supposed to back-up anything in those banks and, if you get the original FDIC law, it very clearly states that it is an insurance company with input from the banks and the amount put in is on regular insurance methods for supporting failures. And, that the U.S. Government is not responsible for any failure. When they said that you had your money insured by FDIC they couldn't say "and backed by the Government". They do now because they corrupted the law. That period of the 1980s, and especially through the Carter time, was probably one of the most costly decades for the American public, ever known. Its costs are still flowing through the system. Our money became worthless.

RM: Do you think Oliver Stone sold out on his film, *JFK*, in the final analysis?

FP: He did a good job, but the trouble is that when a fellow like that is working, and he manages to work rather independently, he still has to have financing. He had a very difficult time protecting himself from moles. Although I worked with him from the beginning to the end, and had my own organization, I couldn't travel with his and he was infested with a few moles—one of them was a real beauty who came from NSA. That weakens the script. He was kind enough to send me the seventh revision of the script and I cleaned it up the best I could but by that time some of the other stuff was already in the can and you couldn't change it. There are a few things that ended up in the picture but basically he did a pretty good job. At least what he did manage to get done proves how absolutely abominable the Warren Report is with its one-man-killer stuff. If other people want to believe such a thing then there isn't much other way to look at the film. He had a lot of opposition and that means very clever opposition.

RM: I find it interesting that they can send in moles so effectively. Was he aware that he had bad people inside?

FP: Yes, I am the one who found them. I knew them. The outfit I was with when I worked with the

Secretary of Defense was in charge of NSA. Try to find my old book *The Secret Team* and you'll see what I put in the charter of the office in which I worked. Of all the things we were responsible for, one of the things was the NSA. Once I got certain leads I could check out the people pretty well and accurately. I found Stone had a whole house-full. That sort of thing is inevitable because that is their business.

RM: I probably should let you go because it is getting late there for you. I have you on our mailing list to receive the paper so just let me know if you want off the list, otherwise we'll just send it every week.

FP: That's very kind of you because I keep looking for something that has enough validity to it to be worth the time. I'll say the other side though, if you are working on a subject that you think falls within the areas of which we have been speaking, if you send me a draft I might be able to keep a few glitches out. I keep pretty busy but would be glad to help.

RM: It has been a real pleasure talking with you and I look forward to speaking with you again.

FP: OK, it has been very nice to meet you, Rick, and I have been pleased for the conversation.

RM: Thank you so much and I certainly thank you for your time.

FP: Good night.

CHAPTER 3

A HISTORY OF JUDICIAL CORRUPTION IN AMERICA

by Ray Bilger 7/5/96

In Part III of the series, Judicial Corruption at JAMS and Beyond, it was mentioned briefly that at the time of the birth of the United States of America there was a very strong anti-lawyer sentiment. Most people today, however, may not be aware of, or understand, the long ingrained basis for the Colonists' feelings in this regard. This article will provide some important background on how we've arrived at the point where we now find ourselves.

The Supreme Court's decision in Faretta v. California, 422 U.S. 806 (1975), provides a rather interesting and informative view of the Colonial period in America, and of the English judicial system which preceded it. We quote here variously, beginning at page 820 of the decisions, (quoting:)

In the long history of British criminal jurisprudence, there was only one tribunal that ever adopted a practice of forcing counsel upon an unwilling defendant in a criminal proceeding. The tribunal was the Star Chamber. That curious institution, which flourished in the late 16th and early 17th centuries, was of mixed executive and Judicial character, and characteristically departed from common law traditions.

The court of Star Chamber was an efficient, somewhat arbitrary arm of royal power. It was at the height of its career in the days of the Tudor and Stuart kings. Star Chamber stood for swiftness and powers it was not a competitor of the common law so much as a limitation on it—a reminder that high state policy could not safely be entrusted to a system so chancy as English law...

Counsel... had to be cautious that any pleadings they signed would not unduly offend the Crown.

For those reasons, and because it specialized in trying "political offenses, the Star Chamber has for centuries symbolized disregard of basic individual rights.

In 1632 William Prynne was informed against for his book called *Histrio Mastix*. Prynne's answer was, amongst other things, that his book had been licensed... He was sentenced to be disbarred and deprived of his university degrees; to stand twice in the pillory (a device with holes for the head and hands), and to have one ear cut off each times to be fined 5,000 pounds and to be perpetually imprisoned, without books, pen, ink, or paper... Prynne was himself a lawyer.

Five years after this, in 1637, Prynne, Bastwick, and Burton, were tried for libel, and were all sentenced to the same punishment as Prynne had received in 1632, Prynne being branded on the cheeks instead of losing his ears.

The Star Chamber was swept away in 1641 by the revolutionary fervor of the Long Parliament.

With the Treason Act of 1695, there began a long and important era of reform in English criminal procedure. The 1695 statute granted to the accused traitor the rights to a copy of the indictment, to have his witnesses testify under oath, and "to make... full Defense, by Counsel learned in the Law."

In the American Colonies the insistence upon a right of self-representation was, if anything, more fervent than in England.

The colonists brought with them an appreciation of the virtues of self-reliance and a traditional distrust of lawyers. When the Colonies were first settled, "the lawyer was synonymous with the cringing Attorneys-General and Solicitors-General of the Crown and the arbitrary Justices of the King's Court, all bent on the conviction of those who opposed the King's prerogatives, and twisting the law to secure convictions." This prejudice gained strength in the Colonies where "distrust of lawyers became an institution." Several Colonies prohibited pleading for hire in the 17th century (notably, Massachusetts (1641), and also Virginia, Connecticut, and the Carolinas), The prejudice persisted into the 18th century as "the lower classes came to identify lawyers with the upper class." The years of Revolution and Confederation saw an upsurge of anti-lawyer sentiment, a "sudden revival, after the War of the Revolution, of the old dislike and distrust of lawyers as a class." In the heat of these sentiments the Constitution was forged." (End quoting)

It was for the above reasons that the Framers of the Constitution, in Art. I, Sec. 9, C1. 8, forbid anyone holding a title of nobility from holding any office of trust in the United States. The *Thirteenth Amendment*, passed in 1819, made this even more explicit that no lawyers would be in government. But corrupt sleight of hand eliminated this from the public consciousness by the end of the Civil War.

There are those who feel that our courts today bear some similarity to the Star Chamber. But even if they take everything we have, they still leave our ears intact, and our cheeks unblemished. Those things, including the Vincent Van Gogh look, have been relegated to what we now call cruel and unusual punishment. But do our courts function as originally intended?

People today may be operating under a misconception of how our so-called "Civilized Society" was meant to function. As it has been explained to this author, there is a five-tiered arrangement to our existence, within organized society, as follows:

God Man Constitution Government Bureaucrats

In this arrangement, all power flows from the top downward. The use of the word "God" may not be appreciated by some, and is certainly not used here to give any religious connotation. But most will, if they think about it seriously, agree that there is some kind of "Creative Forces that has made the universe as we know it. There does, after all, appear to be some sort of design to it, even though we may not fully comprehend what it is.

Anyway, as it was explained, all of our Rights come from God, to Man. (The use of the word "Man" signifies Mankind, so the masculine includes the feminine, or the feminine also includes the masculine, if you wish.)

Man then creates Constitutions to clearly establish those Rights, and to set forth the parameters within which a Government will function, and to clearly explain how Bureaucrats are to operate under that Government.

All of this was well and just and looked good on paper when our *Constitution* was drafted. But time, along with Man's ingenuity, cunning, and greed, has a way of eroding even the greatest accomplishments. So it is, as it is today, that this whole arrangement has been turned completely up-side down.

Our Bureaucrats have taken the role of our Masters, God has been thrown out the window, and that old *Constitution* merely kept for window dressing—there so that it can be pointed to to say, see, it's still there. Well, if our *Constitution* is still there, it is almost dead, and being maintained only by life support systems. Sad but true.

It is perhaps time that we ask ourselves, just what is Law? Frederic Bastiat, in his book entitled *The Law* (1850), states that, "The law is the organization of the natural right of lawful defense. It is the substitution of a common force for individual forces. And this common force is to do only what the individual forces have a natural and lawful right to dos to protect persons, liberties, and properties to maintain the right of each, and to cause Justice to reign over us all." This sounds like the intent of our *Constitution*.

Black's Law Dictionary, 4th Revised Edition (1968), at pages 1028 and 1029, contains a rather lengthy definition of Law. It states in part, "Rule of civil conduct commanding what is right and prohibiting what is wrong. General rule of human action, taking cognizance only of external acts, enforced by a determinate authority, which authority is human, and among human authorities is that which is paramount in a political society. Long established local custom which has the force of law. Doctrine or procedure of the common law, from which equity is a departure. Constitution or constitutional provision." These definitions comport with what is right and just and constitutional.

Our *Declaration of Independence* opens with a recognition of the Higher Law to which The People are entitled "When in the course of human events it becomes necessary for one people to dissolve the political bands which have connected them with another, and to assume among the powers of the earth, the separate and equal station to which the Laws of Nature and of Nature's God entitle them..."

Sir William Blackstone clearly defined the Law of Nature as follows: "Man... must necessarily be subject to the laws of his Creator... This will of his Maker is called the law of nature ... This law of nature... is of course superior to any other... No human laws are of any validity, if contrary to this and such of them as are valid derive all their force... from this original."

Blackstone understood that in order for the laws of man to be valid, they would have to be made in pursuance of the Laws of Nature. This is in harmony with our *Constitution* for the United States of

America, at Article VI, Section 2, which states in parts "This Constitution, and the laws of the United States which shall be made in Pursuance thereof... shall be the supreme law of the land; and the Judges in every State shall be bound thereby..." (Emphasis added)

The Supreme Court of the United States clarified the above Section of the *Constitution* in the case of Marbury v. Madison (1803), 5 U.S. 137, 180, where the Court held, "that in declaring what shall be the supreme law of the land, the constitution itself is first mentioned; and not the laws of the United States generally, but those only which shall be made in pursuance of the constitution, have that rank."

The Supreme Court of the United States, in their decision of Norton v. Shelby County (1886), 118 U.S. 425, 442, held that, "An unconstitutional Act is not a law; it confers no rights; it imposes no duties; it affords no protection; it creates no office; it is, in legal contemplation, as inoperative as though it had never been passed."

It would seem that since our *Constitution* is the supreme law of the land, and all laws must be made in pursuance of that *Constitution*, we should expect that Constitutional Law would be the operative law of the United States of America!!

Bastiat goes on to say that, "If a nation were founded on this basis, it seems to me that order would prevail among the people, in thought as well as in deed. It seems to me that such a nation would have the most simple, easy to accept, economical, limited, non-oppressive, just, and enduring government imaginable— whatever its political form might be." This author could not agree more.

However, in this equation we also have that unpredictable variable we call Man. And, as Bastiat so eloquently points out, "When they can, they wish to live and prosper at the expense of others. This is no rash accusation. Nor does it come from a gloomy and uncharitable spirit. The annals of history bear witness to the truth of its the incessant wars, mass migrations, religious persecutions, universal slavery, dishonesty in commerce, and monopolies. This fatal desire has its origins in the very nature of man—in that primative, universal, and insuppressible instinct that impels him to satisfy his desires with the least possible pain."

But today there appears to be a general awakening taking place in Mankind, slower to be realized in some than in others, that we can no longer continue we in the past and yet have any expectation of surviving very much longer into the future. Those who, being in positions of power, fight against this progressive change, are the ones who will doom us to self destruction if those of us who now know better do not soon correct the situation to that five-tiered arrangement set forth above. This is the challenge now before us, and we are all in the very crucible wherein this problem will be corrected, if it is to be corrected, or else we shall all suffer together should we fail to meet our challenge.

It was not intended that this work should take such a philosophical turn, so let us continue to explore our original direction, the corruption now destroying America (and the world, for that matter).

It is the proper function of the Judicial Branch of Government to enforce what is right and just. Only those who are blind would say that this is what is now happening, while those who can see know that

there is more enforcement of that which is wrong and unjust. This is so because the courts are enforcing legislation that has been clearly designed to destroy rights, rather than defend them. So, in order to correct our corrupt judicial system, we will have to correct our corrupt legislatures. And that will be most difficult, indeed, as long as there are lawyers in the Congress and the legislatures.

It would appear that the proper function of lawyers is to defend people in court, not to create legislation which insures them ever more work in those courts. The next logical question would be, how then do we get our original *Thirteenth Amendment* reinstated? Now there's a challenge. We would have to bring it to the fore in the media by incessantly pointing it out and holding it up for all to see. The controlled media would no doubt ignore the issue for as long as they could, given the fact that they are lap dogs, not watch dogs.

Patience, persistence, and perseverance will enable us to achieve any task we set our minds to, especially if the task being pursued is of noble enough character that its accomplishment be determined by forces beyond those of purely human control.

Our present course compels us to this, perhaps the greatest challenge facing Humanity todays Can we turn this "mess" around that all may enjoy Freedom? For, as goes America, so goes the world: If Freedom be lost here, it will be lost for all.

CHAPTER 4

MIDNIGHT FOR AMERICA AS THE BELL TOLLS FOR THEE

by Colonel (Ret.) James Ammerman

Editor's note: Col. James Ammerman has served in three wars. He's been around and he KNOWS. And he doesn't like what he's seeing happening to America. In explicitly clear language, Col. Ammerman tells it like it is at great personal risk. For those of you who look for confirmations of the information published in CONTACT, here it is.

Is the hour too late for the American people to wake up in time? Will America's Constitution just become a historical document, to be mentioned in passing in future propaganda books under some restrictive regime? Will the Christians continue to be persecuted, as Col. Ammerman suggests, or will religious freedom once again find expression? We shall see.

7/1/96 RICK MARTIN

JA: Good evening, this is Jim Ammerman.

RM: Yes, this is Rick Martin. I'm with a newspaper called *CONTACT*: *THE PHOENIX PROJECT* out of Las Vegas. I have you on a speaker phone, I must apologize. It probably sounds pretty bad on your end. I was just given your number as someone to call who has, apparently, very timely information and I'm wondering, one, if you wouldn't mind talking to me, and two, if you wouldn't mind if I recorded it?

JA: That's ok, go ahead.

RM: OK. Can you just tell me a little about what's going on. Apparently there are some things happening right now as we speak that I need to know about and the man who gave me your number didn't give me much to go on.

JA: Well, actually, I'm not sure but that we're losing our freedom even while we talk, here in America. Some things are going on that should never happen. They are unconstitutional and they are guided by people who believe in the downfall of America. And they believe in a One World Government, and to go to that you have to lose the sovereignty of these United States.

See, I spent over 26 years on active duty wearing the uniform of this country through three wars. And I served in so many various places. I started out with the Navy. I later was in the Army, and I served as a Green Beret and worked with the CIA. And I recognize some of the signs of what's happening. First of all, you need to know that right now they're practicing a Multi-Jurisdictional Task Force, and these people have all been trained down at Ft. Polk, Louisiana. They are comprised of several different nations, not only our own troops, but from CIS nations; former USSR people, as well as FBI and CIA—CIA is not allowed to operate within the limits of the United States but they

do, and this is contrary to their charter by the government.

RM: That's right.

JA: And then, the FBI and the police from several cities who have already been trained and are identified as being under the jurisdiction of the FBI when the FBI so decides. And they, right now, are practicing the cover-story of "No Terrorism" in the Olympics in Atlanta, and practicing "population control" of a major, one of the top 10 cities in population, of the United States. Right before our eyes, and nobody is saying a word.

RM: And you're talking about Atlanta?

JA: Atlanta, Georgia. And right now, and of course it's been going on for over two weeks, before the games even start, if someone lives outside the loop and they work inside the loop, they have to have a "special pass". Now all of this makes a nice story and people swallow it, and all that, but at the same time, 10 days ago, 10 and 9 days ago, they pulled off a house-to-house search in Pittsburgh, PA. until finally the populace got so stirred up, and they got the mayor and the city fathers stirred up, and they began to call other people in Washington and got it stopped. The whole thing was unconstitutional. I lived in the military, my best years. And if you're going to exercise some kind of a maneuver off the military reservation, you always notify the leaders. You always notify the police and the county sheriffs and people know what's going on. And if you want to search a house, you have to have a search warrant, in these United States, if we still have the *Bill of Rights*.

Well, all these things are going under right while we're talking. Now, additionally, out in New Mexico there is an exercise going on called "Rolling Sands" and there are over 30,000 troops involved in that. And again, they're multi-national troops. And all of this is a practice for controlling the United States in a military, police take-over. And they are assembling people now out in Miramar Naval Station (CA), and the basis of that is that there may be some disturbances in August concerning the Republican Convention. That doesn't take place until later in August. And so they're already doing that, and of course, on the basis that some "wet-backs" may cause trouble, or something like that. The thing is, they're practicing controlling from north of L.A. to south of the Mexican border. And from the Pacific Ocean, clear on through to where "Rolling Sands" is going on in New Mexico. So that is a regional operation there.

All this ties in, and I think the order has come from the Bilderberger's meeting of three to four weeks ago, up in Canada—which, at the same time, the same week, the Illuminati meeting was going on. And those two are overlapping groups. I think the signal was given by the world power-brokers—and they're basically headed up by David Rockefeller—and said it's time to bring America down. And, of course, there will be a One World Government, unless we are stronger than anything the United Nations can bring to bear against us. And we are, no longer, that strong.

Now, there are a lot of other things contingent to this going on.

RM: Feel free to just speak. Tell me what you know, because this is a truly free press and we will publish it.

JA: Right now they are trying to control the population in homes and everything else to include, down at Roswell, New Mexico, both military and the civilian planes coming in. A friend of mine called and said that "I was unable to pick up a man that I was to meet at the airport because I couldn't enter the civilian side of the airport." You know, this is supposed to be a free country. We're losing, fast, everything our founding fathers and everyone since then who was a red-blooded American have lived and died for. Somehow we need to get it stopped. But, you see, these actions are approved at the highest level and beyond the highest level of the U.S. Government.

RM: That's right.

JA: And I know that no one can sit in the oval office today unless he has sold out to the Bilderbergers and globalists and the traitors to America. And that's what is happening, right now. And I guess we shouldn't expect much different when we have a draft-dodging guy who loathes the military as a Commander and Chief. And all of these are a matter of record. I'm not saying anything people shouldn't know and realize.

RM: You're not going to get any argument on this end.

JA: No, but we have people letting party loyalty sink our country. And they ought to say, "We're gonna fight for what is right and vote for it, and who is right and vote for them." But, of course, many of the elections—we should insist on no electronic devices connected to the voting booth.

RM: It's just vote-scam, completely controlled.

JA: That means that we have basically lost our free country.

RM: Now, you spent many years in the military and you had exposure to the CIA, and you're aware of what is going on and the scope of which is going on—do you see, or do you have any sense of whether or not there is a consciousness among the leaders within the American military that this is taking place, one, and that there would be a rallying, if push came to shove, at any point in our future?

JA: I have some senior military people who are in command positions who have said, "Remember our oaths as officers. That we will support and defend the *Constitution of the United States* against all enemies...

RM: Foreign and domestic.

JA: ...foreign and domestic." Now they're not worried about the foreign ones so much, they're worried about the domestic ones. But the domestic ones are letting the foreign ones in. And, of course, about a third of the people who work in the White House can't get a security clearance. Yet they are handling the secrets of this nation. There is a saying in the military—people of that quality, if they were in the military, we wouldn't give clearance to read the morning newspaper. They're not trustworthy. And you may quote me on this. The problem with America is, in the White House the crooks and the queers are running our country. They are running and ruining our country. And I'm

not politically correct, so don't expect me to be.

RM: We're a politically incorrect newspaper.

JA: Well, good for you. And I hope that we haven't started sounding the alarm too late, but I'm afraid maybe we have. We have let foreign officers and men go into every military installation, including the most top-secret place that we have U.S. forces in Europe. Down at Stuttgart at Patch Barracks, where the EuCon commander and the U.S. Army commander, one man is wearing two 4-star hats there—and he has one deputy who is American, and one who is Russian, both 3-star generals, under him. That is the most top-secret place that we have in our U.S. forces in Europe. And so, here is someone who knows everything we have. It's a VERY classified place. I had a top-secret clearance, was still on active duty, went to see my son-in-law who was an infantry colonel there and he had to sign for me to enter the building and that I would be in his sight at all times while I was there. Now that's how top-secret it is. I will say one thing for that general, while I was in Germany just recently, about a month ago, he said openly in the *Stars & Stripes*, which is a military newspaper for Europe, he said, "Our military is not as strong as we've said and we could not fight two regional wars at one time." Of course the administration says, "Oh, yes we can." And this general, who must be getting ready to retire, said that we could not redo ONE again like Desert Storm, unless they gave us six months lead time to get ready to fight it.

RM: Makes sense.

JA: He must figure that he's at the end of his career or maybe he is just bold enough as a patriot to go ahead and tell the truth. But I take my hat off to a man like him.

Now, our American people are also deceived about what's going on in Bosnia and Macedonia, both parts of the former Yugoslavia.

You see, when medical army specialist Michael New refused to serve in his outfit, he had not refused when they went to Kuwait. He had not refused any previous duty. But what happened was, a Finnish general was put in command of the troops down in Macedonia. And I have read the newspaper, which at that time was at the headquarters of the division, and the division is still headquartered there, but they've changed the number of the infantry division. But the division that was there was Third Infantry. They go clear back to World War I, and they were real heros, and they were called the Marn Division (named after a medal in France), and so their newspaper was called the Marn Crusader. And in there was a story, and this is the official newspaper of that division—how this Finnish general had said that when he assumed command of American troops under a United Nations flag, with United Nations add-ons to our uniforms (which can only be authorized by Congress and it was not)—and he said we have made history now with me assuming command. And so, at that point, Michael New, who had been home-schooled and taught the U.S. Constitution, as well as the fact that he understand his oath of enlistment, which was to support and defend the Constitution of the United States, not the Charter of the United Nations.

RM: Right.

JA: And he refused to do it because it was a totally illegal, unconstitutional order. That same headquarters, convened by a general officer, he was given a court martial and he was found guilty of disobeying a legal order. Well, it wasn't a legal order. Now I have talked with his attorney, who is a retired Colonel, Marine, and who had served as an undersecretary of defense—I spoke with him in Washington and he purposely did not read all of Presidential Directive 25, because if he had he could not talk about it in court because it's classified. But, they had a military attorney helping him and the military attorney DID read it, and if I was an attorney working on the case, I'd sure share with my partner everything he needed to know. But formally and officially, Colonel Ray said, "I did not read it." And I think he is a very fine man of integrity and he's a patriot. But here is a young solder that shouldn't have ever had to raise the issue. Senior officers, generals should have said, "Wait a minute!" But I have a copy of a speech given by former Chief of Naval Operations of the Navy, named Crow, who, a year ago this past month, spoke to the graduates at Annapolis and said, "In the future our allegiance will be to a One World Government, not to the United States." And so this thing is being taught to our future officers and leaders of the military. And these things concern me.

RM: As well they should.

JA: Yes, they should, because I see what's down the road and it's happening so quick that—you know, when people ask me how long do you think we'll be a free nation? I say, "Well, maybe until Thanksgiving. Maybe until the end of July. I do not know. But I'll tell you, it's not for our lifetime." And, at the most, at the very, very most, it would be four years. But I don't think it will be longer than four months.

RM: Now, are you a retired Colonel?

JA: I'm a retired Colonel, I still carry an I.D. card, and I can still be court-martialed under the Universal Code of Military Justice, and I KNOW that.

RM: And what was your service?

JA: I served, first of all, in the Navy when I was a teenager. I finished high school before I was 16, joined the Navy when I was 17, in 1942, and went off to World War II. I came back in from the fleet under a fleet competitive arrangement and I became a naval aviator. I finished up down in Pensacola and the war ended and I got out on combat points. I went to college in seminary and pastored a while, then entered the U.S. Army as a chaplain and served for a quarter of a century there. And, I served with the Green Berets, and that's the reason I recognize some things in the news that other people read over and either don't understand or are confused by it, such as population control devices.

RM: I just completed a several-part series on population control in *CONTACT*, so I'm very aware of the subject.

JA: Listen: Ted Turner, with his "not-so-Fonda", Jane wife, who should have been executed publicly not later than 1975 as a traitor, which she is; which she was. But, of course, you'd have to stand in line behind the guy named Bill Clinton, so you couldn't do that.

Well, let's get on back—when they began to talk about population control out of Cairo a couple of years ago, they first said we need to reduce the population of the world by twenty-five percent in the next twenty years. Although the Pope had sent a commission down there that said that they had done their study and you could put all of the people in the world in the state of Texas—remember, I'm sitting right here in Dallas, Texas, tonight. And it would be no more crowded than the average American city. Now, you couldn't raise all the food and supply all of the water, but as far as living "space", it could be done. And yet, out official representative who is the Vice-President, Al Gore, that famous "tree-hugger" guy, you know, so he came back and he went along with all of that. In fact, as they began to do their follow-on reports, they upped the figure to forty percent of the world's population needs to be desiccated in the next twenty years. You can't do all of that by birth control, even if you practice abortions, partial-birth abortions, because there are more than that that would be alive that are already here now. So you're going to have to kill off the population. Ted Turner stated, some two months ago, and this is almost a direct quote, "We need to reduce the population of the world in the next twenty years, to around 250 million to 350 million people." That means that 19 out of every 20 people alive tonight have to be done away with in the next twenty years.

RM: That's right.

JA: Well, I'm sure my name, being Ammerman, is, alphabetically, pretty high on the list. They won't just march me in as a lamb to the slaughter. I believe in standing and defending this free country, this great country that we have, that our founding fathers and others have hazarded their fortunes and lives for, as have I. And I will do so as long as I am alive, because I believe in this country and, in fact, I believe that God raised up this country for His very own special purposes and now the enemy is trying to destroy it.

RM: Well, I think God may have His hand in before all is said and done, as well.

JA: Yes. God is still on the throne. And I want all our listeners, your readers, to know that I am not a pessimist. I just simply believe that I am a realist and that we need to wake-up our good Americans, many of whom are oblivious to what's happening. And we could turn this nation around, throw out all the crooks, and again have a free country. But it's not going to be easy, now, because we've let it progress so far.

RM: Well you realize that part of the problem we have in this country is that the America population has not been educated for several decades now, and the dumbing-down of the country has been so well planned and so well thought out that there is, through the mesmerization by the media, newspapers, television, in particular, movies, there is almost a lack of will within the American people to have the fortitude and the courage and the stamina to really, one, want to know what's going on and, two, really give a damn to actually do something about it. And, I would say that the drive has gone out of the country, through the dumbing-down of the American people.

JA: Well, you see, the Socialists and the Communists, and they're almost interchangeable in every case, have gotten hold of the major news media. They've gotten hold of the major entertainment, and if anybody says to me that what happens on TV doesn't influence your conduct, I have one

standard answer and they always shut their mouth, swallow, and do an about-face and leave.

RM: (Laughter.)

JA: And here's my answer: If TV does not effect your conduct, then the greatest fraud perpetrated in America is selling advertising time on TV. And our big companies aren't that dumb, because it DOES change your conduct and what you buy and who you buy from.

RM: Sure it does.

JA: If it does that, it does it with entertainment and it does it in the news media.

RM: Yep.

JA: And so, the Socialists who would destroy this country and they want all of us, except the Elite, to be the "little people" and the only ones to pay taxes because the big people don't pay taxes, they have some smart lawyer getting them out of the tax-paying business. I'm sure that David Rockefeller doesn't pay as many taxes as I do, and I don't have a very big income. But, you see, I don't have somebody taking care of all the details so I can avoid paying taxes. And those people plan to do away with the free population.

Now what they haven't figured out—Ted Turner is supposed to be a smart man. He is a RICH man and he's a mogul in the news industry, but what he hasn't figured out is, if that is all the people who are left, who is going to take care of all the things that he wants to have with all his millions and billions of dollars? Somewhere along the way you have to have the worker-bee.

RM: What good is an empire without slaves. Right?

JA: Yeah. And so, if they want to make slaves out of us and then still live, as did some of the kings of olden days with serfs—and they're rapidly taking care of us owning property. I just talked to a man who lives in the suburbs of San Francisco, I'm talking about last week. And he said, "I can no longer do anything with most of my land because once a year there are a few little special flowers that bloom there, so I can't use that part of it. And they think that, maybe, a neighbor saw some kind of a little old toad on another piece of my land, so I'm not allowed to touch it. "But," he said, "I still have to pay taxes on all of it."

So they'll tax him out of ownership of his own property.

RM: Well, if you're paying taxes, there is no ownership.

JA: That's right, exactly. And, of course, we haven't really been under the *Constitution* since March 1933.

RM: That's right.

JA: And all these dictatorial Executive Orders, now are fast grabbing the remaining tenets of our freedom.

RM: The Multi-Jurisdictional Task Force is not something new, or something that has come about overnight, it's been in the planning stages for a very long time. What do you see happening next, over the next month or two? Obviously they are really gearing-up for the Olympic Games. Do you see a series of staged events?

JA: Well, yes I do. And they could immediately, and a very easy one to do, because we're due for a stockmarket "adjustment", which I spell c-o-l-l-a-p-s-e. But, if that happened, the streets would be filled with people who would come in and kill you for your last can of food. And at that point you could declare Martial Law and most of the people would say we had to have it. Or the President's plane could crash, like Ron Brown's was caused to crash, or get him to commit suicide by shooting himself through the heart twice, like the Chief of Naval Operations. You know, what's wrong with our—I used to trust the FBI. I asked a retired FBI man with over thirty years service, I said, "What percent of our FBI can we trust?"

And he thought a while and he said, "Well, maybe ten percent, now." There was a time when it was a very trustworthy organization, but not any more. And I know that there are military people who sold their soul for one more promotion, but there are some very good people in these organizations, they're just outnumbered so many times, anymore. But I believe that part of the strength of America is our military and our former military people.

RM: That's right.

JA: And so, I'm hearing, and I can not prove this—I'll probably get some notification—by the 17th of this current month of July, 1996 they're going to have a national muster. That's a role-call of anyone who ever wore the uniform. And I guess they need to identify all of us because they know that we were trained to fight and we're not afraid to stand up for what's right. And maybe we're the enemy. The fact is, the enemy are those who would come against us. You know, we should remember our oath and say, "I will defend, not only against foreign but against domestic."

And I am having officers in key places who are commanders to say, "How bad do things get before my oath kicks-in to the domestic side?" So, they're not thoughtless people out there who just take orders. And I don't know how this thing will play itself out, but I'm sure that we have National Guard units that are pretty well equipped who would say, "We're more citizen than we are soldier, and so we are going to stand up for *we-the-people*."

Now, I don't think the people in Washington have really stayed in touch with us out here in the hinterland. I don't think they understand the heart of great Americans, men and women, who would gladly, if need be, sacrifice their life to keep this. The home of the brave and the land of the free. And I think that they are missing that. But so many of them have sold themselves out a little bit at a time that, like the frog in the water that got hot and cooked him—they haven't realized that they've changed their colors and they don't know what has been done in Washington.

Of course, part of the problem are the Federal Judges who have become dictators. They not only write Public Law—there's one here in Dallas who says, "Don't mention the *Constitution* to me. My court's not under the "*Constitution*". And when I first heard that, I thought this man ought to be impeached and put off the bench. But the fact is...

RM: Well, it's Admiralty Law.

JA: He is right. We have been out from under the *Constitution* since 1933, and any president could declare the emergency over and get us out from under that—but he would lose his dictatorial powers if he did that. Don't count on any president being that strong in this day and time.

RM: You mentioned that you were with the Green Berets for a while, have you had any contact with Bo Gritz?

JA: Oh, yes, I've met him and I've followed events about him in the news and all. He's a very brave and courageous man. He's probably too strong willed and too much of a patriot to ever be elected to public office, which, of course, he ran for the presidency. He probably did that to have a platform to be heard more than on the hopes of being elected. But we have other men who are brave and courageous who will stand up and be counted, when the time comes. The only thing that bothers me is, do we have enough interface between all the patriots that we could fight the enemy from within, which is aided and abetted by the enemy from without—from the CIS nations and so forth.

You know, we've just given one Air Force base to the Germans, so we have that there now. For a number of years, the Germans have had part of Ft. Bliss, Texas out of El Paso, where they train their air defense officers because they don't have enough air space to train them back on the continent of Europe. And I've been out there. I speak some German. The signs are in German. They have so many people there, they have two German Army chaplains with them. One German Lutheran, and one Roman Catholic, plus schools for the dependent children, and on and on. And all the signs are in German. So, you're really in little Germany when you're in part of Ft. Bliss. But now, we've given them an Air Force base as well. But that doesn't bother me as much as giving part of a famous old defense of the harbor there in San Francisco, called the Presidio of San Francisco—we gave one of the finest administration buildings, brought it up to better than new and gave it to old Gorbie, as his presidential library. And that picture from an aerial view was very clear. It was in the *Dallas Morning News* and a story, about a third of a page about it, and I have yet to talk to anyone in Dallas who even saw it. If they're that blind, how in the world are we gonna get them to open their eyes?

RM: That's the ten-thousand-dollar question, isn't it?

JA: Yes. And, of course, they gave him the finest set of quarters that the Coast Guard Admiral used to live in there, who was in charge of the West Coast—and brought it up to better than new, and that's now Gorbachev's palace, paid for by the tax-payer of America who is paying the enemy to come and abide on our shores. We need to do something about this and I hope you'll spread the word as far as you can.

RM: Any other closing remarks?

JA: I think our religious people should be aware of what's happening. There is a bill, it's a treaty, waiting over at the Senate and has been for close to a year. It came out of Rio de Janeiro, where the other meeting was on bio-diversity. And that treaty has already been sent over by our sitting president and the Senate, and I checked the last time I was in Washington—and they're just letting it collect dust. If anyone wants to ask about it, ask your congressman or senator, it's \$103-20. And what it's about is ten major points on having this world—some of these people are calling Nature, Mother God Nature—and that doesn't make me too comfortable. But point number nine of the ten says that if this is enacted, the state religion for these United States—see, our *Constitution* said, "separation of church and state". No religious group can have priority over another. And here they are saying that if that is approved, number nine of the sections of that treaty would be that **Nature worship would become the national state religion in America**.

RM: (Whistle.)

JA: Now it's about time the Christians stood up on their hind legs and acted like people, not like sheep. Because if that happens to us, there goes your religious faith.

RM: Do you see the Christian Coalition as being a divisive force within America or a uniting force?

JA: Well, things have gone so far toward the persecution of Christians that they're a divisive force now. You see, when any group of people are not treated fairly by the major news media, which Christians have not been for at least ten years, then other people and other bureaucrats—whether it's the law or the IRS or whatever—can say, well we don't have to treat them fair because everyone knows that they are the whipping boy and the news won't give them a fair shake if we do mistreat them. And so, Christians are being persecuted and it's getting more severe all the time.

You know, Al Capone got eleven years for all his crimes. I have a minister friend whose son was employed by a man who ran a land scam in Florida. This man was on salary. He was making no money out of the scam other than an average salary for that position. You know, by the fact that he took his father's retirement money, \$150,000 was all he had to look forward to living off of, and invested that in this program and then it was all lost when there was a land bust down in Florida—just a few years ago. That trial just finished recently. Now, compared to Al Capone, how long do you think that this man—by the way, the other man turned state's evidence to hang the people who worked for him and he got away with a probated sentence, but this minister's son—they began to run in the newspaper, "Noted Minister's Son Engaged In Fraud", cheats the widows out of their money, and on and on. He got forty-five years. He should have done like Al Capone and he'd have gotten off much better, but because he was a Christian, then they gave him more than if he had committed murder. Now that's persecution of Christians.

I also know a fine Christian man that the IRS in Kansas City—he's in a federal prison there, as is his wife, and have been for nine months, without a trial, because they would not produce records beyond three years to the IRS. When they were audited for one year, zero was found wrong. The man is a CPA, he knows how to keep records. Then, two more years back, and nothing wrong. They asked for clear back seven years and he said, "I don't have to present that because there is no indication of fraud."

And they said, "Well, we want them anyway."

And he said, "Well, I know your regulations and laws. You have given me a letter in advance saying that if you don't find anything I'm not held responsible for it that long back."

They refused to do it and had him brought into federal court. The judge asked if he was going to present them and he cited the existing regulations on it and the judge turned to two U.S. constables and said, "Take him to federal prison and hold him until I tell you to release him." No trial.

And the judge said, "Oh, his wife is in these papers, too. Take her." And both of them have been in federal prison for nine months without a trial.

Is this still a free America? I think it is a very valid, timely question.

RM: Do you know their names?

JA: Oh yes. Warren Black.

RM: And do you know where they are being held?

JA: They're being held in the federal penitentiary out at Leavenworth.

RM: Ok.

JA: And I keep in touch with them. Now, I went up there and I have quite a few connections there. I know the senior federal prison chaplain. I've known him for 23 years. I was the post chaplain at Leavenworth. I have credentials that I carry with me, and I could not get in to see that man. And his son, who keeps me informed on things, tells me what's going on with his father and mother. If it was me, I'd be calling for the militia or something to come and get me out of prison. But they're very law abiding, peaceable, Christian people, and they feel like justice will happen someway, sometime. I'm telling you, I would have every thing going in the world that I could get hold of, if that happened to me. I'm certainly not a pacifist in any sense. I guess you could tell that already.

RM: I was going to say, I got that feeling.

JA: (Laughter.)

RM: (Laughter.)

JA: Well, I killed my first Germans back before I was 18 years old. I was out at sea in a submarine, in the invasion of Sicily, which happened the week before I was 18. And I had to work through that. You know, sometimes it is the lesser of two evils and that's the best righteousness we can do. I believe we did the right thing when we dropped the bomb on Hiroshima, and later I was assigned to a unit in Japan that gave the support to the doctors and other scientists there. And I say we did a great thing because I've read Bruce Lee's book on *The Untold Story of World War II*, when, now, all

the things that we broke the code on between Japan and Hitler, and then Stalin later on. The very words, statements by the Japanese Government was, that had we invaded Japan it would have cost them up to 10 million Japanese lives, and would have cost America a million lives. And I say it is a pretty fair Christian trait to trade a hundred and fifty thousand lives for 11 million. I think God would smile on that. And yet we have some people who say, "Oh, America was so bad." All these crying ninnies, you know. "America was so bad, they dropped the bomb." Well, I think that is one of the best choices a president ever made, to save 11 million lives. And he knew this. He had been told this, but the general public had not, because we didn't want them to know that we had broken their codes. But if you want to read an interesting book: Bruce Lee, Crown Publishers, *The Untold Story of World War II*.

RM: You mentioned you were in three wars.

JA: Yes. In Korea, and in Vietnam. And I had a son who was also in Vietnam, was almost wiped out. I went back over there to see him on emergency leave, and by that time, Spring of 1971—I was in much earlier over there—and he stayed too long. He was there two years, of his own choosing.

RM: I would imagine it tended to sour you a bit.

JA: It was a disgusting thing. And, of course, if you have seen *Platoon*, remember. All the bad that happened in ten years of war was compressed into a couple of hours. And, yes, those things happened. There was a shoot-out in my son's outfit and the Blacks and the Whites shot each other and some of their leaders. And he still wanted to go back, with a loyalty to his unit. And he did go back and I thought that he'd be killed. But he's still alive and well. And when that plane lifted off from Da Nang and I looked down over the wing there, toward where he was, I said if my son goes back to his outfit, I'll see him next in a pine box. And I did not tell his mother the impression I had after spending fifteen days over there, watching what was going on. But just remember, all the bad of *Platoon* did not happen every day, or every two hours. It happened in a composite of ten years. But it's disgraceful to say that it even happened.

RM: Our readers are going to get to this point in the interview and they'll probably be very depressed. How about a few closing words of encouragement.

JA: Well, first of all, let me say that God is still on the throne. And that's the most encouraging thing I can say.

I can also say that, due to various alternative news media, the word is beginning to get out about how we have been deceived by the major news media. And there are good Americans who want the truth, and they're beginning to hear the truth. At this point, many of them have armed themselves because they have come to understand what our Founding Fathers said, and what they believed in. And if anyone thinks that we are going to lay down and roll over here in America, they haven't come to know America very well. They may know their own twisted mind and perverted selves, if they are a leader in government, but I'll tell you, they don't know the people out here who vote for them—that they deceived into voting for them—and then, squander our money, our tax dollars. They don't know the American people. And I believe that all we have to do is get the truth out to the American

people and we can stop all this evil. And I believe that Christian people alone can be the swing vote in any election nation wide, and well over half, probably two-thirds of the state elections across this nation. And then we can regain that which we've lost and God will help us do it. And I think that is a pretty encouraging word.

RM: Yes, it is. Thank you, Jim.

CHAPTER 5

<u>CLINTON—</u> THE END IS NEAR? by Eustace Mullins 7/9/96

Many Washington insiders are aware that the current FBI scandals involving illegal acquisition of personal FBI files on almost one thousand Republican Party opponents by Bill Clinton is certain to ring down the final curtain on the Bill and Hillary show. Always an outsider, Clinton failed to realize that when you are in Washington, you don't mess with the FBI. Americans outside the Beltway may find it difficult to grasp the seriousness of this latest imbroglio. The Clintons apparently survived the financial scandals of their Whitewater involvement because the public became confused about the long-running investigation and what it actually proved. It did not damage the Clintons because the central figure, White House lawyer Vince Foster, was removed before the story broke, one of the most convenient of the in-house "suicides" which have marked the Clinton Presidency.

ROOTS OF GOVERNMENT

The FBI scandal, on the other hand, shakes the very foundations of the present federal government. The Federal Bureau of Investigation is the government's police force. They are the hitmen who destroy any opposition. The FBI files have always been the basis of the entire government operation. It is the constant fear of exposure by revelations of these files that keeps both citizens and bureaucrats in line. These are known as "raw files" meaning that nothing in the FBI files has been subjected to any legal challenges or verification of any kind. They are largely rumors and gossip about sex scandals, fraud, conspiracy and treason, all of which would incur lengthy prison sentences if prosecuted. This dangerous information requires severe restrictions in the handling of FBI files.

When I applied for my personal file from the FBI through the Freedom of Information Act in 1978, the FBI notified me that I had a file of more than eight hundred pages, which I subsequently found was ten times the size of the FBI file which was maintained on John Dillinger, Public Enemy No. 1 for several years. FBI officials stipulated that before my files could be released to me, I must send them a notarized signature and a statement that I really was Eustace Mullins. They had had me under daily surveillance for thirty three years, but they still were not certain as to just who I really was. I supplied the necessary document, because I was now very anxious to see what they had on me. I had never been arrested or charged with any offence, and to my reckoning they could not have very much. I was not about to find out, because, after I complied with their requirement, FBI officials continued to stall me on sending the file for three more years. I am always very reluctant to ask anyone for assistance, but I finally called upon a college classmate, Senator John Warner of Virginia, for help in getting my file. He was glad to oblige, and within a few days, the FBI delivered to my door a partial release, five hundred pages of my file. The FBI explained that they were retaining more than three hundred pages of my file, on the grounds that to release it would "endanger national security". I appealed this ruling, but it was upheld by an executive commission of senior FBI officials. To date, I have never seen the other three hundred pages of my file.

FILES OPEN TO ALL AGENCIES

Few Americans know that their personal files are available for reading by any other government agency, on request. Jack Anderson, a Washington columnist, boasted for years that he could obtain any FBI file. The going rate was one thousand dollars per file, not as a bribe, but as a freewill offering! When President Clinton appointed a former barroom bouncer and drug user named Craig Livingstone (these were apparently his only qualifications for the job) as his White House Security Chief (reputedly on orders from Hillary Clinton: it turned out that Livingstone's mother was one of her oldest friends, and he needed a job desperately as he had been fired from previous positions for lying to his employers) Clinton must have rejoiced that he had at last found the perfect person for the job.

When Senator Joe McCarthy was in his heyday, he made headlines all over the world with his question "Who promoted Peress?" Dr. Peress was an Army medical officer who had been promoted despite grave doubts as to his loyalty to the United States and his ties to Communists. Today, the question in Washington is "Who hired Craig Livingstone?" He claims he had no idea who might have hired him for one of the most sensitive security positions in the entire United States. William Kennedy, a partner of Hillary in the Rose law firm, recently testified that he thought Vince Foster may have hired Livingstone. This was a safe bet, as Foster has been buried and cannot reply to any question from a government committee.

The *Washington Post* reported that Livingstone had been an advance man or promoter for a viciously anti-Christian movie, *The Last Temptation of Christ*. This would fit the Clinton requirements for White House staff, dedicated leftwing hippies who hate Christ, the military, and the United States of America.

As the Governor of a small rural state, Clinton has been accustomed to exercising total political power, a Gauleiter of an area which the rest of the country is not concerned about. When he assumed the office of the Presidency, he could think of no reason why he should not requisition the personal FBI files of his Republican opponents, to peruse them at his leisure in the White House, and to use the material in upcoming political campaigns. We might suppose that the files would contain very reliable documentation, the result of careful investigations by highly trained FBI agents, but in fact they are a mishmash of spite and innuendo, gathered by FBI agents from anyone who had cause to hate the subject of the investigation. These lurid compilations of vicious smears and rumors are duly deposited in the highly guarded files of the FBI, to remain there forever, and never to be contradicted or exposed by anyone. Such material is invaluable in the desperate infighting of a political campaign.

THE STRANGE CASE OF THE ONE THOUSAND FBI FILES

It is rare for any government agency to request more than a few files at a time, to review a job application, or to make a decision about a temporary employee. The White House went whole hog, requesting about one-thousand FBI files of their Republican opponents. This news was leaked to

the public very gradually. At first, it was but one FBI file, the file of Billy Dale, who had been fired from the White House Travel Office to make room for a Clinton cousin, at the personal insistence of Hillary.

Billy Dale had been arrested and charged with embezzlement by Janet Reno, again at the personal insistence of Hillary. He was promptly acquitted by a jury, which found no evidence against him. When a government committee on oversight demanded the release of one thousand documents concerning the Billy Dale case, the White House staff refused to turn over the documents—until they were faced with a subpoena.

When the papers were received, they contained references to other FBI files requisitioned by the White House. The first count was three hundred, then four-hundred-and-eight, and finally nine-hundred-and-eight. The Washington consensus is that more than one thousand FBI files had been requisitioned by the White House.

The White House requested the files by unsigned forms bearing the typed name of Bernie Nussbaum, White House counsel, who had been hired to replace the now deceased Vince Foster. Clinton immediately explained the incidents as "an innocent mistake". His staff chimed in with well-re-hearsed choruses of "bureaucratic snafu" and "honest mistake". As one of the inquiring Congressmen pointed out, the obtaining of these files involved some forty-three separate requests, so that there would have had to be forty-three individual "honest mistakes". Apparently there had been no "dishonest mistakes". Compare the delivering of one thousand personal FBI files to the White House over typed signature requests with the FBI's steadfast refusal to deliver one file, my own, to me, even with a notarized signature!

Never in the history of the FBI had anyone dared to request such a horrendous quantity of the sacrosanct FBI files. J. Edgar Hoover would have thrown any such request into the wastebasket. However, he was succeeded by a series of pathetic political dupes and stooges, scraped from the bottom of the barrel in Washington, the dregs of the entire nation who now were ushered into J. Edgar Hoover's hallowed precincts, there to squirm and dishonor themselves daily as prostitutes for ruthless political operatives such as the sleazy Bill Clinton.

FREEH A TOTAL NONENTITY

In choosing the present head of the FBI, Louis Freeh, President Bill Clinton knew that he had the complete stooge, a Jerry Lewis actor look-alike who would perform any silly antics and grin while doing it. Freeh willingly participated in FBI massacres of women and children, and promoted the FBI agents who had managed to exterminate the greatest numbers of helpless women and children. Now Freeh's head is on the block. What has yet to be dealt with in the FBI files scandal is the fact that even though the White House acted illegally in requesting the files, in open violation of the Privacy Acts, the cooperating FBI officials acted even more illegally in releasing them to the mysterious forms bearing only a typed signature of an alleged White House official. Such a request in mass would have had to be brought to Freeh's personal attention as director of the FBI, and he is the person who would ultimately have to answer if the scandal were to break, as it surely has. These files could only have gone out of the J. Edgar Hoover Building after Freeh had given his personal

approval.

RELIVING THE NIXON ERA

At the height of the Watergate scandal, pot-smoking young Jewish lawyers at the Department of Justice held wild drug and sex parties while playing the top secret Nixon tapes in the background. Many of the parties, weeklong in nature, were moved to Greenwich Village in New York's drug culture scene, where a party was not considered successful unless the forbidden Nixon tapes were playing in the background.

Under Craig Livingstone's aegis, as the hallowed director of security in the Clinton White House, the indecencies of the Nixon years were replayed. The FBI files of the Republican leaders were kept in an unlocked vault, with a copying machine nearby. Livingstone admitted in his testimony before Congress that he had no knowledge how many files were copied, by whom, or for what purpose, as the copying machine was set up to make no records of any kind relating to its use.

WALL STREET JOURNAL COMMENTARY

After Craig Livingstone's testimony under oath before a Congressional Committee, the *Wall Street Journal* duly reported on its editorial page, June 27, 1996: "So control over the Clinton White House's office of personnel security was given to Craig Livingstone, a punk, and Anthony Marceca, a political lowlife." Congressman Floyd Flake reported that he had had an altercation with Livingstone at National Airport, during which Livingstone called Flake "a dumb-ass nigger". The *Journal* observed that "no one at the White House has a clue how Craig Livingstone got this job." Its editors note that an FBI agent detailed to the White House since 1979, Dennis Sculimbrene, told a Senate committee that White House officials asked him to get information about Travel Office employees before they were fired. The *Journal* says "That was no 'innocent mistake'."

Two years ago, the *Journal* reported that hundreds of White House employees had failed to get security checks, because they were still undergoing drug tests. Most of them, including those who had access to the one thousand Republican FBI files, still today have not been able to obtain security clearances, and are going in and out of the White House daily on temporary passes! The *Journal* concludes its revelations with the observation that "Craig Livingstone isn't just some loopy guy who wandered out of a Georgetown saloon into the White House. Craig Livingstone was in that highly sensitive job because, on the evidence that has emerged in the past week, his work was well up to the standard expected."

CLINTON'S DEATH SONG

The political implications of this week's revelations are clear: Clinton has now smeared ashes on his face, and is preparing to sing his death song. Washington insiders know that he is already more politically dead that Jimmy Carter or Gerald Ford, zombies who have been wandering around for years like escapees from the set of a substandard Hollywood horror movie. Soon Clinton will join the living dead, while Hillary will be condemned to wander the Earth with him, each of them convinced to the last that "they did nothing wrong". This may be true, but the more damning evidence

is that they did nothing right, and the American people now have to pay the piper for their nonsense. A five-trillion-dollar debt, created out of thin air by the wizards of the Federal Reserve System; a totally demoralized population; and the most encouraging economic prospects are that within a few months, we will join the ranks of the Third World nations, most likely with their typical military dictatorships.

HILLARY'S FLIGHT

While her protegé, Craig Livingstone, writhes before an inquiring Congressional committee like a trapped rat, echoing Hillary's favorite line, "I don't recollect", Hillary herself has fled the country. Responding to inaudible demands for her presence, she rushed off to Europe on a whirlwind tour, which was designed solely to allow her to escape the maelstrom in the United States. Inevitably, she must return, perhaps to join her husband in his death-song. We are reminded of the last days of Nixon's Presidency, when suddenly everyone turned on him; there were no defenders left. There will be no Beau Geste to ease Clinton's journey into oblivion. Indicative of the process is the emergence of a new star in Washington, a thirty-year FBI veteran, who for years, as resident FBI agent in the White House, has been aghast at the destruction wrought on the nation by the Clintonista hippies. Now he has gone public, with a bestselling book *Unlimited Access—An FBI Agent Inside The Clinton White House*. The agent, Gary W. Aldrich, overnight became the hottest guest on the talk show circuit. So great were the demands for his appearance that he had to turn down 60 *Minutes* to meet his prior commitments.

Aldrich reports that "There was a unisex quality in the Clinton staff that set it apart from the Bush Administration." He reports that Clinton was wont to stray from the White House to meet a celebrity gal at the downtown Marriott, favorite scene of Washington's political trysts. Howls of rage emanated from the White House. Claims were made that it would be impossible for Clinton to evade his ever vigilant Secret Service protectors. Unfortunately, Hillary has frequently boasted in her newspaper column that her favorite sport is to elude her Secret Service escorts and drive about the city without hindrance. In this predilection, she differs from most Washingtonians, who would prefer an armed escort if they venture onto the crime-ridden streets. Other spin efforts, which were counter-productive, included demands from the Imperial Presidency that Gary Aldrich be forbidden to appear on any talk show. The Clintons, still divorced from the real world, failed to understand that these talk show hosts are committed to finding the most controversial guests in Washington, hoping that they will say something outrageous, in order to boost the ever-sagging ratings in the hot summer months. Aldrich's book is filled with inside stories about the Clintons and their beehive of frenetic, drug-ridden young things, Marxists to the core, who have one thing in common: their hatred of America.

Clinton recently lost one hero of his battle against all American traditions, when a Ukrainian Jewish refugee, Jeremy Boorda, miraculously promoted from cabin boy to Admiral, supposedly took his own life at the height of his struggle to destroy the old Annapolis crew of loyal Naval officers, who were unanimous in their dedication to flag and country. Another "Washington suicide", Chief of Naval Operations Boorda supposedly shot himself in the chest moments before he was to face a *Newsweek* correspondent who had wished to ask him about his connection with America's most famous spy, the Israeli espionage agent, Jonathan Pollard, supposedly doing life in prison for his

crimes, but scheduled to be returned to Israel a national hero as soon as Clinton pardons him in return for Jewish support in the approaching Presidential elections.

THE ZIONIST COMMITMENT

To prove his zealous commitment to the State of Israel, Clinton had to fill his White House staff from hordes of young Zionist Kibbutzniks, ardent Israeli-Firsters who look upon the United States as a virgin territory to be conquered and enslaved forever in Israel's grandiose scheme of Israel Uber Alles, Israel Over the World. The deus ex machina of Clinton's otherwise incomprehensible rise to political power has been the unholy trio of the Anti-Defamation League of B'nai B'rith; Mossad, the Israeli espionage agency and Jonathan Pollard's boss; and the ominous Jewish Defense League, the only terrorist organization operating full-time throughout the United States. It is true that Clinton's incredible rise from rube-on-the-make to President of the United States was facilitated by the accident that Winthrop Rockefeller, one of John D. Rockefeller Jr.'s "Fortunate Five", the richest youths in the world, fell in love with his Black Army sergeant during the Second World War, and wished to bring him back to New York as his personal trophy. His relatives issued a stern rebuke, and Winthrop was told to hie to the hinterlands for his then-bizarre tastes. He bought most of the state of Arkansas as his personal fiefdom, and installed his lover as his farm manager. When eager young Bill came along, Winthrop realized that he would be a valuable asset to the Rockefeller political program. No less an organ than the New York Times hailed the "brilliant young Clinton" as a comer. Even then, I predicted that the Rockefellers (read: the House of Rothschild, the creator of the Standard Oil Octopus) would boost Clinton into the Presidency. His qualifications were ideal: totally amoral, willing to do anything to get on, and totally sincere in his confidence in his own degeneracy. Amoral people who begin to doubt themselves must quickly be jettisoned. Clinton has never had this problem, nor has he ever been the cause of any qualms by his manipulators.

MONEY AND TERRORISM

With the Rockefeller fortune behind him, and the terrorist arm of the world Jewish conspiracy, the Anti-Defamation League Jewish Masonic organization, to run interference against any detractors, Clinton indeed had a clear road to the White House. His campaign had all the money it needed, all the propaganda provided courtesy of the New World Order, and international terrorism to stifle any public criticisms of his misdeeds. What the manipulators must have known was that Clinton would be a one-shot President. He has no staying power. From adolescence, he has had only one goal, instant self-gratification. This is no small qualification for an instrument of the New World Order. However, there is nothing in Clinton on which to build a genuine persona, the essential ingredient of any public career. But, you may well ask, has he not had a career, his rise to the Presidency? Indeed he has, but it is no more than that, a rise, not a means of building on his successes. In fact, Clinton became President because all of the doors were opened for him. Now all the doors are closing, never to be opened again. Clinton's fall from grace reached the point of no return when he commandeered the FBI files of his political rivals. He failed to realize that the Anti-Defamation League considers the Federal Bureau of Investigation, and indeed, the entire Department of Justice, its personal fiefdom, to be used only to further the Zionist cause, and not to be encroached upon by anyone.

THE NESHER CELL

In 1936, Philip Klutznick, incorporator of the Anti-Defamation League, founded an Israeli espionage unit, the Nesher cell (nesher means eagle in Hebrew), in the Department of Justice. By 1940, the Nesher group was running the entire Department of Justice, as it has ever since. The FBI has always been the willing tool of the Nesher operatives at Justice. It was the Nesher terrorists who orchestrated the massacres of the Weaver family and the Waco Holocaust, as a dire lesson to any Americans to dared to oppose their satanic program. At no time did the Nesher group anticipate that a mere President would presume to use their private organization, the FBI, for his own partisan purposes. Thus Clinton made certain his permanent retirement from the political scene. The ADL and the World Jewish Congress allow their stooges only one mistake. They will never be around to make a second one. They will use whatever means necessary to get rid of him, but it is likely that they will permit him to join their other house zombies, Ford and Carter. These living dead, drained of all their blood and life by the Jewish parasite, continue to live among us as a dire prediction of the fate that awaits all of us at the hands of the parasite.

On the other hand, the Life Force of the Universe also waits for us, waits for us to join it, as we were intended to do. Yes, we have a choice. We can go on, drained of life by the parasite, or we can recognize and join the Living Universe, to grow with it and contribute to it as we were meant to do, and in so doing, to taste all the joy of creating life, of participating in the universe, no longer Earthbound, but freed to soar to the limitless expanse of all Creation. Know that there is a choice, and that you can, not must, make that choice. In our sublime and generous universe, there are no musts; there are only cans. What can you do?

CHAPTER 6

THE NEWS DESK by Phyllis Linn 7/12/96

OLYMPIC MYTHS DEBUNKED

The New World Order boys are very big sports promoters, primarily because of the DISTRAC-TION it creates, diverting your attention from more of the significant freedom-robbing events treacheries they are perpetrating and keeping you too busy to oppose them. Golf, bowling, baseball, football—they don't care—as long as you and your family are involved. Does that mean athletic pursuits are "bad"? Of course not—it's a matter of perspective. From the June 27 issue of *THE ORLANDO SENTINEL*, [quoting:]

NEW YORK—Call him a spoilsport, but as a student of antiquity, David C. Young says he feels compelled to point out that the Olympic torch now heading to Atlanta is not a tradition dating to ancient Greece. In the July-August issue of *Archaeology* magazine, the University of Florida classics professor recalls that the long-distance torch relay originated 60 years ago, when Adolf Hitler tried to turn the 1936 Berlin Olympics into a celebration of the Third Reich. Not only that, but it was a Nazi propaganda film that also created the myth that the five-ring Olympic symbol is from ancient Greece—a mistake that numerous books and other publications have repeated over the years. [*The Big Boys DON'T MAKE MISTAKES!*]

As the torch neared New York City last week, most people questioned along the route had never heard of a Nazi connection. "I always thought it was from the third century, or was it the fifth century?" said Andrew Bauer, a Greenwich Village writer and philosophy teacher. Young's second book on the games, *The Modern Olympics: A Struggle for Revival*, is about to be published by Johns Hopkins University Press. He says the torch relay was invented by Carl Diem, a German who had been planning the 1916 Olympic Games at Berlin when they were canceled because of World War I. Twenty years later, Diem was back—organizing the 1936 games under Hitler. "Diem, seeking to glamorize them with an ancient aura, staged the first lighting of the Olympic flame, now a hallowed ritual in which millions delight," Young writes. [Yes, we do love our little rituals, don't we!] When the torches were lighted at Berlin—ostensibly to signify unity among nations—they carried the logo of the manufacturer, Krupp, the huge munitions company that armed Germany for two world wars, Young says.

Olympic officials don't deny the torch ceremony's origins. "It began in Berlin in 1936; that's true," Francois Carrard, director-general of the International Olympic Committee, said by telephone. The interlocking circles were designed in 1913 by France's Baron Pierre de Coubertin, founder of the IOC [International Olympic Committee], for a 1914 World Olympic Congress in Paris. The congress broke up when Archduke Ferdinand of Austria was assassinated in Sarajevo, triggering World War I [or so we are told]. Revived for the 1920 games at Antwerp, Belgium, and used at all later Olympiads, the ring logo came to symbolize the "five continents", Young says. [Don't you smell a bigger story behind this symbolism!?]

The myth of their ancient origin began with Leni Riefenstahl, the German cinematographer who chronicled Hitler's rise to power in the documentary *Triumph of the Will* and extoled the 1936 Games in the 12-hour film *Olympia*. For the latter film, Young says, Riefenstahl had the rings carved into a rock at Delphi, Greece, as a backdrop for the torch bearers circling the ruins of the ancient stadium. [*Do you feel "had"?*]

HEEEEEERE'S REAGAN!

Or a reasonable facsimile—it could be a cardboard cutout! Or more likely, a cloned replica. Anyway, this photo gives Dole new vigor—he's the young kid on the right! From July 4 issue of *THE ORLANDO SENTINEL*, [quoting:]

reagan & dole pict.

LOS ANGELES (AP)—White House hopeful Bob Dole, who last year promised Republicans he could be another Ronald Reagan [oh, no!], met privately with the former president Wednesday and pronounced the visit "a shot in the arm" for his campaign. "It reminded me of the great things that President Reagan had done for America—tax cuts, a good economy, strong defense," Dole said as he emerged from the 40-minute meeting. [Funny, my recollection is a bit different!]

HEALTH AND WEALTH-FARE

From the Summer 1996 issue of the Canadian Naturopathic Association newsletter *Vital Link*, [quoting:]

Vitamin C a prescription drug? Vitamin E powder an illegal substance? Sound like science fiction? Check again: Radical changes in the availability of natural medicines around the world are tearing apart the concept of freedom of choice in health care. In Norway, health food stores cannot carry vitamins, minerals or even trace minerals. In 1992 the Norwegian FDA redefined vitamin C and E powder as drugs. In France, people have been indicted for selling vitamin C. Similarly, the Jamaican Government is cracking down on the unregulated sale of vitamins, minerals and herbs. Is it conspiracy, coincidence or international cooperation? Maybe none—or maybe a little bit of each. Basically these events are driven by International Trade Regulations.

A fundamental part of world trade is governance by GATT. Under the UN, member states meet standards for trade in food, food stuffs, labeling, content and even manufacturing. Of course most states have internal mechanisms which enforce similar controls—the FDA in the US and Health Protections Branch in Canada. But many states, despite internal mechanisms, are heavily influenced by rules and regulations imposed at the international level. If an international delegation changes standards which limit freedom of choice, there is often very little which can be done at the national or local level. Indeed, countries which oppose decisions under GATT are often penalized by the World Trade Organization. In a sense, decisions reached by GATT delegations can result in a domino effect, rippling across member states, causing radical change and upheaval to common trade prac-

tices. Given that, how does the delegation process work, and why is it not working in the public's favor? GATT has under it many delegations which perform various tasks. One such delegation is the Codex Commission. The Codex Alimentarious Committee on Nutrition and Foods for Special Supplements (CAC) has in its jurisdiction the task of economic analysis and risk assessment of natural medicines. 18 delegates make up the CAC. The problem with this process is that 90% of CAC delegates represent multinational pharmaceutical corporations. At present, the only US delegate is a representative from the FDA [likely a "pharmaceutical flunky"]. But with the deck stacked against us, health freedom often loses out to limitations, controls, and constraints. One proposal, called "Draft Guidelines for Dietary Supplements" was put forward by the German delegation; it passed 16-2, with the sole American representative being one of the two dissenting voices. This proposal includes radical changes to the sale and possession of natural remedies, enforcing doctor prescriptions and contains the following points:

(1) No dietary supplement can be sold for preventative or therapeutic use; (2) no dietary supplement sold as a food can exceed potency levels set by the commission; (3) Codex regulations for dietary supplements would become binding (this means that the clause within GATT which allows a nation to set its own standards would be eliminated). Admittedly, these standards severely restrict health choice and cater almost exclusively to multinational interests.

The shortfalls of GATT are too great to detail here, but in brief, GATT has been labeled "a rich man's club", and its agenda tends to favor the interests of multinational corporations.

NEW FUEL IS SUGAR-BASED

From the June 26 issue of *THE GAZETTE*, *MONTREAL*, [quoting:]

LONDON (Rueters)—British and American scientists said yesterday they have discovered a way to make a clean fuel from sugar, which could revolutionize the energy industry. The process uses enzymes from bacteria that live near hot underwater vents to convert glucose into hydrogen and water. A clean and cheap way to produce pure hydrogen has been a major objective for energy researchers, who are seeking ways to replace pollution-creating fossil fuels and atomic reactors. [This is a lot like saying it is a major objective for researchers to find a safe effective cure for cancer, AIDS, etc. It's just window dressing. What is wanted is the status quo—cartel-controlled, high priced, polluting petroleum products and death and disease.]

Michael biochemist University of Danson, a at the Bath, Western England, said the process could also use simple cellulose—the basic component of plants including grass. "What we have done is taken glucose and we have oxidized it with an enzyme," Danson said in a telephone interview. "It produced molecular hydrogen." "Hydrogen is the fuel of the 21st Century," said Jonathan Woodward of the Oak Ridge National Laboratory in Tennessee, co-author of the research. "The ultimate goal is to convert renewable resources into hydrogen gas." [This is NOT the goal of the globalists, who will squelch this concept by buying up the rights to it and sitting on it.] Woodward, an expert in enzymes at the laboratory, run by Lockheed Martin Energy Research Corp. for the U.S. Department of Energy, said hydrogen could one day be used to fuel cars. ["Could", yes, but not likely.] The findings will be published in the July issue of

IN THE HOLE

From the July 4 issue of *THE ORLANDO SENTINEL*, [quoting:]

WASHINGTON (AP)—The United States, already the world's largest net debtor country, saw its debt position jump by 40 percent last year while Britain retained its No. 1 spot as the country with the biggest holdings in U.S. companies. In its annual look at America's international balance sheet, the Commerce Department said Tuesday that America's net debtor position rose to \$814 billion, up from \$580.1 billion in 1994. The net debtor position is the shortfall between what foreigners own in U.S. assets—corporations, real estate, stocks and bonds—compared with what Americans own in overseas assets. In direct investments, defined as ownership of at least 10 percent of a company, Britain retained its hold on the No. 1 spot in U.S. holdings for the second straight year. It had displaced Japan in 1995.

Until the mid-80s, the United States enjoyed the title as the world's largest creditor country, a position now held by Japan, as the amount of American-owned assets abroad dwarfed the foreign-owned assets in this country. In 1986, the United States became a net debtor for the first time since early in this century, and that position has grown every year since as Americans transferred billions of dollars overseas to pay for imported cars, oil and other products. The net debtor figure is not a debt in a classic sense since it includes not only bank loans but all forms of investment. [Although you perform all sorts of tricks with statistics, the secret is getting out that the U.S. is and has long been bankrupt and owned, lock-stock-and-proverbial-barrel, by the international bankers.]

<u>CIA HUMAN RIGHTS ABUSES</u> <u>IN SOUTH AMERICA</u>

From the June 29 issue of the *JOHNSON CITY PRESS*, [quoting:]

WASHINGTON (AP)—Credible evidence suggests that several CIA agents in Guatemala ordered, planned or took part in human rights abuses, including assassination, since 1984, a presidential panel said Friday. The panel said the CIA was aware of many of the allegations at about the time they occurred. It also found that the CIA did not keep Congress adequately informed of its activities in Guatemala and was insensitive to human rights abuses there. The findings were contained in a 53-page report by Intelligence Oversight Board. President Clinton ordered the panel to undertake an investigation following allegations last year that the CIA may have engaged in improper activities in Guatemala. [Congressional investigations are a sick joke—more window dressing to beguile the gullible.]

The CIA inspector general had undertaken an earlier probe and, like the intelligence board, also found fault with CIA communications to Congress and with its attention to human rights questions. Commenting on the board report, CIA Director John Deutch said in a statement, "I take these findings extremely seriously, and last year directed the CIA to put corrective measures in place. The CIA has done this, and I note the IOB report recognizes this fact." [*More CIA humor!*]

The board said in its report that it had learned that since 1984, "several CIA assets were credibly alleged to have ordered, planned, or participated in serious human rights violations such as assassination, extrajudicial execution, torture or kidnaping while they were assets—and that the CIA was contemporaneously aware of many of the allegations."

'FILEGATE' LINKED TO FOSTER

From the July 8 issue of *SPOTLIGHT* by Mike Blair, [quoting:]

A dirty trickster in charge of Clinton Administration security has been linked to the mysterious death in 1993 of key Clinton aide Vincent Foster, Jr.

craig livingstone

CRAIG LIVINGSTONE

Resigned in disgrace

Craig Livingstone, former director of White House personnel security operations, was one of several individuals seen removing files from the office of Foster after his death on July 20, 1993. Livingstone resigned in disgrace June 26. "With an infinitely more distinguished public record than yours, Admiral [Jeremy] Boorda committed suicide when he may have committed a minor mistake," Rep. Tom Lantos (D-CA) said, leaving Livingstone teary-eyed.

Livingstone also retrieved FBI personal files on 480 former Republican White House officials and staffers.

The requests were made to the FBI for the files under the name of White House chief counsel Bernard Nussbaum, Foster's immediate supervisor at the White House.

When the files and other contents of Foster's office were searched after his death, Nussbaum was in charge of reviewing and sorting the material.

The FBI was present, but the agents were forced to sit on the other side of the room from where Nussbaum was working. FBI agents were unable to see the documents.

This, of course, raises the possibility that secret FBI files may have been among those found in Foster's office and removed by Livingstone and others.

The cause of Foster's death, officially declared a suicide, is still under investigation by Whitewater special counsel Kenneth Starr.

The body of the deputy White House counsel was found in a remote section of Fort Marcy Park,

across the Potomac River from Washington in Virginia, with a single bullet wound to the head.

WHAT FILES?

The question now arises as to just what files were taken from Foster's office. It has generally been assumed that they were files related to the Clintons' links with the Whitewater land deals.

Members of the Senate Judiciary Committee investigating the White House effort to delve into the FBI's personal files of former Republican staffers are convinced Livingstone was "digging for dirt" on the Republicans.

In what FBI general counsel Howard Shapiro has described as "a massive invasion of privacy," 480 requests were made to the FBI for the personal files of the former Reagan and Bush staff members. Of that total 33 files were actually dispatched to the White House security office.

VERY PERSONAL

During committee hearings, Sen. Alan Simpson (R-WY) revealed the files contained such personal information as very private details of the individuals' lives. These facts included answers to questions as to their sexual lives, including details of any extra-material affairs of either them or their spouses.

In many instances the files contain federal income tax returns and other tax information. Releasing tax information is a felony.

When the information was provided to the FBI the individuals were assured that it would be held in the strictest of confidence. Copies kept in the personnel files at the White House were supposed to go to the secret archives of outgoing presidents after their White House service was completed.

How many copies of the more than 300 files turned over to the Clinton security office exist is not known. Pink slips found in empty file folders by the FBI reveal the documents to be signed out by security staffers.

WHO HAD ACCESS?

Former White House staffers appearing before the Senate Judiciary Committee to testify about what has become known as "Filegate" say they are concerned how widespread the files were circulated, read and copied after the White House got hold of them. Some files had been signed out and were not among those returned to the bureau.

The sordid episode is an embarrassment for the FBI, particularly after recent congressional investigations of FBI wrongdoing in its handling of the now famous Randy Weaver case in Idaho and the holocaust that resulted from the confrontation between federal agents and members of the Branch Davidian religious sect at Waco.

FBI Director Louis Freeh, who has angrily denounced the White House snoop effort, has called for a complete internal investigation of how the bureau handles personal files. He ordered new guidelines and regulations to prevent violations of privacy in the future.

It has been reported that the ability of the White House to retrieve the files with just a simple written request was established during the administration of the late Lyndon B. Johnson.

Johnson reportedly enjoyed reading the files of the personal sexual peccadilloes of both friends and opponents.

CHAPTER 7

PLANETARY REBALANCING IMMINENT AS RESPONSIBILITIES MUST BE MET 7/14/96 EL MORYA

Editor's note: The following writing is by the Ascended Master known as El Morya, The Statesman, Elder of the First Ray among the seven "Rainbow Masters" communicating at this time to help us through Earth-Shan's planetary transition and rebalancing. See Journal #7 called THE RAIN-BOW MASTERS for more background on this important group of teachers. Refer to the Back Page for Journal ordering information.

Greetings, I am El Morya, one of the Ascended Masters. I come in the One Light of Aton that is ALL. Thank you for receiving my energy this day. Be not distracted, else the opportunity will be lost.

Your planet is in great need for balance. She cannot continue much longer in her current state of crisis. She shall not be denied her balance within the Oneness of Creator's Light.

There shall be a massive cleansing cycle that she will undergo. This cleansing shall be quite devastating to those ones (humans, animals and plants, etc.) to whom she gives life. It is as if your planet has a fever and, before it breaks, her temperature will need to rise. She will need to excrete the poisons (toxic, radioactive wastes, etc.) which have been placed under her skin. She will, in the process, have to rearrange her waters and shift their healing properties to the places which need them the most.

You ones have been warned, over and over again. There was opportunity as caretakers of the planet to reverse the damage foisted off onto the life-giving entity that you ones erroneously call Earth. She is NOT DIRT! She (your planet) is a living, sentient being. You take for granted the gifts she freely gives.

The darkness of those who are destroying her and who suppress the masses has grown to epidemic proportions. The mentality of the average person is so filled with negative (non-Lighted) energy that such has made your planet so dizzy (off balance) that she even wobbles in an unnatural manner as she revolves around, trying to fulfill her purpose.

You ones need to learn to honor your planet and be thankful for the gifts she gives, not the least of which is life itself. Ones always seem to wake up too late. Many go around in their own self-centered world, not even thinking about how their actions (or IN-actions) will affect them tomorrow. Well, tomorrow is here! And that which you ones have neglected in the past will be brought around full circle for you ones to confront again—this time in a most direct and impacting manner.

When the "Earth" (as you call her) shakes you into an awakened state of realization that you are so truly small and cannot do anything to stop her massive quakings, maybe then you shall appreciate

that which you take for granted.

EARTHQUAKES OF CATASTROPHIC MAGNITUDE (9.0 AND GREATER) ARE IMMINENT! INCREASED VOLCANIC ACTIVITY IN PLACES NOW SEEMINGLY DORMANT IS IMMINENT! THE SHIFTING OF YOUR OCEAN WATERS IS NOW IMMINENT!

You ones must come to realize the reasons why these things shall occur. It is because of the Universal Laws of Balance (the Laws of Cause & Effect). You ones must realize that you are responsible for that which you helped to create.

You may say, "But I did not pollute the waters or the skies!"

Do you drive or ride in an automobile? Do you not buy from, and thus support, the fuel companies which provide you ones with gas and electricity? They, in turn, pollute rivers and streams. The exhaust fumes from your cars, busses, trucks and airplanes—do not they pollute your air? Do you wash your clothes with chemical solutions? Where do you think the rinse water goes?

One person alone could not contaminate your planet by acting in this manner, but 5 billion (or more) people acting in this manner can and indeed have. Those things you ones do daily—usually without thinking of future, long-term consequences—are the things which are the most dangerous to your own survival.

Am I saying, "Do not drive your automobiles!"? NO! Am I telling you to stop washing your clothes? NO!

I am suggesting that you change the way you think regarding your non-caring attitude toward your planet. Some say that they care about the planet, but they are still unwilling to sacrifice their own personal comfort to REALLY do anything about your planet's current problems.

The first TRUE step in solving such a problem is educating people to the reality of the magnitude of the problem.

There are ones on your planet who are very sensitive to your planet's electromagnetic (emotional) shifts. These are the ones who get sick or exhibit some other physiological symptoms, such as a headache, prior to earthquakes, volcanic activity, etc. These ones innately know and respect the life form which sustains their existence. These are the ones who can help you to understand the needs of your planet. They have a direct link! Some don't even realize why they have this gift and, in fact, they often view it as a burden.

As I have said, you ones have been warned time and time again. There was an opportunity for reversing this current situation, but it is now long past. Now you ones shall be given to learn your lessons—once again—the hard way.

If you dislike this message, I suggest you ask yourself, "Why do I dislike this message?" Ones most often do not like to be made to feel responsible for that which befalls them. Most wish to blame their

"sufferings" on another, and will go to great lengths to try to justify their position.

I shall tell you now: if something impacts you, whether it be good or bad, then you have helped in some way to create it. There are no victims.

When you can rise above your self-centered ME-ness and realize that YOU are responsible for everything that YOU do, then YOU will be able to begin to see a larger picture unfolding. With this shift in viewpoint, you will begin to realize that there are GREAT opportunities available to you for growth at this time. You will begin to stop making the same mistakes over and over again, lifetime after lifetime.

You will begin to realize that there is a reason for EVERYTHING that happens. There are no chance happenings—PERIOD!

When you ones can begin to understand the TRUE "whys" of these seemingly tragic events, then you will be ready to truly accept your responsibility in creating a better way of doing things—else you shall be destined to repeat these tragic horrors over and over again.

As always, the choice is YOURS!

I am El Morya, come in the One Light of the I AM presence. Thank you.

CHAPTER 8

EXPERT WALTER BOWART ON MIND CONTROL SHOCKING TRUTH FROM THE CUTTING EDGE by Rick Martin 7/17/96

The following is an interview with recognized mind-control expert Walter Bowart, author of THE famous encylopedia on the history of mind control: Operation Mind Control. This interview took place on June 21, 1996. For those of you wanting to obtain a copy of his 800-page treatise Operation Mind Control, you may do so (only) by joining the Freedom of Thought Foundation for a fee of \$100 (the book is free) at: P. O. Box 35072, Tucson, AZ 85740; email: freethot@juno.com; phone (520) 690-0911. We invite you to sit back and read along with this "stream-of-consciousness" interview which covers a wide variety of topics. I believe you will agree it makes for very lively, sometimes poignant, often humorous, and definitely shocking reading.

Rick: Let's do this backwards and begin with your Timothy Leary article. You don't know this about me but, being from the Bay Area, I have some of my work background at the Drug Detox Unit of the Haight-Ashbury Free Medical Clinic, where I worked for a number of years...

Walter: LSD Socks?

Rick: (Laughter.)

Walter: Did you know him?

Rick: No.

Walter: You know, he was the head of that clinic and his name was Dr. LSD Socks—Ellis D. Socks.

freedom of thought foundation

Rick: No, there was a medical clinic and then the detox unit. David Smith, M.D. was the primary doctor. There was another doctor there by the name of Craig Whitehead.

Walter: Well, you and I are contemporaries then.

Rick: My college degree is in psychology from Sonoma State University in the '70s, and I've done an extensive amount of research in pharmacology and psychopharmacology over the last twenty-five years—so, I do know a little about the subject.

Walter: You can get lost in there. I got into this from the 149 different drugs that were given to unsuspecting human guinea pigs by the CIA and the MK-ULTRA research. Well, I mean, it's still ongoing.

Rick: That's one thing I want to talk about. First, I'd like to hear about Leary and how you got into that aspect of it. Then, I'd like to branch-off into MK-ULTRA and spin-offs thereof.

Walter: I actually wrote most of that piece [referring to Vol. 2, No. 5 edition of the Freedom of Thought Foundation's newsletter called Free Thinking, headlined: Timothy Leary and the CIA or A Spy Who Came Out From The (Ergot) Mold by W.H. Bowart.] in the '70s right after I had interviewed him. I tried to get people to publish it in those days and everybody was pro-Leary. Everybody was pro-Leary in those days.

Rick: I was never pro-Leary. I was pro-Ram Dass for a time (many years ago), Richard Alpert. You know, in his early days when he spun off from Harvard—he did some excellent talks early on, I felt. But boy, Leary, I was always leary of Leary.

Walter: I met Leary in 1965 when I did a story on him, and then I met Dick Alpert about a year later. I had lunch with him. And then I went up to Millbrook two or three times to do different stories...

Rick: Really?

Walter: ...yeah, different angles. We had a reporter—I had a newspaper in Manhattan. I started a little newspaper called *The East Village Other* and it was a wild, radical, wonderful experience. But Eve Babbitt was a writer—is a writer from Los Angeles—now a novelist. And she was on the staff at *East Village Other* and she was in Millbrook when Liddy (G. Gordon) did the big raid. Woke them all up in the middle of the night and they were staggering around.

Rick: (Laughter.) What a nightmare.

Walter: We filed a story that we did and we called it "A Touch of Evil" and we compared it to the Orson Wells film...

Rick: That's funny.

Walter: Do you remember that? It had—we had the poor Sheriff of Duchess County to stand in front of his desk with the American flag and pose, sort of like Orson Wells did. (Laughter.) And, of course, Liddy was nowhere to be seen. We couldn't interview Liddy, but we did interview the Sheriff of Duchess County who was just kind of a very nice, good-ole boy and didn't really know what was going on. But they had done a typical—I mean, today it would look like a laughing stock in contrast to WACO. They had people hiding in the trunks of cars. People in the bushes and all this crazy stuff trying to surveil this big, huge estate which you couldn't really do unless you did it aerially. They had people running around on this vast estate that was originally built by the guy who invented the gas mantel, like the Coleman lantern.

And that was the turn of the century and he got very rich and he had 15,000 Italian laborers building stone bridges, beautiful things that are still there. There are a couple of mansions on the property. It was quite an estate. Anyway, Timothy introduced me to Peggy Hitchcock whose brothers and mother owned it. And Peggy Hitchcock and I later got married and had a couple of kids.

Rick: Really?

Walter: Yes. She was always close to Timothy. She had been his supporter from the days of Boston,

from Harvard.

Rick: Early on.

Walter: Early on. I knew all of his friends. I'd like to do a book about him based on some of the unknown side of this man. I got taken in by him early on, as well as a lot of other people. But the time that I began to see that he was really not who he said he was, was early in the peace movement when we were against the war in Vietnam and we knew about the co-intel-pro—and we knew about the CIA in those days. Nothing has really changed today. We were just a little ahead of everybody, I think, in being aware of the cryptocracy and that growing conspiracy that's built under the National Security Act.

I was always, I guess you would have called me back in those days, politically, a libertarian. I was kind of a Jeffersonian Democrat. I believed that the people had a right to be involved—that the government came from the people. That's a radical left idea, I guess. In those days we were called "leftists". I never felt like a leftist because I was never—I didn't like Karl Marx. I looked at all that stuff but it was, to me, Adam Smith, "Self-interest motivates people. Competition limits self-interest." That always made sense to me, until I was pretty much that way, though *The East Village Other* usually reflected every kind of opinion you could find, from Chinese Communist madmen on the street, to just people who were babbling nuts—treatises called "paterealism".

Rick: There was a lot of that on the East coast. There was some of that in Berkeley and San Francisco, too.

Walter: Yeah, once the drugs hit. But, anyway, we were experimenting. We were in our twenties and we were experimenting with psychedelics in those days, which were legal. Now the kids today don't seem to remember that they were legal, but they were legal. Leary was giving LSD to people, artists and different creative people down in the Village. Allen Ginsburg got him involved and some time in the middle of that in '65 he gave a lecture and I went and covered it for the paper and the thing I liked about him is that he was wearing red socks. And I thought this was cool, because here was a guy from the stuffiest establishment, Harvard, and he's wearing red socks. This was a good sign. It meant that the brain-lock was loosening. And he was very articulate and, of course, he was full of blarney (he's an Irishman), very entertaining.

Rick: Sure.

Walter: Well, that was that. I wrote the story and I took notes. I didn't use a tape recorder and wrote the story. The next thing I know I get a book autographed from Timothy Leary calling me the

greatest Taoist newspaper man who ever lived. Something like that.

Rick: That's funny.

Walter: It was his book *Psychedelic Prayers*, which was based on the *Tao Te Ching*. That was the first contact I had with him. And then the next thing I knew I was up in Millbrook interviewing him and one thing led to another. I was up there a few times, at crucial times, including the time when he was—when I was at Millbrook, I think Peter Fonda was up there, Bobby Walker, a movie producer (Benny Shapiro), many jet-set Hollywood types.

Rick: Did you ever happen to be there when Stan Grof was there?

Walter: The full interview that this story is excerpted from, he told me all about Grof. He was very interested in Grof, you know. He said, "He's Czechoslovakian. Somebody let him out of Czechoslovakia and they brought him right here to this country and I want to know who's involved." And he also wanted to know who killed Walter Panke, which I didn't know anything about. I guess he went out scuba diving and he was found, bobbed up floating in the bay, or something.

And you know the story about Leary and Mary Pinchot Meyers? Do you know that story?

Rick: No, I don't.

Walter: It's in *Operation Mind Control*, I put the whole thing in there. Mary Meyer shows up and she turns out to be the wife or ex-wife of Cord Meyer, Jr., the CIA guy. And she says to Leary, "Gee, I'm interested in learning how to run a session with LSD." And she tells him that high-ranking political figures are very interested in this, and she points out to him the revolutionary potential of this pharmacology. She comes back two or three times. She was not a bad looking woman, either. You know, Leary had an eye for the ladies. He was a bit of a womanizer. The next thing you know he was taking her on "sessions", LSD sessions and, as it turns out, the person Mary was turning on was John Kennedy, the President of the United States. And this made people very nervous. And, apparently, she "turned on" John AND Jackie. ["Turned on" is a phrase referring to drug use; in this case, psychedelics.] At one point, she was out jogging in her jogging-suit on the pathway, one of these jogging paths in Georgetown and she was shot with a .22 a couple of times through the chest. And they called it "a robbery", but she wasn't jogging with any purse or anything. And then her journals and diaries and notebooks were all confiscated by, I think it was James Angleton.

Rick: And who was James Angleton?

Walter: James Angleton was the guy who was on the eternal "mole hunts" within the CIA, so he probably thought that she was a security leak for turning on the president.

Rick: I would think that would tend to be the case.

Walter: That would be one part of it, but we still don't know. We may find out in 40 years what really happened.

Rick: Maybe.

Walter: If we ever do. And, of course, her husband is still alive and he's got his mouth shut as tight as a clam and won't talk about this.

Rick: Did you ever meet Ken Kesey, by any chance?

Walter: No, I never knew him. I knew a lot of friends of his, but I never met Kesey. I remember I was there, hanging out with a guy by the name of Wavy Gravy.

Rick: (Laughter.) Funny guy.

Walter: He's a very funny man.

Rick: He's still funny.

Walter: I went to Millbrook with him and Marshall Efran. I don't know if Marshall is still with us or not. He was a very funny man, too. These two guys were like—I got out of the car after the drive from Manhattan to Millbrook and I could barely walk. I was laughing so hard. These guys are really funny.

Anyway, being then married to Peggy for nine years, I saw a lot of these characters. Leary would come by the house every few years and I met all of his friends. I was there in the final scene when Tommy Hitchcock threw him out of Millbrook and made a deal with him.

Rick: What was that about?

Walter: Tommy now is a lawyer and an accountant and is a very serious man, a very accomplished man. His nature is "charactive" and as a twin with Billy, he was very different than Billy. Billy was a risk taker, kind of a gambler, and Billy was caught taking Owsley's money and Nick Sands', the guy who manufacturered LSD, and he put it in Swiss banks.

Rick: What ever happened to Owsley?

Walter: Owsley went to prison and he's out now, I think.

Rick: Well, I knew he went to prison but I never heard what happened to him.

Walter: I think he's out. I think that both of them are out. Anyway, Billy got caught, I think there was \$500 to \$1,000 in the account and Billy says he had just done it as a favor to these guys—put it in a Swiss bank account—the Parapaccini Bank. The feds put the heat on the Parapaccini Bank and that numbered account didn't mean anything. So, for those readers who are thinking of putting their money in it, securing it in a Swiss bank account, they would be advised not to do that because the Swiss roll over for Uncle Sam, real easy.

Rick: Sure they do.

Walter: So, Billy got caught in the thing and that was about the time that Leary had also been arrested, so they put pressure on both of them. This was the end of the psychedelic era and they made Billy talk. He had to pay half-a-million bucks in fines, I think...

Rick: Is this prior to Leary going to San Luis Obispo?

Walter: I don't know where Leary was, but he was already in custody.

Rick: But this is prior to his escape?

Walter: Yes. So then they put pressure on both of them and both of them testified against Sands and Owsley and a couple of others, that whole brotherhood.

Rick: Leary testified against Owsley?

Walter: Yes.

Rick: That's interesting.

Walter: And Leary, I asked him in that tape, I said, "Did you snitch on your friends?" And he said, "Nobody ever went to jail for anything that I said." Whatever that means.

When I got on to Leary is, a plan was hatched at Stinson Beach at the First Underground Press Syndicate meeting, and it was an idea that came from a man named Rolling Thunder, who is a road man, he was a holy man, a medicine man.

Rick: I know who he is.

Walter: He is a Comanche but he hung out with Hopi. And they were talking and Michael Bowen and the *San Francisco Oracle* staff and other people were there. And little did we know that Col. George White was in the house next door, spying on us, with sound and cameras.

Rick: (Laughter.)

Walter: Anyway, I think it was George Chulos, the attorney's house on Stinson Beach. Talk about—it looks like a conspiracy. I didn't know any of this until later. It was the first meeting of The Underground Press Syndicate, which was something that I started on the spur of the moment. *Time* magazine called me up and they needed a bucket to explain the phenomena of *The East Village Other*. I said, oh, it's like the *Los Angeles Free Press*, *The Berkeley Barb*, *The San Francisco Oracle*, and I named five or six papers.

And then that was the birth and then somebody said, "What do you call this?" (Referring to this gathering of people.)

And then a UPS truck, a United Parcel Service truck went by the window and I said, "UPS!" (Laughter.)

And then somebody said, "What does that mean?"

And I said, "Ah, Underground Press Syndicate."

Rick: (Extended laughter.)

Walter: That's the way it was named. And then these guys, they were serious, you know? So it turns out—again, I didn't know that *Associated Press* was formed the same way—it was a loose affiliation of papers that can all share each other's information. It ends up, I forgot the numbers, but there were a couple hundred papers in the end, representing millions of readers, by the time I lost interest and moved on.

So, at Stinson Beach we had the first meeting there. And that was in '65 and somebody said that Steve Levine was talking with Rolling Thunder about symbols. And they were saying that the five-pointed star was the symbol of the devil, in medieval magic. And the way you take power out of it is that you draw a circle around it. And he said, "Yes, the Hopi have that in their sacred cave—it's a pentagram and they have a circle drawn around it, too."

And somebody said, "The Pentagon in Washington is a five-pointed object. We should draw a circle around it." And that was about it. It just dropped right there. And then I went back to New York and a couple of weeks later I heard Jerry Rubin was the newly appointed director of the Spring Mobilization March on Washington. The ones before had been almost fascist, in my impression. You couldn't tell who the good guys were from the bad guys. Everybody had jackboots and marched in lock-step, you know?

So I said, "What is this? This is a spiritual movement. Why don't we call every religion in the world to come together to come to the Pentagon to have an exorcism—to draw a circle of humanity around it to take the power out of it, the way Rolling Thunder said. You know, the way the Hopi did, and the way medieval magicians did—make a circle around it." Well, I think Abby Hoffman was really excited about that.

Rick: (Laughter.)

Walter: He and a couple of people went to Washington and tried to pace off, around the Pentagon. Well they have fences over there. They don't let you get around it. I think he even got arrested, if my memory serves me correctly, trying to get over the fences so he could continue pacing off how many people it would take to go around the Pentagon.

Rick: That is really funny.

Walter: It ended up—my personal job—then Ed Sanders got involved and Ed said, "We're going to make it levitate," you know. It was really wild.

Rick: (Laughter.)

Walter: It was all—we were doing pseudo-events with the paper and the it was a kind of humorous disinformation that now the CIA does without humor. They just plant lies. But we did our little tongue-in-cheek kind of thing.

One time, for example, the smoking banana hoax was my baby. Serotonin is the active chemical in the brain and seratin is the chemical in bananas. And I wanted to see what game we could play with one syllable, the difference of one syllable. So I said, "Serotonin is found in bananas, and if you smoke the bananas, it stimulates 'psychedelic effects'," (because serotonin produces a psychedelic effect). And then, years later, I read an article that talked about what the government had done. They had set up factories with tons of bananas they baked, masticated it, injected it, smoked it, every thing...

Rick: (Laughter.) That is so funny.

Walter: Yeah, it is. And I have this in my screenplay, which is called *The Other Crusade*. So there were some great, funny moments. Anyway, my plan in the exorcism, my own personal, individual effort was, I put an ad in *The East Village Other* that said I would give a plane-load of flowers to any pilot who was willing to risk losing his license by flying over the Pentagon—flying a circle around it. But at the time we didn't know that they wouldn't let human beings form a circle around the Pentagon. During that day, it turns out, there were paratroopers on the roof with machine guns—it was really ugly. Anway, that's when we got the impression that there really is a military/industrial complex.

So, a guy called me and said, "I've got a Navion, it's a twin engine. Bring a five-ton truck of flowers and I'll meet you at National Airport." I didn't know anything about Washington. I didn't know that National Airport is Dulles Airport.

Rick: (Laughter.)

Walter: We get there and I'm with this Apache Indian, in full regalia, and I've got a jacket on made out of an American flag, beautifully done—actually out of Navy flag material, so it was blue on the outside with white stars, then you had the lining with red and white stripes on the inside. We were there to have a festival and an exorcism, with a truck load of flowers outside, expecting to find the volunteer pilot. Instead, we found that Dulles Airport was closed, except for a couple of people at a couple of counters and there were fifty janitors in grey uniforms sweeping the floors in all directions, who just kept looking up at this head janitor, this supervisory janitor up on the step. Some of them had cameras around their necks.

Rick: (Laughter.)

Walter: One guy came up and said, "Can we take your picture, boys?"

Rick: (Laughter.)

Walter: Sure, you can take our picture. And he said, "Will you take you hats off?"

We said, "No, we won't do that."

And then this phone call comes in and the voice says, "You can't get the flowers to us because this place is crawling with FBI. Somebody has been tipped off."

So we said, "Ok."

So we walked over to the head janitor up on the steps and I put a flower in his lapel, and I said, "This is the greatest country in the world." And I said, "You're the sloppiest FBI I've ever seen. Your surveillance has been blown and I'm going to tell your boss."

Rick: (Laughter.)

Walter: "You should be ashamed of yourself." He turned bright red. I patted him on the shoulder, like he was an underling, putting a flower in his lapel.

And then we took the flowers out and dumped them on the sidewalk, as close as we could get to the Pentagon. And that's how the flowers ended up in the rifle barrels of the MPs guarding the precious Pentagon from the peacenik rabble. That was my little personal event.

Now, that day we went back to see the lies that were told about that event. I think there were a million people there, based on our estimates. People would get up on high buildings and try to count them, but the best guess was close to a million people. And the press described it as 100,000 people. And then they put Timothy Leary on from Millbrook, saying, "Well, anybody who's psychedelic isn't into peace. This anti-Vietnam movement is just"...obviously he was just a shill. I realized, at that time, that this man was a shill for our government spokesman. That was before I knew: in the '70s, after we filed an FOIA request and got the documents from the CIA that he had been given eight different grants through the CIA, CIA funded NIMH funded Harvard, or some other project, and then eventually (it's in the article)—we asked Stanfield Turner, "Did you give Tim Leary any LSD?"

And he said, "Well, we gave the LSD to those who were doing the research." That was his admission, I guess, as close as he would come. But that's when I got onto Leary. That's when I saw him as a man, really, without any conscience. He had no scruples, as far as I could tell. He was just a hedonist, a sybarite and—to me—there was a wonderful man in San Francisco known as Sam Luis. Sufi Sam, they called him. He was of a Jewish family. He was a Rothschild on one side of his family, and heir to the Levi Straus fortune on the other, and all he wanted to do was study comparative religions and be a gardener, which is what he did all of his life. He first was a Zen rochi; he went to Japan and studied all of that, Zen Buddhism. Then he became a Sufi and was initiated into Sufism. I met him in 1970 or so, and the name Timothy Leary came up and he said of Leary, "He's like a man in the cloak room. When you enter a house there's a man where you check your coat. He's like a man in a big mansion, and he's in the cloak room and he's walking around the cloak room saying, "Look at this! Look at this! Wow! And he never goes upstairs."

And that was my impression. I think that really fit the consciousness. It was, like, Leary took all that

LSD, all those psychedelics, but it didn't make a dent in his perception. It didn't expand his awareness at all.

Rick: Well, he was certainly considerably different than Huxley.

Walter: There was an old saying in the '60s that all of the psychedelic voyagers talked about, and that was, "You can't get any higher than you already are." If you give a toad LSD, you get a toad on LSD. So, I think Tim Leary was a toad in consciousness.

Rick: A lot of his friends really became concerned when they held the press conference in San Luis Obispo, I believe, right at the point at which it was obvious that he was giving testimony against his associates. Do you remember that?

Walter: Yes, I do. But I wasn't there and I didn't follow it. At that time I had known that this man was a government agent. I never could get it out of him, maybe someday we'll get the records released—perhaps now that he's dead we can get them. But I could never get his admission as to exactly what they were doing. Whenever I approached it, "What was the plan? Why give LSD to that generation? What were they thinking of? Were they thinking this would turn you on to God and you wouldn't be interested in politics?" I don't know what they were trying to do.

Rick: Did you ever do any research on Sandoz labs?

Walter: Just the common things. It goes back to 1938, you mean? Or, are you talking about the political part of Sandoz?

Rick: No, I'm just talking about the LSD part of Sandoz.

Walter: Hoffman.

Rick: Right. Albert Hoffman.

Walter: Albert Hoffman and his discovery, yeah. That was 1938 or 1939, wasn't it?

Rick: Roughly.

Walter: He accidently stumbled on it. By then the CIA tried to buy, corner the world's supply.

Rick: I think they did corner the world's supply.

Walter: I think they DID corner the world's supply of LSD.

Rick: They're still sitting on it.

Walter: Of LSD, millions and millions—Abby Hoffman learned that, somewhere—that the CIA has a big stash of LSD...

Rick: Wasn't that when he tried to go in and spike some...

Walter: That was another active prop statement. He just said, "Hell, we've got gallons and we're gonna dump it in the New York City reservoirs." And they guarded the reservoirs. It turned out later we found out that they would respond to all of these things. You could probably break the government with these kinds of things. That's why they shut the co-intel-pro—it violated all of our constitutional rights and it actually gave them violations of the anti-trust law to infringe upon free trade. It shut down all of the underground press newspapers.

Rick: What are you referring to?

Walter: The co-intel-pro. You don't know about that? You should check it out. There are a few books that have been written about it and many documents have been released. FBI's counter-intelligent propaganda, or operation. They infiltrated the papers and they set one thing up against another.

Rick: During that specific period, I was in "drop-out" mode.

Walter: Well, I think that's the reason I was let off by the Mellon family to be a good boy. They knew I wasn't a rabid Commie and they didn't know where to put me. I had my weaknesses—a pretty girl with lots of money, you know—and off we went, into the wilderness. Dropped out. But I was burned out in New York. I was worn out.

Rick: Where did you go to?

Walter: Arizona.

Rick: Really?

Walter: Yeah. Living with her, and then *Town & Country*, you know, we made Suzie Knickerbocker's column for a while. It was a big thing. *Town & Country* said we were real exclusive and you couldn't find us in the telephone book, that our number was unlisted—but we were in the telephone book and we're not exclusive in any way. It made a myth out of the thing.

Rick: How in the world, with your background, did you even start delving into MK-ULTRA?

Walter: My cousin came back from a tour of duty, in Southeast Asia. He had amnesia and hyperamnesia. Hyper-amnesia is a vastly improved memory ability, it's the opposite of amnesia, where you can't remember things. With hyper-amnesia you remember things, without taking notes or anything, you have this on-off switch in your mind, I guess. It's like a human tape recorder, a human video-camera, sound and sight. And he was making straight A's in medical school, but I saw him when he returned from his 4-year tour of duty and he looked like the POWs who were repatriated from the prison camps in North Korea during the Korean War. He had that stance, that strange stance that they had, and that look. And he was very skinny, and he didn't sleep much. And he still doesn't sleep much, and he still suffers from flashbacks and the traumas of war. He was apparently

used as a human tape recorder. He was a sgt. in a supply warehouse; this was his cover story. That's what his military record said. And it turned out that they said he tried to commit suicide by taking an overdose of Sleep-Eez. You could take a carload of Sleep-Eez and probably wouldn't kill you—it'd make you sick. They had him in the hospital for a while and he'd remember what happened.

But, then, later, things came back and it had to do with computer training. He was trained to remember long strings of numbers and codes and things. His memory was trained, but he had a profile—that CUMS—the cumulative, Minnesota, multiphasic, and all of those tests they give you in school and all. Apparently the intelligence boys snatch those up when there's somebody who shows a little promise.

And this guy had Dissociative Identity Disorder. Now, today, we know that's what it is. Back when I was writing the book, I just reported it accurately but I didn't know what it was called. I thought maybe it was called schizophrenia or something, and I didn't understand it as I do today. Dissociative Identity Disorder is created in children, usually, before they can speak. And it is created by child abuse, by torture, by trauma: trauma-based programming. Collin Ross has just given a speech that's on the Internet right now that dissociative, or multiple personality disorder, Dissociative Identity Disorder can be instilled—the CIA documents have proven—that it can be instilled and has been instilled in people who are adults, from World War I on to the present. So that the false memory syndrome—it's not false memory syndrome. I call it a spindrome—so the false memory question is absolutely proven. There's no question that people can have their minds manipulated. They can be manipulated against their will and without their knowledge. They can be made to do something against their will by manipulating the context and it can be erased and amnesia can be induced so that it is not remembered.

Collin Ross is one of the big M.D.s; he's Canadian and he's one of the leaders of the profession in Dissociative Identity Disorder—and he has made this incredible statement that he has absolute, unequivocal proof. Of course, we've all had unequivocal proof for years now, but here's a psychiatrist who is finally saying it. Now, he's the first psychiatrist because he's a clean psychiatrist. He's a Canadian, first of all, and he has the shame of Ewing Cameron on him—who's the guy who did psychic driving. You know about Ewing Cameron? He was the head of the APA—the American Psychiatric Association—and also one of the Nuremburg psychiatrists. Then he came back and worked for the CIA and did these ruthless, awful experiments—killing people in the process. They call them terminal experiments. And he did a thing called psychic driving where he would keep people under sedation for long periods of time—months and months at a time—give them all kinds of drugs and have tape-recorded voices programming them in their ears, to see what kind of mental aberrations he could create. Just random experiments, just weird, ruthless stuff. Now, the CIA has paid a number of these people; the ones who survived. Most of them didn't survive. It's been so many years now; it's been 40 years. But they paid them \$750,000 each to make amends, or appearing to make amends. Ross has estimated a very high number, up in the millions, of people who were mind-control slaves of the government, over the years.

Rick: Now, this is outside of MK-ULTRA?

Walter: Well, outside or inside. Artichoke, Blue Bird, MK-NAOMI—there were, but we used the

term MK-ULTRA, but, MK-ULTRA was really just a little part of the overall experimentation. There were all these names—Chickwick, Midnight, Climax, all of this stuff. It goes on and on and on with the names. So, we chose MK-ULTRA just as a "catch-all" because it was a crucial part. He is basing it on a clinical experience of treating people and he projects "millions" of people. He told me one time that he thought this could actually break the system, the mental health system; that this could just overload it, treating these people—Multiple Personality Disorder government mind-control victims. It was just a guestimate on his part, I wouldn't pin him down to it. He's in a position to know. He sees these people. He's out there—having worked on the Robert Moody story, which is another story we ought to get into sometime. He [Moody] was a Marine meteorologist who had been programmed to be an assassin, a covert assassin. Something happened. He thought that aliens were in control of him at the time that he committed these two murders. It seems to me like he was just accidently "triggered", randomly triggered. Marine assassin training, he was hypnoprogrammed; he was trauma-based programmed. He also had Multiple Personality Disorder (MPD) and finally we got him, at the end of his trial at a mitigation hearing, diagnosed as such. But then it was too little, too late. Whether it has any effect on his appeals, we'll have to wait and see, but it certainly looks to me like a travesty of justice where, here, a mentally ill person is being treated like an ordinary criminal. And that, apparently, is the status quo, at least in Arizona and probably in the nation. They're trying to throw everybody out of mental hospitals and into the prisons. And that's another story.

Rick: Pretty scary stuff.

Walter: Yeah. These people are mentally ill, but male MPDs—I don't know if you want to call it Multiple Personality Disorder (MPD) or Dissociative Identity Disorder (DID), or both—male MPDs ARE dangerous, unlike the females. The females, some of them are assassins and bombers and things like that, but most of them find a way—there is an escape valve, a release for their emotions. They are more in touch with their emotions. The men are really hardened and they've suppressed this stuff and they're killers. I'll bet that virtually every serial killer in this country that we've ever seen is someone who suffers from Multiple Personality Disorder. Now the old question comes up, what are we going to do with this? We have the ability to treat this. Everybody wants to get rid of it, you know, and shovel it under. Anybody can be made into a serial killer by the government's programming. That's what Ross is saying. And you should find it on MINDNET, if you want to look for that article. It's a transcription of a speech he made. And it's vericom@idiom.com (?).

Tape change [lost some].

...Robert Gates, former CIA Director, calls him Bill Gates, like at MicroSoft. A few little errors like that. You know how it is when you're up there on the stage talking extemporaniously. It's a very entertaining speech, but it's very informative about all the CIA documents and how he proves beyond a shadow of a doubt that mind control is a well-established part of the cryptocracy. And that's what I began to look at as a result. I was looking for two documents. Primarily the use of drugs in interrogation and the use of hypnosis in interrogation and from the fact of whether I knew that these were government projects. So I sent to the National Technical Information Service [NTIS] in Washington, D.C. which has every government contract ever. It usually has the amount of money and what the project is, the name of the project, the number first, in sequence, number one, number two,

number three, and so on. And if it's Secret, it says—if number one is a study for sunglasses for pilots; number two, the study of homing pigeons; number three, Secret: nothing. The first one will have, say, a hundred thousand dollars or whatever, but when it comes to the Secret one it will have a number and then it just says "Secret" and nothing else, or classified. That's what I expected I'd find. I had these two numbers. One was for the use of hypnosis in interrogation and the other one was for the use of drugs in interrogation. And, when I came to know those numbers, which are not next to each other, [this next portion is garbled on the tape]...

I left NTIS with the librarians pulling their hair out, saying, "How did this happen? Who's been tampering with our indexes," and all that. Same day, I virtually got out and the *Washington Post* headlines said the Rockefeller Report was released. Richard Helms had destroyed 152 separate files as his last act as Director of the CIA. Two files that I wanted, both on hypnosis, were destroyed, as well as over a hundred-odd MK-ULTRA files. Some of these files were subsequently located in the basement, but still, the story is far from complete.

Rick: How did you and Mark Phillips ever get connected? Or you and Cathy (O'Brien)?

Walter: Well, I had a neighbor who was a psychic and Mark had apparently traveled all over the country with his hands out and has lectured this group of professional people.

Rick: And this is roughly what year?

Walter: Only a few years ago. About three or four years ago.

Rick: Ok.

Walter: I didn't like it that he put out a piece of paper that said I was a CIA agent or CIA case officer, or something like that. Anyone who knows my history knows otherwise. So I asked him where he got that—it was hearsay. But it was damaging hearsay, because to me it's like a dirty word—the CIA. Like Leary says, "It's like saying nigger, you know?" It is a dirty word. Anyway, so Mark thought I was a CIA defector or something, but it seems to me that once you work for that agency, it's like the Mafia—

Rick: There's no way to get out.

Walter: There's no way to get out. The mind control starts in the beginning. I documented it from the lips of the CIA officers themselves, talking about the "brain wash". They called it brain washing, in those days. Fortunately, I coined the term—I didn't coin the term, I just applied the term—mind control, in place of brain washing. Now, mind control is a generic catch-all which needs to be further defined. And the thing is, we've gotten so many unfortunate people who probably have mental problems, coming forth claiming to be mind-control victims, that we've had to start giving treatment tests—the Freedom of Thought Foundation has started giving extensive tests to people to find out if there—what kind of mind control they're talking about, if they are indeed mind controlled at all.

Rick: When you first came out with Operation Mind Control, what was the year of the original

softback?

Walter: It came out in '78.

Rick: They came after you with big guns, didn't they?

Walter: They sure did.

Rick: Would you like to tell that story?

Walter: I was living with Peggy Hitchcock. I had three children, I had a daughter, 7, and a daughter, 4 or so.

Rick: And you weren't exactly a pauper.

Walter: No. Had I not had the leisure for doing all this research, I never would have come up with anything. I thank Peggy very much for her support, but she didn't know what she was supporting. So I went out on the road to promote the book. I was supposed to do a 33-city tour in 30 days, with 98 interviews across America. And then I was going on to Europe to do the same thing, because it was published simultaneously in the United States, the United Kingdom, France and Holland. I was going to be gone for two or three months. But about two weeks on the road, I went through Chicago O'Hare Airport, and the racks were full of the book.

Rick: Really?

Walter: Yes, full. And in London, entire bookstore windows were full. In O'Hare, I called home and my daughter said, "Daddy, come home. There's this ugly man with black curly hair sleeping in your bed with mommy." Wow. I was sitting there just weeping on the plane. It was like somebody hit me with a ton of bricks.

Rick: Sure.

Walter: And when I left, I said, and unfortunately I said this on the phone, "Well, there's only one way that they can stop me and that is if they mess with my family." So, the way they messed with the family was, they sent in this guy, who was not a very attractive little guy, and he was Roy Cohn's former partner—of the Fifth Ave. Bus Company. He had a big history—he was an attorney who was licensed to practice in New York, Maryland and Hawaii. Anybody he knew in Hawaii, any lawyer, wanted to lynch this guy. He had no Martindale-Hubbell rating, but he had all these connections and all this money. And, his profile was a perfect CIA profile. He moved in on her and he finally died of an overdose of drugs. He ran the divorce against me. It was ruthless. It made the front page of the *Law Review* in Arizona. It was so blatantly fraudulent. There was big money. I spent a fortune, everything I had, on this divorce, trying to come out with half custody of my kids, which I lost. I remember pleading in front of the judge about the poverty of wealth. I don't want to retry the case or say anything derogatory about anybody, but I feel the same way, that my kids didn't have the right upbringing after I left. And this guy apparently abused one of my daughters, from all signs that I see.

Rick: Obviously this slowed you down a little bit.

Walter: It slowed me down an awful lot.

Rick: But you've come out with *Operation Mind Control* again, only with a little more control. Would you explain to our readers about your organization? And about the book.

Walter: I've expanded the book to be twice the size. It's a story that just won't go away. It is probably the most important story or more important than the atomic bomb. It's going on today, and I'm working on a second volume of it now. And what I've learned is even more frightening than the first story, the first volume that you know about. The Cathy O'Brien story and all that sort of thing is obsolete. Today they have a way of doing the same thing and more—they can run the human body like it was a machine, by remote control, and you never know your "handlers". And it's hidden in little pieces, compartmentalized all over the universities of America in anesthesiology, biomedicine, computer science, linguistic cybernetics—it's called cognitive science. Little pieces of the puzzle are there and when you look at the overall push to interface the human brain with the computer, you begin to get the picture of what is going on and it is so terrifying, every one of us is in danger.

Jose Delgato made a speech before Congress where he pleaded that they allow him to set up a psycho-civilized society. And, in fact, I think that is the plan. And now the technology does exist to do that.

Rick: And how do you know that?

Walter: How do I know that?

Rick: Yes.

Walter: You're going to have to read the book, because it is going to take a lot of documentation to prove that statement, but in fact...

Rick: I have *Operation Mind Control* in front of me while we're talking.

Walter: Yes, it's about 800 pages. There will be another 800 pages on this new dimension.

Rick: So, just for our reader's sake, you're not just talking out of your hat.

Walter: No, not out of my hat. In *Operation Mind Control* there was a hundred-page bibliography in the back. I shot it down to six-point type, and now its forty or sixty pages now. I got it as small as you could read it. And some of it you may need a magnifying glass to read. But all of the information is there.

Rick: Why the Freedom of Thought Foundation? What's the purpose of the Foundation, and if our readers wanted to support you, how would they do it?

Walter: For a charter membership for a hundred dollars, you get a free copy of *Operation Mind Control*, and the monthly newsletter. And it is like a follow-up to the book. It's not just myself, but there are a number of people who contribute to it. A lot of those people are scientists working on the inside. We have sources that have been developed over the past twenty-five years. It is just a way of handling all of the follow-up that is required of this book. This book has a life of its own. It went out of print very fast.

I was saying, I went to Chicago. You might cut this and put it pack in sequence. I went to Chicago and on the way back, after my daughter called me, the book racks were empty. The book was not to be seen. And this happened in every city where it was published. I was a big hit. Like in Paris, they only have noon news. And that is the number one show, and people would kill to get on it. I was on the Paris noon news for fifteen minutes, talking about this book, with a simultaneous translator. And it was done by a very prestigious publisher, and it is gone! I was paid full royalties, and no copies are to be found.

Now, the paperback, if you have one in mint condition, is worth two-hundred-and-fifty dollars, it's in such demand. So, that's why we brought out this limited edition. And it will be a three-volume work, eventually, I think. There is just so much new information. I put out this limited edition to get feedback, and we've gotten so much feedback—we've got cases of information, documents, some from anonymous sources but they're obviously declassified government documents; and individuals sent clipping files, we've interviewed hundreds more people, telling their stories, and it all interlocks. These people don't know each other. We've also administered psychological stress evaluator, voice stress analysis, to make sure people are telling us the truth.

The story knits together very, very well. We've relied a lot on "human intelligence", as we did in the first case, because we're out there on the cutting edge of describing what this thing is all about. And, I'm telling you, we're at a turning point in the history of man, right now, where we are becoming cybernetic organisms. The potential exists. The technology exists. And with things like HAARP, and some of the other things, there is every indication that this is the intention of the cryptocracy, which has to be the seven sisters—the seven fossil-fuel-based, dynastic-based banks who are the powers of the global economy. These are the New World Order banks.

Rick: Is the CIA still behind the modern...

Walter: I knew these people at the Mellon Bank, you know, and I heard about the oil crisis—that's something we should also get into someday—in 1968, I knew all about the oil crisis coming. I just didn't believe it when Thestle [?], the director of the Mellon family's taxes and the bank, occupying the 39th floor of the US Steel building in Pittsburg—when he said, "We're gonna trim the fat off the economy. We're gonna teach the workers that work is a privilege, not a right." I mean, this is 18th century. Who is this guy? Then the oil—our partners in Kuwait—or the Arabs—they wanted to raise the price of oil. It was two dollars a barrel then. "We may let it go to nine"—what did it go to? Thirty.

I said, "What about alternatives?"

"Well, we're gonna pump every drop of oil out of the ground at top dollar before we make a capital commitment to alternatives."

"What are the alternatives?" I said.

"Fusion."

Well, you can't contain the—this is in 1968, on the eve of the election of Nixon and Humphrey. I said, "Who's gonna win?"

He says, "Nixon."

I said, "What's going to happen to the economy?"

"We're gonna trim the fat from this economy."

Little did we know we're going to let our partners, the Arabs, and Kuwait, and then at some point, my mother-in-law said, "I had lunch with George and Barbara. George is going to be president, one day. He's going to be the best president."

So I was getting an overview what this was all about and its very scary. It's a very scary thing. You can find out about it by reading a book called the *Mocadima* [*Mukadima*?], written in the 13th century by a guy named Gibbon Caldoon, an Arab. In the *Introduction to the History of the World*, Toynbee called him the greatest historian who ever lived.

But they had a plan and they implemented this plan. I asked him about the fusion and he said, "We have a company called General Atomics, it's half Westinghouse and half [garbled tape]."

"How can you contain the plasma?"

He said, "Well, we put an L5 in orbit with zero gravity—that contains the plasma. And then the other problem is heating, overheating on Earth. We put it there and vent it out into space and it's perfectly cold." And they probably convert it back to microwave and beam it down to Nevada, or somewhere.

And then, windfall profit tax came and they bellied up. They bellied up General Atomics and I think it was a five-billion-dollar write-off—which was just some patents that they had. These are the people who gave us the Federal Reserve Board and the Income Tax. You hear about the Rockefellers all the time. You don't hear about these other guys; they keep a very low profile.

Rick: What is Project Green Star?

Walter: Many people have asked me that, and I'm not sure I know what that is. I've heard of green—green is everywhere in the mind-control thing. Do you know what it is?

Rick: No, I don't. I'm just looking through your book here and that's one of the chapters.

Walter: Whatever I know is there in the book. But, as far as what it really truly is, and where you lay your hands on the classified information, it's "classified". Until we repeal the National Security Act, we're not going to find out. I mean, I keep running up against it.

Rick: I just opened up to an interesting page, here. You write, "The largest mind-control programs under the auspices of the CIA and the National Security Agency are: MK-ULTRA, MK-DRACO, Patter, Reach, Blue Bird, Artichoke, XINO, Nexo, Dancer, and Watch Tower." Now, our readers are familiar with Blue Bird, Artichoke, Watch Tower, and MK-ULTRA, what is MK-DRACO; what is MK-HATTER; and what is Reach?

Walter: Well, some of them we don't know what they are. We just find a page, you know, or we'll find how much money they spent, or how many years it took. And a lot of them we don't really know what they did. It is still Secret. So, we come into that. And some of that information there, is cross-correlated testimony from people who were survivors who remember what the projects were called.

Rick: Do you find people still come to you, CIA-types, with information, just fed up?

Walter: Yes. Well, there's a saying, "Danger fosters the rescuing power." And I think that the human spirit is, essentially, good. Human nature, the human soul, is essentially good. It's also eternal. This is my own personal belief. When somebody is doing something wrong and harming others, they are harming themselves. They feel bad about it, so they want to make it right. Like the [Admiral Jeremy Mike Boorda, Chief of Naval Operations] Boorda murder—he had just started a clandestine investigation—of the mind-control projects, the new kind of stuff, the so-called 5th-inning telepathy system. And we have four different sources for that. That may have been the reason that he "suicided". There was also NATO pressure on him because some of the targets of this kind of synthetic telepathy are foreign diplomats and high-ranking government officials.

Rick: Sure.

Walter: So, they're very upset about this, and they want to know who's doing it. What we have is a rogue elephant here. It's like it's the Mafia, institutionalized. I mean, in the '60s I said, "I'd rather do business with the Mafia than the government, because if you keep your word, the Mafia keeps its word." The government doesn't keep its word, no matter what. They'll kill you anyway. When I wrote that I was 26, 25. The local Don showed up and wanted to know who wrote that. He was quite amused by it. It was kind of a scary moment.

Rick: (Laughter.) Have you ever heard of—I know you are familiar with the term "remote viewing"—there is a company out of Los Angeles called Psy-Tech.

Walter: Yes.

Rick: And Major Dames. Have you done any research with him or about him?

Walter: Yeah. A little bit, he's mentioned in the book. What's the other fellow's name, Lt. Col.,...I had gotten interested in it after the first edition of *Operation Mind Control* was published back in 1980. In 1979, I met a man, and it's in there as a footnote, who was a remote viewer—not for the government, but he knew about the Stanford Research Project, remote viewing project. He had gone inside of Cheyenne Mountain, by Colorado Springs, and some kind of ray had captured him and frozen him, in his experience, and he thought, "Oh, my God, I'm dead. I'm never going to get back to my body."

Rick: Interesting.

Walter: And he said some guy came around with, like a security wand, but it was a different technology, and kind of scanned him and said, "Another sleep-walker. Let him go." And bam, he was back in his body.

Rick: Wow.

Walter: But before he got frozen there, he'd seen things in the room to his left and the room to his right, big cavernous rooms inside that mountain. And what they were, they were bell-shaped bee hives, bell-shaped things, stacked up one on top of the other, and he didn't know what it was until later he saw a picture of a Tesla generator—that generates magnetic waves. And his impression was that they were trying, they were pumping these directed magnetic waves through the Earth, trying to effect the outcome of a local election in Florida. That's what was going on at that particular time.

I called Ingel Swan up after that, and I said, "Ingel, I've got a great idea." I didn't know him from Adam, but somebody I knew did know him. I was in Aspen. I said, "Let's set up a citizen's intelligence agency where we all use remote viewing on this corrupt, clandestine government we've got. Let's spy on the CIA and the NSA and all those guys." "Oh no, oh no. They're good guys. They're not all bad guys." And he was scared to death. I didn't realize he was so much one of them.

But now the cat's out of the bag and, of course, you might have expected, as I did all along, we all have these abilities. Human beings have immense psychic abilities, or whatever you want to call them, ESP. It's not extra-sensory, it's sensory. We have senses that we're not supposed to use and the powers-that-be wouldn't want us to have these powers, because we wouldn't be asleep. We wouldn't be slaves. So, they're not interested in waking us up, but they sure are interested in having those powers themselves, for themselves. So they did all this remote viewing. They started out, well, we know they started out in the late '40s, and we know that they funded J.B. Rhine's telephathy research at Duke University, and it's been a continual funding of this kind of ESP, and what looked like quasi-hokey science, but in fact, isn't.

A man named Sargent, at Cambridge, had an experiment where he tested people with those little cards that you saw in *Ghost Busters*. I think Rhine developed those cards. Of his experiments with 250 people, there was a 65% positive result (psychic) from his experiments.

Rick: Pretty good.

Walter: I was taken there by a man named David Bearglass, from Britain. I was taken to the Royal Academy to hear this speech. After I had been on the BBC, this guy shows up and takes me down there. And he says, "You have to see this."

I was fascinated to see the Royal Academy, where Faraday had done all of his experiments. So this man presented a 45-minute presentation of this data, a very nice young man. The guy who brought me there was his debunker. And he is a micro-muscle movement guy, like the amazing Randy or Cresca. Now, he can read these subtle muscle movements, these "tells" that people have. He just gets up and ranks on this scientist, and two other guys just like him. And I thought it was very—I was quite shocked—the British are so reserved and polite, proper. These guys were like a couple of guys from New York City's garment district.

Rick: (Laughter.)

Walter: Frank, you know, rank, kind of weird debunking, "Yah, like Uri Geller, hoax, fraud..." Stuff like that.

Anyway, then they took me to the Brown Hotel, they entertained me. We sat there with a number of the famous and infamous and notorious and had a great dinner. They kept me out until five o'clock in the morning, and this guy David Bearglass kept getting up to make phone calls. I said, "David, what are you doing making these phone calls?"

He says, "Well, it's my 40th wedding anniversary."

I said, "What are you doing out with us? You should be home with your wife."

"Oh no, I wouldn't miss this for anything."

So, on the way home he's driving a big American Pontiac in these narrow London streets and on the way home I said, "David, how long have you been working for MI5?"

And he says, "Oh, about 20 years."

And I got back to my room and everything had been gone through. My socks were put away. No maid ever did this. The way they went through everything and put everything away so neatly, just to let you know that they'd been there. The Americans would have thrown it on the floor and left it.

Rick: (Laughter.)

Walter: These guys have got class. (Laughter.) So I had few run-ins like that, but from that idea I got the clear impression that there is a debunking operation always going on. It's like cognitive dissonance—you find a lot of it in the UFO phenomena. For everybody who sees a light in the sky, and I've seen them here in the mountains of Arizona. In the '60s I saw a flight of these things over the mountains like fire-flies or ping-pong balls on water—that all stopped suddenly like deer who are startled. And they took off across the sky silently, changing color as they went, up the spectrum.

The next thing you know, helicopters are there sweeping the mountains with search lights.

Rick: (Laughter.)

Walter: And so I had the feeling that they weren't ours. I had the feeling—and, of course, for everybody who saw that, there was a story of an explanation of what that was and they explained it away. So this is the cognitive dissonance phenomena that we get so often now.

I think that we have science which is in the realm—applying quantum physics and particle physics—that there is perhaps some kind of time phenomena occurring that we rent [tore] the universe, so to speak. Maybe a bunch of guys poured through when we rent it, I don't know. Or, they are us. Or, we went out and met a bunch of creatures who are also living in the halls, so to speak, the halls of time. Something is going on. Until we repeal the National Security Act, we're not going to know.

And the fossil fuels companies are so invested. And it's such a lie. We've been living such a lie for so long, and there is such a drag on our perception. Unfortunately, the Information Age is making all this come to the surface. The reason we are now so aware of the cryptocracy is because it is obsolete and we see it for what it is. And we know about the National Security curtain, and things are rolling out from under it all the time. It can't be contained much longer. And the Information Age is simultaneity of information, where it appears everywhere at once. There is no source any more. If I am sending you an E-mail message, and I am in a simultaneous mode, I'm typing it on a screen and it's appearing at your screen at the same time, where does this originate? Does it originate on your screen or my screen? Simultaneously. It is everywhere at-once-ness we're going to have to contemplate. And we're going to have to contemplate "isn't-ness", and some wonderful ideas like that, which quantum physics gets into. But the technology is there and I think that we probably will have a Golden Age, if we ever take back our country.

I think that the *Constitution of the United States* is a beautiful document we can live by. We can still live by that, in any age. The *Bill of Rights*—but the fossil fuel interests, the oligarchy who would enslave us, who has enslaves us and continues to want to enslaved us, are trying to pump every drop of oil out of the ground at top dollar before they make the, "capital commitment" to anything else. And, of course, it's there and they've got 90% of the wealth. They are not loyal to a country. They are internationalists. They are the New World Order. They are not loyal to our nation or our people or anything else. As a matter of fact, "We're going to teach these workers that work is privilege and not a right."

And he explained, in 1968, that since he was from Pennsylvania there were a lot of coal miners there and the sons of the sons of coal miners thought that their jobs were going to be secure because their grandfathers had been coal miners, their fathers had been coal miners, and they were going to be coal miners. "Well, they're not going to be coal miners because we're closing down the coal mines. There's not going to be any more coal mining. Eventually, America is not going to make any heavy industry—even cars we're not going to make. We're going into the Information Age and all these people will have to be retrained," he said.

That was back in 1968.

Rick: Said who?

Walter: Addison Thestle, the guy at the Mellon Bank. He told this to me in '68. He said, "We're gonna have to retrain all these workers. And we're gonna have to teach 'em a new way of making a living. We don't need the coal miners or the steel workers or any of these guys any more."

I said, "What do we need?"

He said, "Data processors. Input-output operators, this is the Information Age. We're going into software, it's not hardware. Let the Japanese be the hardware people."

And that's, basically, what's happened.

Rick: True.

Walter: My eyes were opened with that. I didn't believe anybody. I didn't believe that they planned ahead and I didn't believe.

Rick: They plan way ahead.

Walter: Yeah. I didn't believe that they were successful at that. As a matter of fact, I thought it was a rather short-sighted and short-term planning. But it looks like very long-term planning with a very insidious plot. For example, fossil fuel—think about it. People are led to believe that oil is made from crushed dinosaurs and vegetation. Right? How preposterous that is. Any geologists will tell you, well most geologists will tell you that oil is created by the magma of the Earth. The oil wells in Pennsylvania that were pumped out dry at the turn of the century and capped are now filled with oil again. It is a renewable resource. So, we've been the victims of a hoax. We're thinking we're using dinosaurs, and dinosaurs are finite. They sure burn good. This is the biggest bunch of hog wash that's ever been fed. So, there is layer after layer after layer of disinformation and confusion. Divide and conquer. You don't know what the truth is. "What you don't know can't hurt you," as goes the saying of the previous generation—that World War II generation—what you don't know won't hurt you. Well, it's what you don't know that will hurt you.

So, in the Information Age we are all having access to so much information, the common man is going to have a lot of information and some of us are not going to succumb to the "bread and circuses" environment—we know how to go on a "media fast". The new promise of what the Internet is, and new communications—for example, you can make a phone call on the Internet, anywhere in the world. You can even make a video phone call, where if you have the same equipment, you can see them and they can see you, while you're talking, for the cost of a local call. Well, as soon as the news of that gets out, don't you think the phone company is going to be out of business? At least, long distance business. And if this kind of chaotic, free enterprise, whatever the Internet is—if it can co-opt something like Ma-Bell, AT&T, just think of what else is coming. There's going to be revolution in biotechnology, there already is. We have a revolution in genetics. We have so many moral questions about genetics; that could go on forever, the conversation about genetics.

Rick: Sure.

Walter: And engineering. This man here, Steward Hammeroff at the University of Arizona, he's an anesthesiologist—he's working with Roger Penrose—he's postulated that there are magnetites, like little pieces of iron, I guess, if you want to think of them that way—in your DNA coil. And the micro-tubules contain them and they perform a function that has to do with your primitive brain, crustacean mind, if you will. But, certain functions of the human body are controlled by this. And these things are susceptible to magnetic resonances, so that if you modulate a magnetic wave and aim it at a person, you can control them like a robot. And this man is off into anesthesiology, and this was his paper; it is supposed to be a thesis, and I think they've got it operational. There are people who will tell you, anyway, that they're experiencing stuff like that. And there are hundreds of people saying that. And the stories are so similar it's not funny. Now, it's either mass hysteria or it is actually happening. And that remains to be seen, in some cases. But, we're gonna try and find out. And it looks like it really is happening, because the response from some of the people who should be in the know is that this is too serious. They can't say, "Shut up and go away," anymore, to these hundreds of thousands of survivors who are complaining.

For example, the President's Commission on Radiation. I knew about mind-controlled children being made to drink plutonium, ten or fifteen years ago. And, of course, now they're in their late forties, early fifties. These children have grown up now, and a lot of them are missing their thyroid gland and they've had to have them taken out because of the effects of radiation. And they're not getting any disability from the government. One lady wrote the president, she won't let me print the letter because she is still hoping that he's going to answer her—President Clinton. But it was a sad and touching letter and I wanted to print it. If she releases it, I'll send it to you. Delightful letter, beautiful letter, but I don't think he is going to answer it. The President's Commission on Radiation was just a little white-wash cover-up. And there was so much that went on there. I mean, the three women who spoke before the President's Commission on Radiation—they gave them an hour and then got rid of them. How they got on there in the first place, God only knows; it was a fluke. But, in fact, the mind-controlled children were the ones they were experimenting on, as well as retarded children, prisoners, anybody who couldn't say anything later. This was a real Megalomania kind of operation. And these are war crimes. These are violations of the Nuremburg code, and they are violations of their constitutional rights. And the people who did this, like Martin T. Orn and Jolly N. West, who is still out there very active and he is one of the authors of the Air Force's new threevolume New World Vistas book. You should get that.

Rick: Hatonn has just written in the last day...

Walter: Who?

Rick: Hatonn.

Walter: Oh, Hatonn. Okay.

Rick: He's on the byline. He's taken a lawsuit apparently filed in Washington. I don't know when the lawsuit was filed, but he's taken that and used it as a springboard to write about. And the

information covered in that lawsuit is, I would imagine some of the area that your new material is about to get into. So, I want to talk to you about several of the specific things and I'll just give you an idea of what they are in advance here. SIGNINT intelligence. SIGNINT. S-I-G-I-N-T. Are you familiar with that?

Walter: I—

Rick: The SIGINT intelligence mission of the NSA.

Walter: Yeah, I've heard of that, but it's not clear what exactly is meant to me.

Rick: Okay. Are you familiar with the NSA's domestic electronic surveillance network?

Walter: I'm not really familiar with that. I'm probably not supposed to be, you know.

Rick: How about EMF brain stimulation?

Walter: Well, that's old stuff. Yeah.

Rick: For remote mutual monitoring; RMM.

Walter: Oh, really! Is that what they're calling it now?

Rick: Uh-huh.

Walter: Well, I don't know of any government documents that ever—except the new one that has come out called *New World Vistas* by the Air Force—I don't know of any government documents that have even admitted stuff.

Rick: What is New World Vistas?

Walter: Well, *New World Vistas* was a three-volume report, just recently released by the Air Force, on what we're going to do, what new technology that we're going to do, in the future. And, I've got it around here, if you want me to quote it.

Rick: Yeah, would you?

Walter: Yeah, it's an interesting—I mean you can't believe, I never thought I'd ever see the government printing this kind of stuff. But, I get most of the insight into this thing from people, who, you know, just human beings that are calling me telling me about this.

Now, I have a letter here, this is not published yet—you might want to wait till then and get all the facts on it. I have a letter from one of the survivors from Ronald R. Fobleman, General, U.S. Air Force Chief of Staff. And this lady complained about her heart via, what she calls, the synthetic telepathy system. A lot of them have been calling it the synthetic telepathy system. And he said that he's passed her letter, copies of her letter, on to the Special Investigations Office of the Air Force and

has asked them to look into the case. This was 6 of March '96, and she could give them her number and she's attached a follow-up address of an individual who is looking into this. So the mind-control thing is being investigated by the Air Force and we have heard also that several agencies of the Joint Chiefs of Staff are investigating it. So, it's getting very serious now.

Rick: So, New World Vistas is?

Walter: New World Vistas is a book. Ah yes, here it is.

If you can't understand a word or something call me back, I'll read it really fast, I'll read it at a pertinent—it's about a page of text.

Rick: Okay.

Walter: This is from New World Vistas, it's in the heading "Biological Process Control".

Rick: And who is this from?

Walter: This is from the Department of the Air Force.

Jolyn West at UCLA is a famous mind-control doctor. The guy who killed, back in the MK-ULTRA days, at the University of Oklahoma, killed an elephant with LSD. Ah, was possibly one of the authors of this.

Rick: Okay.

Walter: [Quoting the book:] As we look forward to the future it seems likely that this nation will be involved in multiple conflicts where our military forces increasingly will be placed in situations where the application of the full force capabilities of our military cannot be applied. We will be involved intimately with hostile populations and situations where the application of non-lethal force will be the tactical or political preference. It appears like there are a number of physical agents that might actively, but largely benignly, interact or interfere with biological processes in an adversary in a manner that will provide our Armed Forces tools to control these adversaries without extensive loss of life or property. These physical agents could include acoustic field, optical field, electromagnetic fields, and combinations thereof. This paper will address only the prospect of physical regulation of biological processes using electromagnetic fields.

The literature regarding the interaction of biological processes with electro-magnetic fields is growing at a rapid rate. Sources are becoming more available, biomagnetical instrumentation is improving so that the interactions between biological processes and synthetical fields can be examined with fewer artifices, and the principles underlying these interactions are becoming clearer and more amenable to theoretical predictions.

Prior to the mid-21st century, there will be a virtual explosion of knowledge in the field of neuroscience. We will have achieved a clear understanding of how the human brain works, how it really

controls the various functions of the body, and how it can be manipulated (both positively and negatively). One can envision the development of electromagnetic energy sources, the output of which can be pulsed, shaped, and focused, that can couple with the human body in a fashion that will allow one to prevent voluntary muscular movements, control emotions (and thus actions), produce sleep, transmit suggestions, interfere with both short-term and long-term memory, produce an experience set, and delete an experience set. This will open the door for the development of some novel capabilities that can be used in armed conflict, in terrorist/hostage situations and in training. New weapons that offer the opportunity of control of an adversary without resorting to a lethal solution or to collateral casualties can be developed around this concept. This would offer significant improvement in the capabilities of our special operation forces. Initial experimentation should be focused on the interaction of electromagnetic energy and the neural-muscular junction involved in voluntary muscle control. Theories need to be developed, modeled, and tested in experimental preparation. Early testing using in-vitro cell cultures of neural networks could provide a focus for more extensive intact animal testing. If successful, one could envision a weapon that would render an opponent incapable of taking any meaningful action involving any higher motor skills, (e.g. using weapons, operating tracking systems). The prospect of a weapon to accomplish this when targeted against an individual target is reasonable; the prospect of a weapon effective against a mass force would seem to be more remote; use of such a device in an enclosed area against multiple targets (hostage situation) may be more difficult than an individual target system, but probably feasible.

It would also appear possible to create high fidelity speech in the human body, raising the possibility of covert suggestion and physiological direction. When a high power microwave pulse in the gigahertz range strikes the human body, a very small temperature perturbation occurs. This is associated with a sudden explanation of slightly heated tissue. This expansion is fast enough to produce an acoustic wave. If a pulse stream is used, it should be possible to create an internal acoustic field in the five-fifteen kilohertz range, which is audible. Thus, it may be possible to "talk" to selected adversaries in a fashion that would be most disturbing to them.

In comparison to the discussion in the paragraphs above, the concept of imprinting an experience set is highly speculative, but never the less, highly exciting. Modern electromagnetic scattering theory raises the prospect that ultra-short pulse scattering through the human brain can result in reflected signal that can be used to construct a reliable estimate of the degree of central nervous system arousal. The concept behind this "remote EEG" is to scatter off of action potentials or ensembles of action potentials in major central nervous system tracts. Assuming we will understand how our skills are imprinted and recalled, it might be possible to take this concept one step further and duplicate the experience set in another individual. The prospect of providing a "been there—done that" knowledge base could provide a revolutionary change in our approach to specialized training. How this can be done or even if it can be done are significant unknowns. The impact of success would boggle the mind! [End of quote.]

Some of the stuff they're describing—

Rick: They're way beyond that.

Walter: Yeah, some of the stuff. Oh yeah, well you understand the research and everything. But, I

think that a lot of it is just information. Some of the science is not correct. Some of the things they're saying that can be done, really can't be done. Some of the things they're saying that they're trying to research they've already done.

Rick: Right.

Walter: In my opinion.

Rick: Sure.

Walter: So, it's scrambled eggs, like you usually get from the government. Little disinformation mixed in with misinformation mixed in with accurate information.

Rick: Well, let's get back to, when I mentioned the term "EMF brain stimulation" for remote neural monitoring you said that's old.

Walter: Well yeah, they've been, at least we're talking, we're interviewing people and talking to people and I think you meant human intelligence is as accurate as any way you're going to go. I mean it's more reliable than just depending on CIA handout.

Rick: Right.

Walter: It goes back to probably 1979, the people have been describing the experience and the kind of thing. And just an overwhelming number of people that are describing this kind of thing.

Now, a lot of them are diagnosed as paranoid-schizophrenic, because whenever you hear, say, have a two-way conversation with some voice inside your head, you're diagnosed a paranoid schizophrenic. But, in fact, that's what they can do and have—somebody has been doing it. Whether it's an agency of our government or a foreign government or extraterrestrials, for God's sake. We don't know, nobody's tracked it down, but here you have the Air Force admitting to the possibility of it, in that section I just read. Which, I never thought I'd live to see the day where they'd come right out and say, this is what we're working on. But, I think they're way ahead.

Now we have found some indication of renegade little units in colleges. If you get into neural science, you start looking at the cognitive sciences, which started in the '40s; it drew up a parallel with the MK-ULTRA research and really isn't included in the MK-ULTRA research. It's not referred to, so it overlaps everywhere. It's now called cognitive science and they have consciousness conventions. The word "consciousness" used to be a dirty word to science in the '60s and the '50s, but it started with Norbert Weiner and John von Neuman and others back in the late '40s early '50s. And it involved linguistics, it involved neural networking, computer neural networking, parallel studies.

We found one guy, at one university that admitted to us that he is studying, on the computer model, neural networking—for, like, a regular computer is a serial organization of information, one dot after, one bit after another. Neural networking is parallel organization of information like almost holographic, like the brain works. And, he admitted that they are studying the neural network on the

computer, what would happen to brain tissues when it is heated up by a microwave. That's the same thing that's referred to in this paper. And, of course, he's probably a very straight scientist doing very straight work funded by the government, highly compartmentalized. He doesn't know what the other guys are doing with it, doesn't know that it's operational already.

Rick: Right.

Walter: But, it's like the guy that sweeps up after the elephant, you know. He's in that position. So, they're going to document this and they're going to have to—because the entire future of the human race is at stake here. We're in great danger, I mean if they can take over your mind and your thoughts—when you interview these survivors—I mean the Cathy O'Brien story is tame compared to what these people are experiencing. This is total coercion of the soul. It's like—they use the term "soul". They say, "They've captured my soul." "My body has been invaded by this intelligence. It runs me." They use the word "running me". They use the word "torture", they call the voices—or most people believe that the voices that they hear, the feedback is almost constant 24 hours a day and most of them, after years of experiencing it, feel it's got to be some sort of artificial intelligence—man-run, but a computer-based thing. That it's got a way to monitor their thoughts and their spoken words inside their heads.

Rick: Well, the next thing I wanted to ask you about is the National Security Agency signals intelligence electronic brain link technology. And here it says, in this writing. "NSA SIGINT can remotely detect, identify and monitor a person by bioelectric fields".

Walter: I've heard of that.

Rick: "The NSA SIGINT intelligence has the proprietary ability to monitor remotely and noninvasively information in the human brain by digitally decoding the evoked potential in the 30-50 hz 5 milliwatt electromagnetic emissions from the brain. Neural activity in the brain creates a shifting electrical pattern, that has a shifting magnetic flux. This magnetic flux puts out a constant 30-50 hz 5 milliwatt electromagnetic EMF wave. Contained in the electromagnetic emission from the brain are spikes and patterns called evoked potentials. Every thought, reaction, motor command, auditory and visual image in the brain has a corresponding evoked potential or set of evoked potentials. The EMF emission from the brain can be decoded into the current thoughts, images and sounds in the subject's brain. NSA SIGINT uses EMF-transmitted brain stimulation as a communication system to transmit information, as well as nervous system messages to intelligence agents and also to transmit to the brains of covert operative subjects on a non-perceptible level. EMF brain stimulation works by sending a complexly coded and pulsed electromagnetic signal to trigger evoked potentials or events in the brain, thereby forming sound and visual images in the brain's neural circuit. EMF brain stimulation can also change a person's brain state and affect motor control. Two-way electronic brain link is done by remotely monitoring neural audio-visual information while transmitting sound to the auditory cortex bypassing the ears and transmitting faint images to the visual cortex bypassing the optical nerves and eyes. The images appear as floating two-dimensional images within the brain"—and it goes on from there.

This is from, let's see: "The following document complies with evidence for a lawsuit filed at the

U.S. Courthouse in Washington, D.C., by John Sinclair Akiwa against the National Security Agency. Fort George Meade, Maryland, Civil action 92-0449 and constitutes his knowledge of NSA-structured National Security Agency proprietary technologies and covert operations to monitor individual citizens.

Walter: Right. Now are we getting—that's not an NSA document you have got?

Rick: No. This is part of—I guess this guy, I don't know if he worked for the NSA or what, but he has distilled all of this technical information down as part of his lawsuit there in Washington, D.C.

Walter: Well now, what you've got to do to prove the case is get them to admit they're doing it. Which they haven't done yet, but I guess that's the way the game is played.

Rick: Well, now have you heard of this kind of stuff?

Walter: That sounds consistent with some of the descriptions that I've been hearing for the past 25 years. Since 1980, roughly '80, 15 years for sure. But they were messing around with it way before that and they were messing around with that kind of approach. Now we have a lot of information on the '50s. What they did in the '50s, and they were trying to do brain/computer interface in the '50s. And this is the perfect—sounds to me like this is the perfect brain/computer interface you're describing. Already accomplished. They haven't admitted it yet, but we do have the evidence of research that was going on. And they kept saying in the '50s and '60s, that they couldn't do this, they couldn't succeed because human behavior was so unique, so unpredictable, they could train the machines, but they couldn't train the people. That's what they kept saying.

Rick: Sure.

Walter: But, now we've got plenty of evidence of witnesses and here we got letters and there's some question. Boorda was involved, Jeremy Boorda, Chief of Naval Operations, was involved in the investigations of this thing. Because there are people out there, somewhere, whoever they are, that are experimenting wantonly on, and have been for years, unwitting victims in the United States.

Rick: That's right.

Walter: And, there are thousands of these people complaining and coming to us. Asking us to turn off the signals. "How can we turn them off"? You know, they're in terrible torture. I mean, to have no privacy, to have—well the earliest book that I read was, I think, written about 1980-81, by a lady named Dorothy Burdick. And, she's still alive and she's updating her book I understand—but she described this. And, of course, she jumped at some of the wrong conclusions early in those days. She couldn't tell where the voices were coming from sometimes. She thought it was outside of the house at the back of her lot, when she was walking through the woods at different times. But then it would happen when she was making love to her husband. The consistent thing that I've noted in all the survivors' accounts is they're describing what sound like evil fraternity boys doing evil and ugly pranks. People that are experiencing this use strong language to describe these people. They call them "scum" and different other words. Just hateful, hateful of these voices, which appear when you're in your most intimate and private moments. And, of course,

everyone is entitled to their privacy.

Now our whole way of life is designed around the privacy of thought and a certain amount of privacy and privilege to your private space. Your home is your castle, kind of thing. Your mind is your—your body is the temple of God, kind of thing. Well, suddenly when something can invade, some new technology can invade this and make fun of it and cast dispersions 24 hours a day on your life and your thoughts and your most intimate ideas and feelings. Well, it's a psychological torture beyond measure.

Rick: That's right.

Walter: And, it is—people say, "They captured my soul." Now, there's a guy, he wrote a book called *The Amazing Hypothesis*. His name is Sir Frances Crick.

Rick: With a "k" or a "c"?

Walter: C-R-I-C-K.

Rick: Okay.

Walter: I believe that he won the Nobel Prize for discovering DNA. He's a famous man. He wrote a book called, *The Amazing Hypothesis*. The last chapter in the book is all about free will. It's at bookstores, you can find it in your library or at a local bookstore. And you'll notice the language that the scientists are using. They are using a euphemistic saying. They're calling—they're talking about the free will of an individual and the lack of free will or the loss of free will. But they never talk about mind control. They talk about where the soul resides. And he's saying, this guy, "I think the guy is nuts." He's talking about, you know his total material, is talking about where you find the soul in the left, third neuron from the right. Whatever, there's the soul. And he's got a big argument about it.

Another guy at the University of Arizona, his name is Dr. Stewart Hammeroff. One of the survivors calls him the "Off Brother". There's Hal Puthoff and there's Stewart Hammeroff. He calls them the "Off Brothers". And Hammeroff was the head of the consciousness meeting, big consciousness meeting that Crick spoke at in April last at the University of Arizona, in Tucson. And Hammeroff is working with a guy named Roger Penrose, I believe he's a mathematician and Hammeroff is an anesthesiologist in the biomedical sciences department. And he says that there are micro-tubials in the DNA coil that have magnetites in them, that are—that resonate to a—the same thing that you're talking about, that resonate to electromagnetic pulses, and that through the manipulation of the pulses or the electromagnetic signal, you can run the primitive mind of man like it was a robot. I think he refers to it as the crustacean mind. I don't think of what that means. But, they're looking, I mean they are definitely looking at creating the psycho-civilized society that Dr. Jose Delgato, CIA funded, Yale University—ESP electronic stimulation of the brain researcher, originally from Madrid, Spain. Jose Delgato went before Congress and pleaded for Congress to create a situation where we have a psycho-civilized society. Where every individual would be so robotically controlled, there'd be nobody late for work any more. Everybody would work fast when they were told to work fast,

and slow down only when they were told to slow down. It's in the *Congressional Record*. Boy, it's what they're going toward. That's the outcome.

I think this is the most important area of research and exposure that we can do as journalists and as freedom-loving people. You know, politics aside, this is something beyond politics. It doesn't matter what you believe.

Rick: Well, I couldn't agree more. In fact, that's why I called you back, to see if you're writing an update to *Operation Mind Control*, and what kinds of areas are you going to get into?

Walter: Well, I'm going to, the second volume is called *Wave Length*. And it is going to be—I'm going to try to do the best job that I can in explaining to the layman exactly what all that gobbledegook means. And how the brain works and how it responds to this, and I'm going to be leaning heavily on the hundreds and hundreds of hours of interviews that I have gotten from people that are suffering from this. And, I'm going to also go back in history on this thing and that's the really perplexing thing. Two hundred years ago, there was a guy named Matthew who was probably an intelligence agent in England, and he talked about his mind being controlled by a mind-control machine. That's the earliest we've ever heard of a machine controlling the mind, the entire concept. Now he was diagnosed, again, as a raving paranoid.

Rick: Sure.

Walter: But his story fits the modern description. The modern description is so prevalent. That, on one hand you have to explore the possibility of this being some sort of anthropolarization of the technology that is coming; or some anticipatory things that come from the ESP of people that are mentally, let's call it "gifted"; that maybe they're anticipating this thing. We have to look at all the possibilities because, I think you'll find all of the possibilities in the reports that we're getting. And we give an extensive 27-page questionnaire to anybody that makes this claim to find out where they're coming from. So we try to narrow it down, in the scientific sense, and find out if these people are really experiencing this thing, if they really are mind-controlled people. And otherwise normal or if these people have some sort of psychological aberration.

Now, if you are hearing this voice, you're going to have a psychological problem. I mean, which comes first, the chicken or the egg?

Rick: Sure.

Walter: If they turn on, if they have this machine and they turn this on, no question about it, but you're going to have psychological problems is the result. You're going to also have physiological problems. And you can monitor these signals, I'm told, with a spectrum analyzer. If you can, get next to a survivor or a victim of this targeting and you can watch the signals come and go with a spectrum analyzer. And it leaves damage to the human body. There are physiological results, which I don't want to talk about now. There's definitely a profile of...

Rick: Wasn't there damage on the stem?

Walter: Well, there's damage to—it shows up in the bloodstream and it shows up in various measurable functions of the human body, when you're targeted. And, there's a consistent pattern here emerging from people. Now, a lot of people are running around saying they have implants.

Rick: Right.

Walter: Does this thing, this paper that you've got, does it say anything about implants?

Rick: Oh, no. This is way beyond implants.

Walter: That's what we've been told. Consistently, that the implants are not, they've messed around with implants apparently in the '60s...

Rick: That's such old news.

Walter: Uh, yeah. And that's in your veterinary store today, the implants. And you can implant your dog or your child, or whatever, you know. To keep track of them. But, these things—this requires no implanting.

Rick: That's right.

Walter: But, it is apparently radioactive. There are radioactive effects. So, whether or not this eventually ends up killing people remains to be seen, or maybe has killed some of the survivors. We do know that some of these survivors, these people who are experiencing these things, victims of this targeting. I call them "EM-targeted people", some people have been very cruel and called them "wavies".

Rick: That is cruel.

Walter: That is a cruel thing to call someone when they're experiencing this kind of thing. I call them "EM-targeted people" and they are having physiological complaints that are measurable and consistent. And, we are trying to gather that data on all of this, right now. There apparently also are several different systems. If you want to call it "synthetic telepathy system", that seems to be what is most easily accepted as a generic term for this. Because it is a two-way conversation with something they are experiencing. But there seems to be more than one approach to this and what we found out—these people experience this for a long period of time. They'll try one thing then they'll try another. And the report that you have there sounds credible to me; I mean it sounds very close to what we can describe. That's why I'd like to go over it with a fine-toothed comb.

Rick: Sure.

Walter: Compare it. And, also I have some—the interesting thing about this is this: This is what gets ya. At some point you say, when you hear all these people talking about this, you say, "This is a bunch of paranoia, this is mass hysteria." But, then they give you names and phone numbers of people they don't know. And they tell what these people are doing in research, they're actually

giving you information about the system that they're experiencing. And you check it out and it's true. And that's what blows your mind about it, that's what makes you say, "This has got to—there's something to this. This is not just a hallucination."

So, you call up the names at a particular university and you finally get the guy on the phone and you say, "Your research has been called to my attention, can you tell me a little about it"? And, he tells you that—and he's reluctant and you pry and the more you probe the more finally he spills the beans and tells you the same things that the other survivors have told you about, you know, about the research that he's doing. And, it's scattered out in every corner of the universities, it's not centered on one—it's not in psychology, it's not in linguistics, it's not in the computer sciences and the anesthesiologists and every—biomedicine—it's in every part.

Rick: It's come off the military bases and into our society.

Walter: Well, yeah, that's it.

Rick: Sure.

Walter: Bush was talking about the privatization of government, well if you're a private company, you have a lot more ability to keep things secret...

Rick: Sure.

Walter: ...than if you're a government agency. It seems to me, because there's a certain public access to the records. They've been doing a lot of different clandestine operations. They're doing illegal research on Indian reservations, things like that.

Rick: Well, Wackenhut was a...

Walter: Wackenhut is an example and there's a variety of others that are...

Rick: Cabazon.

Walter: Yeah, yeah. And, so that's also what might have happened to some of this stuff, not necessarily Wackenhut, but a private group got hold of this technology. And for some reason, ran amuck with it.

Now, a lot of these survivors are—we've seen patterns of certain belief systems, people with certain belief systems being targeted; certain races being targeted. And different, it's almost like a step-by-step experimentation over the past twenty years. And a lot of these people are connected with the government. Some of them are offspring of fairly high-ranking government employees. As we saw in the MK-ULTRA, we saw that also with the mind-control people being used in the radiation experiment. Similar kinds of things here, there's a crossover between one thing and another. That once you're cannon fodder, I think anybody that signed an agreement with the government is now fair game. So, they get the contract number and maybe the, whatever you want to call it, the radionics reading. Whatever, that's what it sounds like, what you're describing. The blood sample,

or whatever it takes to the private enterprise guy that got his uplink on an Indian reservation to an NSA satellite, or however it works. And, they're torturing these people to watch them jump. Some of these people are near death now, from the torture.

Rick: How do some of these victims find you? I would think that would be pretty difficult.

Walter: Well, no. There's a network of people that we've been in touch with for many, many years. And, that's why we've started the Freedom of Thought Foundation to deal with all this. It was more than just I could handle.

Rick: Are you getting help from some of the other associates?

Walter: Yeah. We have a lot of associates, everybody now, seems to want to be anonymous. I'm just the visible one.

And the information is getting more and more scientific. So, little by little we're going to get to the bottom of it and track it down. And right now we're out on the outer edge of it, trying to pin-point the cause of it because it should be domestic within the United States but it also could be foreign. You don't know where it's coming from at this state.

Rick: Well, the one thing that amazes me, and this is really off track from what we've been talking about, but it just amazes me that with the hundreds of thousands, if not millions of victims of MK-ULTRA generally, I am amazed there are not more of them falling apart at the seams and, as a result of that, becoming public.

Walter: Well, I think they are. I think they, little by little, they sure are. I know what's happened in the twenty years or so that I've been watching the story. It's everywhere now and people know about it. I usually go into my beginning orientation rap. But like back in the '70s, I mean, everybody said I was crazy and alone. Now, I've begun to go into "here's what happened" and "here's how it happened" and "here's what came from what started in the '40s". And the same stuff that I've—that you'd be amazed at how many people are aware of it. And they can find me, I'm on the Internet. I'm real accessible. The Freedom of Thought Foundation is at, and my name is at, 57 different places on the Internet, world wide.

Rick: Well, that's good.

Walter: Yeah, so it's there. They find me through Internet or through a friend who knows about a friend. So, they become the best researchers.

Rick: Right.

Walter: You know, they dig everywhere, and this one particular lady has got—she posted on the Internet a briefing pack of: if you call the Air Force at this number, you're going to get this person answering the phone, this person answering the mail. And she's tracked it, pinned it all down to what individuals work where and all that. It's amazing.

Rick: That's useful.

Walter: Yeah, very useful. So, they've done a huge amount of research and the survivors are really—while there is some detriment to survivor networking because, you know, they "pollute" each other, in some sense. If you're thinking of this as a psychological thing, like Multiple Personality Disorder. It remains to be seen whether or not it's helpful or hinders them because they pollute each other so much.

Rick: Well, it's almost a mutual dependency.

Walter: Yeah, that and—

Rick: Co-dependency.

Walter: Right, exactly. They're so highly imaginative. They hallucinate things so easily. But, these other kinds of survivors, the EM-targeted people are pretty functional in every sense of the word. And when you talk to them, some days they're in bad, writhing pain, you can't talk to them. And other days they're perfectly lucid. Somebody took a day off at the controls of the mind-control machine or whatever it is. And they're perfectly rational and reasonable and very helpful. And they don't seem to have the same—it's a whole different situation than the MPD, DID, MK-ULTRA types. Monarch, so called Monarch type thing. It's an entirely different thing.

And most shrinks don't believe it's happening.

Rick: Oh, no.

Walter: Yeah, they're trying to say it's Multiple Personality Disorder.

Rick: Sign of the times.

Walter: Or, they're trying to say it's some sort of paranoid schizophrenia. Those are the categories that fall into DSM4 because there are about six or seven categories where you can hear voices. And so they'll pigeonhole it into one or the other, but they're not looking at the whole person and they're not really communicating with the person, more than at that professional distance. Fill out this form. They don't really spend any time with them when they diagnose them, generally speaking. And from what I've seen in this Robert Moody trial, I have very little respect for the psychiatric profession, the mental health profession, any more.

Rick: There are so few who even have a clue what's going on.

Walter: Also, it is so deeply corrupted. The courts are deeply corrupted. They're using prisons now to house mentally ill people. They've got mentally ill serial killers, who are Multiple Personality Disordered people, working on chain gangs in Arizona.

Rick: Pretty spooky.

Walter: And one of them is writing to me and he's saying, "I got nothing to lose. That fence is just right over there. They only have 60mm rubber bullets. I saw them shoot the guy in the next cell and it didn't hurt that bad; he was around in a week."

So, it's crazy.

Well, you're doing a great job. Kudos to you. There aren't many people who have the insights that you do, let alone the resources to go out and get the interviews and ask the questions. You're doing great work. I can't wait to see the day that *CONTACT* is offered on the Internet and has it's own website.

Rick: I believe the day is soon approaching when *CONTACT* will be out there, far and wide.

Walter: It's got to be.

[THE END.]

CHAPTER 9

BANKSTERS' SHENANIGANS THE SORDID STORY OF SANTA BARBARA SAVINGS & LOAN by Ray Bilger 7/18/96

Part I of this thoroughly researched story began in the 7/2/96 issue on page 10.

PART II

This series began with an exploration of some of the events that had occurred up until the end of 1987. However, what occurred within that time frame has not been exhaustively examined, and things that were explained only on the surface need to be studied more in depth to show some of the players who have not yet been fully revealed. Make no mistake about it, the level of corruption involved with Santa Barbara Savings & Loan was indeed quite staggering.

The situation with Drexel [Drexel, Burnham & Lambert] and Boesky and their involvement with Financial Corp., of Santa Barbara (F.C.S.B.), the parent company of Santa Barbara Savings & Loan Association, (S.B.S.L.A.), was clearly set forth in the F.C.S.B. and S.B.S.A. lawsuit brought against Drexel and Boesky in United States District Court, Central District of California, case no, CV-89-0005987. Named in the complaint is one Victor Posner, allegedly "involved in the illicit relationship with Drexel and Boesky". "(Ivan) Boesky purchased stock of various corporations, including Fischbach Corporation" (a corporation in which Victor Posner had a controlling interest), "and Boesky purchased and sold securities at the direction of and for the benefit of Drexel" to F.C.S.B.

In 1993, in a New York federal court, Victor Posner was found guilty of having participated in the fraudulent scheme to take over Fischbach Corporation in 1984. The Securities and Exchange Commission (S.E.C.) had charged that, with the help of Drexel, Victor Posner and his son, Steven, secretly arranged to place Fischbach stock with Ivan Boesky to conceal their intention to seize control of the company. Drexel and Boesky pleaded guilty to felony charges stemming from the transactions. Victor Posner appealed all the way to the Supreme Court of the United States, which declined to review his case.

Victor Posner is known as what is termed a "corporate raider", one who acquires and builds up corporations only to then loot and destroy them, and he had very extensive holdings. William Pallot, who has known Posner since 1958 and served on the boards of many Posner companies, said of Mr. Posner, "Victor did such a wonderful job building, but an even better job destroying." The way in which Victor Posner operated was apparently not appreciated by everyone, and Victor was obsessed with security, almost always appearing with his entourage of bodyguards. One of Posner's most distasteful habits was his appetite for teenage girls.

Posner had been investing in junk bonds offered by Michael Milken since the mid-1970s having been recruited to Drexel by Drexel's Donny Engel. Engel, not fully approved of by everyone at Drexel,

knew how to deal with clients like Posner, by catering to their sexual desires. Yet Posner did seem to have some very high-level connections.

One of Posner's many companies was Sharon Steel Corp. of Pennsylvania. When former C.I.A. Director William Casey was in private practice, prior to going to the Agency, Sharon Steel was one of his clients from 1976 to 1981.

Another man with high-level connections, Armer White, was a director at Sharon Steel Corp. According to Pete Brewton, author of the book *The Mafia, C.I.A. & George Bush* (S.P.I. Books, 1992), a former chief examiner for the Texas Savings & Loan Dept. and several other people, had heard that Armer White was a friend of President Ronald Reagan.

Posner hired Leonard Pelullo as a consultant to Sharon Steel in 1987. Pelullo was a Miami developer and Mafia associate, and a borrower at American Savings & Loan in California, where Philip Brinkerhoff was president. American Savings was also a huge buyer of Drexel junk bonds.

Posner had long retained Attorney Edward Bennett Williams, the famed Washington criminal lawyer. Williams, one of the most well known of American criminal defense lawyers, has defended such notables as Senator Joseph McCarthy, Teamster boss Jimmy Hoffa, financier Robert Vesco, former Treasury Secretary John Connally, and former Congressman Adam Clayton Powell.

Victor Posner had also owned NVF Company, a plastics and fiber manufacturer. Posner had plundered and looted the company for decades, siphoning off millions of dollars, finally forcing it into bankruptcy. A year later, Posner and American Financial Corporation (run by another corporate raider, Carl Lindner, a longtime friend of Posner) tried to buy back NVF Company from its creditors. Carl Lindner, one of Drexel's biggest clients, is a long-time friend of George Bush, and was a major donor to the Bush presidential campaign! Carl Lindner was also the owner of Ocean Reef Club on the north end of Key Largo, Florida. George Bush frequented the club for fishing trips with Lindner and friends. The club's airstrip handled much of the cocaine brought into the country by Jack DeVoe, C.I.A. gun runner. Lindner was at one time Michael Milken's biggest client for junk bonds. Lindner controlled Hunter Savings & Loan in Ohio, a big purchaser of Drexel junk bonds. Lindner was the biggest S&L-connected contributor to congressional campaigns in the 1980s.

In the 1960s, Charles Keating and his Cincinnati law firm represented Lindner. Keating went to work directly for Lindner in 1972, and moved to Phoenix, Arizona in 1976 to take over Lindner's home building company, changing its name to American Continental Corporation. American Continental then bought Lincoln Savings & Loan in 1984 with the help of \$51 million provided by Drexel. Of course, we already know about Charles Keating, Lincoln Savings, and the 5 U.S. Senators. There is also strong evidence of Carl Lindner having C.I.A. connections. This web of deceit appears to go in every direction and includes almost every prominent individual in government.

Posner was at work in other shady deals with Drexel, including a takeover of National Can Company (of Chicago), which involved Posner, Drexel, Carl Lindner, National Can's investment banking firm of Salomon Brothers, and a host of others. Posner proved to be very lucrative for Drexel. Posner, who also owned a major controlling interest in Arby's and Royal Crown Cola, among many

other corporations, at one time tried to buy Sunrise Savings, an S&L in Boynton Beach, Florida. Sunrise Savings is unique in that it is the only known case where there is a public record that Vice President George Bush intervened on an S&L's behalf. Sunrise Savings C.E.O. Robert Jacoby met with Vice President Bush in Washington, in 1984, complaining of federal regulations being too tough. Bush called a woman who worked underneath Ed Gray (then Chairman of the Federal Home Loan Bank Board) and told the woman to back off from Sunrise.

In the late 1970s, Drexel began hosting an annual high-yield bond conference as a new strategy to promote their junk bonds. By the mid-1980s, this conference would utilize entertainers such as Frank Sinatra and Diana Ross, and host other corporate raiders such as Sir James Goldsmith, the legendary anglo-french financier. (Sir James amassed a huge empire, often through hostile takeovers. Drexel had backed Sir James in his takeover of Crown Zellerbach Corporation, the forest-products and paper company based in San Francisco.)

Victor Posner, who was associated with people who had direct relationships with Ronald Reagan and George Bush, supplied the junk bonds which Boesky and Drexel sold to P.C.S.B., the parent Company of Santa Barbara Savings & Loan. But is there a more direct connection to White House involvement in the S&L? This sordid story is just unfolding and is by no means over yet. What about possible Mafia connections?

In the background article which preceded the Santa Barbara Savings & Loan story, it was pointed out that the authors of the book *Inside Job* (McGraw-Hill, 1989) found clear evidence of either mob, or Teamster, or organized crime involvement at nearly every S&L they researched for their book.

Herman K. Beebe, Sr. (of Louisiana), whom the authors of *Inside Job* considered to be a "veritable godfather" of S&Ls and banks, reputedly had extensive connections with powerful Mafia personalities, including Carlos Marcello, the powerful New Orleans Mafia boss. Through the 1980s Beebe and his associates reportedly had a major controlling influence in no less than 52 banks stretching from Texas and Arkansas to Florida, and in no less than 29 S&Ls stretching from California to Ohio (this included three S&Ls in California, two in Beverly Hills, Los Angeles County, and one in Newport Beach, Orange County).

A rather interesting note about Beebe was what he did in 1984 when federal regulators came down on him, forcing him into court. Beebe wanted to show that he had friends in high places, so he made arrangements to send his wife, Mary, out to Santa Barbara, California, where she had her second home. Mary made a visit to the Reagans at their Santa Barbara ranch, and had plenty of pictures taken. Back in Louisiana, the *Shreveport Times* ran a full-page article in a March 1984 edition of the newspaper, complete with pictures of Mary standing with President Ronald Reagan and Mrs. Reagan at their Santa Barbara ranch. The article made its point.

How much more of this and other kinds of involvement with banks and S&Ls (and the Mafia) did President Reagan have? And what about the blind trust that candidate Reagan placed his funds into during the presidential campaign?

In Part I of this sordid story there was more than a bit of corruption alluded to in connection with Santa Barbara Savings & Loan. If the things that were outlayed in Part I, and now in Part II, are in any way true, then, by the very nature of corruption having many layers or levels, what has been revealed would be only the tip of the proverbial iceberg (i.e., that which has been prepared for public consumption). If this is so, then the case could certainly be made that Santa Barbara Savings & Loan should have been shut down long before the Ekkers were caused to suffer from ongoing antics.

Eventually S.B.S.L.A. was shut down by regulators, but by that time much damage had already been done. The F.H.L.B.B. had long complained about having too few regulators for the nationwide S&L problems. The situation was akin to trying to use a band-aid to cover the wound left from a severed arm or leg. The problem was massive and out of control (or was it actually a controlled situation?). When everyone involved was satisfied with their "take", then the multi-multi-billion-dollar debt that had accrued from the incredible losses was handed to the American taxpayers. And, being the fairly well trained sheep they are, they accepted the debt with relatively little fanfare.

The January 14, 1989 edition of the *Los Angeles Times* reported that at a hearing of the House Banking Committee, an official of the General Accounting Office (G.A.O.) stated that fraud and insider abuse were rampant at failed S&Ls. Larry Taggart served as California S&L Commissioner during a period of intense S&L growth in 1983 and 1984. At the hearing Mr. Taggart was questioned by Rep. Richard Lehman (D-California): "How did all these crooks get into the S&L industry in the state (California)?" Mr. Taggart responded, "I'd have to have your definition of a crook." (???)

So what did Larry Taggart go on to do after serving as Commissioner? He started a company called Trafalgar Mortgage in Los Angeles, in partnership with Charles Knapp (Philip Brinkerhoff's buddy at American Savings & Loan), packaging mortgages to sell on Wall Street. It is sometimes difficult for the real crooks to be able to distinguish just what a real crook is.

Let's face facts. The massive fraud that was part and parcel of all levels of the S&L and bank scandal that rocked America in the 1980s and left the taxpayers with a staggering debt, was woven through and through with organized crime and higher-level corrupt element involvement. The fact that things happened the way they did, and for as long as they did, is clear evidence that someone (or someones) wanted to let it go on as it did. Don't believe for a moment that the government was unaware of exactly what was happening. They could have shut things down right away, or not have allowed the problem to begin in the first place. It seems quite obvious that the forces that allowed the decade of the 1980s to be played out the way it was, are the very same forces which control and operate all aspects and functions of the United States Government on a day-to-day basis.

And it didn't start in 1980. Nor did it start in 1963 when these same forces successfully pulled off a major coup and assassinated our President Kennedy. Nor did it begin in 1945 with the establishment of a One World Government called the United Nations. Nor did it begin in 1933 when the government confiscated all the people's gold; nor in 1929 when an economic collapse was successfully manipulated; nor in 1913 when the Congress usurped its authority by giving a private corporation, the Federal Reserve, the power to coin money and regulate the value thereof, the Congress thereby

committing Treason. No, it started long long before that. And it is only We-The-People who allow it to continue today. It is up to us now, as it has always been; stop it, or let it continue and watch it devour us. But we digress.

George Bush is an absolute stickler for not having his name connected with anything. He goes out of his way to make damn sure he cannot be connected with anything corrupt. He is quite adept at plausible deniability. But if you think he was not, or is not still, involved at the very highest levels with all that is going on, then you better go out and buy Pete Brewton's book, mentioned above. It's a good place to start.

George Bush placed his blind trust investments into the hands of one of his closest friends, William Stamps Farish III, the grandson of a founder of Exxon. Farish had been one of the directors of Capital National Bank of Houston, Texas, which merged with Paravicini Bank of Switzerland to become a new Swiss bank called Bank for Investment and Credit Berne.

Ronald Reagan had his blind trust prepared by the Los Angeles law firm of Gibson, Dunn & Crutcher. William French Smith was a senior partner at Crutcher before Reagan chose him to be Attorney General (no conflict of interest there). Smith also decided to have Crutcher prepare his blind trust. Reagan also had substantial investments in CDs placed through Bank of America. Among Reagan's top campaign staff aides in 1980 was William Casey.

As a small (but not insignificant) aside, it is worth noting that Herman K. Beebe Sr., mentioned above, maintained a posh residence at La Costa, north of San Diego, California, in addition to the one in Santa Barbara (and, of course, his home in Louisiana). La Costa is a long-time well known Mafia hangout. It was originally built in the mid-1960s with monies from the Teamsters Central States Pension Fund. Interesting that that fund was drying up about 1980, just when deregulation was hitting the S&L industry. Guess who the Ekkers met in October of 1989, and who happened to have a luxurious 5,500 sq. ft. house at La Costa overlooking the wide Pacific? If you guessed George and Desireé Green you're correct. No coincidences there.

Santa Barbara Savings & Loan entered 1988 on a down note. By February the S&L reported an 85% drop in profits. James Wilson, a financial analyst with Sutro & Co., which followed S&L institutions, said the S&L had apparently not recovered from its \$29 million loss in securities trading in the summer of 1987. Wilson said that Santa Barbara Savings was operating more like a securities business or stock brokerage company than an S&L.

There is much more corruption to explore at Santa Barbara Savings & Loan, but this is enough to digest for one segment. What happened to the Ekkers, with a foreclosure sale that didn't occur, does not appear to be an isolated incident. There seems to be clear and convincing evidence that the same thing had happened to others but, for whatever reasons, those others did not choose to take legal actions against such a fraudulent practice. The Ekkers, however, are not your run-of-the-mill couple, and they felt that they were meant to be exactly where they are in Tehachapi. It would appear for all intents and purposes that Santa Barbara Savings & Loan did not expect to encounter the tenacity the Ekkers have exhibited. The Ekkers expect and deserve nothing less than justice, and they shall have it.

The efforts by this author to uncover and expose each and every individual or entity connected with Santa Barbara Savings & Loan and its activities will continue and increase until the Ekkers see justice served. This is not a threat, not a warning, merely a simple statement of fact. The people need to know the truth. So be it.

To be continued....

CHAPTER 10

THE NEWS DESK by Phyllis Linn 7/19/96

CLINTON SPIED FOR THE CIA

From the June 19 issue of *THE MONTGOMERY COUNTY OBSERVER* (Pennsylvania), [quoting:]

A new book alleges that Bill Clinton spent his Oxford days monitoring anti-Vietnam war activists for the CIA. Ambrose Evans-Pritchard of the *London Telegraph* reported that when Bill Clinton ran for the US presidency four years ago, Republicans tried to prove that, as a student, he burnt the Stars and Stripes in protest at the Vietnam War. Now Dr. Roger Morris, author of an astonishing new book called *Partners in Power*, claims that, in the late 1960s, Clinton worked as a source for the Central Intelligence Agency. So, was the young Clinton a patriot or just an opportunist? He was certainly no dangerous radical. According to the book, the bearded, disheveled Rhodes scholar was recruited by the CIA while at Oxford—along with several other young Americans with political aspirations—to keep tabs on fellow students involved in protest activities against the Vietnam War. Morris says the young Clinton indulged in some low-level spying in Norway in 1969, visiting the Oslo Peace Institute and submitting a CIA informant's report on American peace activists who had taken refuge in Scandinavia to avoid the draft. "An officer in the CIA station in Stockholm confirmed that," said Morris.

The Washington Establishment would like to dismiss this troubling book as the work of a fevered conspiracy theorist. But Morris is no lightweight. He worked at the White House in both the Johnson and Nixon administrations, resigning from the National Security Council in 1970 in protest over the US invasion of Cambodia. He went on to become an acclaimed biographer of Richard Nixon. As a member of America's tight-knit association of retired intelligence officers, he has access to highly privileged information.

The CIA started recruiting campus informants under President Lyndon Johnson when he demanded hard proof that there were, in his words, "commie money and organizers behind this student s***". The program, known as Operation Chaos, would offer informants a wide range of inducements: a little cash on the side; taking care of their draft problems; and promises of future help. "You know, if the agency's in a position to help at some point in their careers, there'd be an institutional memory," explained one CIA officer. "They knew the advantages of helping out."

Morris violates all the taboos. Impatient with the manicured myth that Bill Clinton was the apple-pie boy from Hope, Arkansas, he reveals the little-known fact that the President spent much of his childhood in Hot Springs, the capital of gambling, drug-smuggling and organized crime in the central United States, where his powerful uncle and mentor, Raymond Clinton, was a member of the Dixie Mafia. It was not Clinton's fault, of course, that he grew up in the culture of "the Mob". But it is central to understanding who Bill Clinton really is. It helps explain why his brother, Roger, ended up as a convicted drug dealer, and why Bill himself allegedly became a regular user of cocaine.

(On a police surveillance videotape quoted from in the book, Roger will be heard saying to a supplier of cocaine: "Got to get some for my brother. He's got a nose like a vacuum cleaner.")

ROTHSCHILD HEIR SUICIDES

Was it a suicide or a "suicide"? This very brief article appeared back on page 14 of the July 12 issue of *THE ORLANDO SENTINEL*, [quoting:]

PARIS—Amschel Rothschild, 41, the man many thought would be the prestigious Rothschild Bank's next leader, hanged himself in a Paris luxury hotel, the daily *Le Parisien* said Thursday. Rothschild's body was found by a cleaning lady Monday in his room at the Hotel Bristol, not far from the presidential Elysee Palace.

COMPUTER TALKS BACK

Another tidbit from the April 12 issue of *THE ORLANDO SENTINEL*, [quoting:]

LONDON—U.S. scientists have taught a computer to follow conversation and respond to the context of dialogue and not just to clearly enunciated words, the *New Scientist* magazine reported. A team of scientists at the University of Rochester in upstate New York programmed a workstation to respond to voice commands. The machine could adapt its response to the context of dialogue and make sensible replies even when it "misheard" what someone said, the scientists said. The computer contains a standard speech recognition program that turns sounds into words. The novel part of the system is that it interprets sentences in the context of the rest of the dialogue. [*I guess we are supposed to be impressed and say, "Wow, look at this NEW stuff scientists are coming out with!"* But "Hal" has likely been around as long as 2001, A Space Odyssey. For the REAL cutting edge technology, check out Rick's interview with Walter Bowart, our Front Page story.]

<u>"FREAK WEATHER"</u> CAUSES WORLD CHAOS

From the July 9 issue of the *TORONTO STAR*, [quoting:]

LONDON (Rueter)—Freak weather conditions have claimed hundreds of lives and caused chaos around the world in recent days as scientists warned governments the "greenhouse gases" and global warming may distort climates. In Geneva, United Nations officials and scientists at a conference of some 150 signatory countries to the U.N.'s Climate Change Convention appealed yesterday to industrial powers to reduce the carbon dioxide they pump into the atmosphere. They urged a tightening of targets for slashing greenhouse gas emissions blamed for potentially disastrous global warming.

As if to reinforce their message, many regions reported severe disruption from freak weather conditions as they spoke. In the United States, an intense heat wave in north Texas killed at least four elderly women in and around Dallas, police said. Daytime temperatures hit record levels of about 41C last week and are expected to stay in triple figures [Fahrenheit, I guess] at least until today. In Mexico, tropical storm Cristina, the third weather system of the year to batter the coastline, killed

five people in the southern state of Oaxaca, left 350 people homeless and caused flooding, authorities said Sunday. In the neighboring state of Guerrero, a freak downpour killed at least seven people Sunday, left two missing and destroyed about 70 houses. Southern China mopped up after some of the worst floods in a century that killed at least 345 in six provinces. Farmers replanted crops, troops buttressed river embankments and officials tried to estimate the scale of damage, while China remained on high alert for more torrential storms. In South Africa, freezing temperatures killed at least 17 people—from exposure or suffocation—and snow trapped hundreds more during the weekend as the country shivered through its coldest weather in decades, police said yesterday. Some parts of the country recorded their heaviest snowfalls in 60 years. Record low temperatures, exceptionally high winds and heavy rains hit several parts of France. [And what's their answer to all this bizarre weather (which was planned and executed through Tesla-conceived weather modification)??—further reduction of industrial technology, with the aim of reducing the U.S. to thirdworld status by the year 2000. We are well on our way.]

JUDGE RULES GESTURE IS NOT ILLEGAL

From the July 12 issue of THE ORLANDO SENTINEL, [quoting:]

TAMPA (AP)—Charges against a driver arrested for not wearing her glasses were dismissed after a judge ruled that giving a deputy "the finger" was not against the law—and not reason enough to pull her over. Tanaya Tirelli, 19, was arrested last March in Brandon for not wearing her glasses as her driver's license stated she should. Hillsborough County Deputy Sheriff Frank Cheshire said she drove by and made the obscene gesture, according to court records. The deputy said he thought she was speeding, although he didn't see her speed. He arrested her on the eyeglass violation and took her to jail. [In other words, his buttons got pushed!]

Last month, Hillsborough County Judge William Fuente granted a defense motion to suppress evidence from the stop, saying the deputy lacked reasonable suspicion to think an offense was committed. "Giving the 'finger' is not a violation of the law, and cannot, without more, support a detention," Fuente wrote in his order. On Wednesday, scheduled as the first day of trial, the judge granted a defense motion to dismiss the case. [Well, although not illegal (and Miss Manners agrees with me on this), such behavior is pretty juvenile and counterproductive to promoting harmony in the universe!]

HILLARY'S TRIP PROMOTES JEWISH AGENDA

The next article is deftly worded and loaded with trigger expressions to wrench every last bit of propaganda value. From the July 3 issue of *THE ORLANDO SENTINEL*, [quoting:]

OSWIECIM, Poland (AP)—In a grim tour of Nazi horrors, Hillary Rodham Clinton stared in revulsion Tuesday at piles of human hair, stacks of children's shoes and the killing cells of Auschwitz. For two hours, Clinton and Poland's first lady, Jolanta Kwasniewska, toured two camps at Auschwitz. They said little, staring at ghastly museum displays in cement-floor rooms that once housed 200

prisoners at a time. Mounds of human hair were displayed behind glass along a 50-foot wall in one of the barracks. "What did they use it for?" Clinton asked, grimacing [Always in the market for new ideas, I guess?] Her tour guide pointed across the room to a window with several scraps of cloth displayed. The first lady understood immediately: "This material is made of hair?" she asked, her voice rising with each word. [In case you thought those old tales had been finally laid to rest!] They walked past mounds of artificial limbs, suitcases and clothing, past picture after picture of naked, dying children and terror-stricken women.

At Room No. 20 of the "Block of Death", down a dim, damp basement hallway filled with cells, Clinton peered into a tiny room that Nazis once used to suffocate 19 Jews. She looked silently at a large gouge in the wooden door, a remnant of the prisoners' frantic final search for air. She saw the firing squad wall. The incinerator. The gas chamber. She stood at the platform where Nazi doctors once stood, waving prisoners one way to the deadly work camp, the other way to the gas chamber. "This was cold, rational evil that had, as never before...used tools of technology and bureaucracy to exterminate millions of people in a deliberate effort at genocide and political conquest," the first lady said afterward, her voice choked with emotion. [The grotesque experimental mind-control travesties on U.S. citizens covered in Rick's Front Page interview with Walter Bowart tie in (not so) nicely with Hillary's comments here, don't you think?]

* * *

IN MEMORIAM

Mary Backman

We at *CONTACT* would like to acknowledge the support of Mary J. Backman, who recently was called home (a promotion) after 88 years of gracious and quiet service on this planet as part of the Ground Crew. "Mary looked forward to reading every *CONTACT* as they came in," said her daughter L.G. in a recent note. And it is just this kind of recognition of truth, from ones who have been "around the block" enough times to see clearly what degradation has been going on, who comprise the audience we feel most motivated to serve, and who most honor us by their recognition of and appreciation for THE TRUTH.

Yes, Mary has recently received a "promotion" to the "home office" but we are quite sure she is still contributing her support and encouragement from a finer dimensional place. There can never be too many Guardian Angels watching over us! — E.Y.

AMAZING CROP CIRCLE PHOTO

The above "crop circle" photograph was downloaded from the Internet, from radio talk-show host Art Bell's home page (www.artbell.com). We share it with you here because of the extraordinary circumstances which document the time window for its creation. That is, it appeared in the middle of the day, within a 15-minute window, between the time that two different airplanes passed over this field on approach to landing. The first pilot saw only a wheat field, while the second pilot, 15

minutes later, reported what we see in this photo.

A professional surveyor called-in to Art's show Wednesday night (7/17/96) and said it would take his team of professionals at least a week of solid work to even begin to lay-out this most curious and intricate symbolic structure.

In the background (top), across the highway that bisects this photo, is the famous historical site called Stonehenge in Wiltshire, England. The date of this event was 7/7/96. — E.Y.

WATCH CLOSELY AS THE TITANS CLASH

7/20/96 SOLTEC

Good morning, my friend, it is I, Toniose Soltec, here in the Radiant Light of the One Creator.

My, are we not in an awkward predicament this day. The power players are positioning for the opportunity to unleash their weaponry in order to gain full control of your planet's resources.

The plane explosion [TWA Flight 800 in New York], as you can now see, was clearly a deliberate act of murder. These dark ones have so little regard for life that they would destroy over 200 people in order to get the one that they really want.

The rumored government documents was a secondary target, but nonetheless a target that cost lives. Allow this to show you the means and the methods being used against you in order to control the masses.

It is viewed that you ones (the Americans, especially) have too much freedom of travel, thus the need to create panic and fear to keep you ones stationary.

CONTROL is the key focus of these "power players".

There is much else planned in the way of retaliation. You will have to pay VERY CLOSE attention to the clues and reported "accidents" worldwide.

These dark ones are desperately trying to hold their power positions, yet they slip away anyway. This is how the adversary eats himself.

Through patience and persistence we of the Lighted team can continue to grow in strength and wisdom, and eventually be the only ones left on the playing field.

We are not a threat to these "heavy hitters" for they know that we will not attempt any physical action against them, just merely inform those few people who might listen.

The dark ones are so confident in their ability to control the mindless masses that they rather enjoy what they like to call "our brag sheet"—otherwise known as *CONTACT*.

Thank you for writing this short message, my friend. We are those who watch over you. May God give all of you the strength and conviction you need to persist through these trying times.

With much Love and Light, Salu.

HILARION: OUR RESPONSIBILITY TOWARD BALANCE & HEALING

Editor's note: The following writing is by the Ascended Master known as Hilarion of the Fifth Ray, the Emerald (green) Ray of Healing, among the seven great "Rainbow Masters" communicating at this time to help us through Earth-Shan's planetary transition and rebalancing. See Journal #7 called THE RAINBOW MASTERS for more background on this important group of teachers, plus earlier writings by them. Refer to the Back Page for Journal ordering information.

7/20/96 HILARION

I am Hilarion, Master of the Emerald Ray. I come in the Light of the One Light.

My scribe, another was to come at this time, but due to the recent events, changes have been made and I, Hilarion, have been called to give a message at this time. Allow my healing energy to balance you so that we may maintain the signal.

These are harsh times for EVERYONE on your planet. The physical bombardments and mental unrest are so great that heart dis-ease, cancer, and other stress-related illnesses are taking their toll.

This is not to say that the man-made plagues are not of concern. We are talking about souls so confused and disoriented that they cannot function properly with all the bombardments at this time. THIS IS TRULY A BATTLE FOR YOUR SOULS!

Many shall be lost and shall have to await another opportunity for expressing. These are some of the hardest lessons you ones must face.

Healing begins from within. Ones must desire to balance their personal conditions. This is not as easy as it may seem.

Desire for balance is just the first step. Ones must take action to attain that balance. Ones must be willing to confront those things which are causing their inner, personal conflicts. Recognize them for what they are and get rid of them. Stop giving these self-created demons the power to control you.

Life is meant to be enjoyed. The experience should be one of Creative Expression that honors the One Who created you.

Let us take an example, please:

Let us say you are involved in a relationship with another and you both are very much in love with

each other. So you get married and start a family.

At first, all seems just wonderful. Then the children come, planned for or not (most of the time not). Now your life begins to change. You can no longer just go out with your friends and have parties. You must stay home and take care of your responsibilities.

Now perhaps money becomes a concern, and you and the one you love begin to argue and fight over these building pressures and stresses. You look to each other for strength, yet both of you seem to have less and less to give.

Pretty soon that once fabulous and wonderful person seems less wonderful and less desirable. Now you both begin blaming each other for your unhappiness, and soon you are so miserable that you cannot take it any longer. So you both decide to divorce.

This is a very general example and not too uncommon down there on your planet.

Let us take this one step further:

You now go out and remarry with another person with a broken family. You take two broken families and try to make one functional family. And you repeat the same cycle all over again.

When does this cycle stop?

When you realize the TRUE problem.

You must stop looking for another to fulfill that emptiness within. If you feel empty inside, then YOU have allowed that feeling to grow, and only YOU can fill that emptiness.

When ones enter into relationships with another, they both flow energy to one another in a completely giving manner—and thus expect this all of the time. This is fine. But if you cannot see that it is quite improbable that either will be able to maintain the energy output all of the time, forever, then you shall be in for a rough ride.

Let us go back now and proceed forward with the original example:

Once the children come, they need a great deal of energy that you ones were accustomed to giving to each other.

Now the responsibilities associated with giving and creating an environment for the upbringing of the children hit. The worries and stresses associated with wanting to give the children everything that they may need become quite a drain on both parents.

Neither has much left to give and become very mechanical, almost robotic in their interactions with each other. The excitement and spontaneity soon diminishes, and each is left wanting more. Neither realizes that THEY have created this unbalanced situation, and thus try blaming each other—not

seeing that it is they, themselves, who are at fault.

If one truly desires balance in one's life, one would look at those things which they blame another for, or those things which have a lot of pain associated with them. Then ask yourself, "What part of this situation can I take responsibility for?"

You ones are responsible for the feelings that you feel. There are no victims. If you are with a person who beats you, then why did you choose such a person to be with? Is ignorance your excuse? Then why do you repeat these things over and over again?

You will find the balance you seek when you realize that you have created the self torture—that is to say, you allow or somehow think that you deserve your self-inflicted loneliness.

Realize, please, that YOU must make your own choices and decisions, and live with the responsibility of those conditions which you have helped to create.

INNER BALANCE IS THE KEY TO THE OUTER (PHYSICAL) BALANCE!

If you are constantly plagued with poor health, then perhaps you are looking for sympathy (energy) from another. Please know that the God-self within can supply you with all the ENERGY that you could ever need.

You ones must learn to love yourselves without the need for another to provide you with the energy that you desire, else you become parasites feeding off of each other's emotional energies.

When you are balanced and at peace with yourself, then you can begin to create a balanced external life.

Wounded people attract other wounded people. When you find the inner peace and balance, you shall attract to yourself others of balanced nature. Also, most important, you will be able to spot those who would feed off of your energy, and thus drain you into an unbalanced condition. This is but one example of inner UN-balance. There are many others, but this is a BIG one that most of you have problems with.

Now that you spot, or recognize within, the problem that causes the emotional frustrations and pain, you must take CONSCIOUS action to overcome the problem. You must look at the situation and be willing to take PERSONAL RESPONSIBILITY for having helped to create it.

If the problem concerns another, then you should, if at all possible, inform that person of what it is that you are considering, and be completely honest about it. Do not blame another for your discomforts or frustrations, for they are YOURS.

There is a reason for everything that you perceive has happened to you. If you look close enough, you shall find that there is a lesson in every seeming tragedy.

Once you begin to balance yourself within, you shall soon find that the external (health problems) will begin to become less and less impacting. This is not to say that you will have a miraculous healing, though it is possible!

Now, if you know of another who refuses to be responsible for their condition, call the fact to their attention and stop feeding the condition. Many out there must conjure up a problem, else from where would they get the sympathy (energy) that they desire. Ones pull away from the Infinite Source—God's energy—only to go around trying to find that which fills the emptiness within.

God's light, His energy, is what these ones seek. You need only to go within and ask with the heart for balance, and to be shown that which will help you to find balance. God shall present the opportunity to you to find balance, but YOU must seek it out with true diligence in order to rid yourself of that which you feel is lacking within.

Now, there are other impacting stresses down there on that planet. You have pollution of your air, ground, and water. You have man-made biological diseases. Your entire planet is in a state of DIS-EASE. This is all due to the mental deterioration of those who choose to remain DIS-connected from The One Light Source.

These ones cannot create the energy within, and thus must take it from those who have it. These ones are so low in frequency that they thrive on the emotions (emotional frequencies) of anger and frustration. They cannot stand the energy (frequency) of love, for it burns them. Thus they maintain conditions of unrest by deteriorating the morals in society to such a level that ones become confused and programmed into a state of depleting each other to a point of frustration and anxiety. This is the emotional wavelength (or frequency) of energy upon which the darkness feeds.

Thus when other great teachers say, "Love your enemy," they are saying to maintain the love frequency within when thinking of the enemy or when he attacks. The adversary cannot stay within the frequency of light associated with love, and thus will leave from you as fast as he can.

Now, the converse is also true. So, if you are "stressed out" all of the time, and in a state of anxiety, then the adversary will do everything he can to keep you in this depleted state.

When you ones can learn to generate and maintain that feeling of being "in love" without the need for another to be present, only then will you find that the emptiness is no longer there. You will have attained the level of joy that you desire and it will be IN BALANCE—and without having drained another to do so.

Creator God has infinite love and energy to give. Allow for this to manifest WITHIN, and the outer self will take care of self. Be cautious of those who keep you down, for they are the ones who cannot stand for others to get ahead of them.

Be persistent and diligent, for it most often SEEMS darkest before the dawn. As you get closer and closer to reaching your Lighted goal, the dark side shall attack you with more and more force. Once you have broken through, the dark side has lost and there will be nothing more that they can do.

This is why ones are bombarded most heavily just prior to "breaking through" and obtaining their goal. Most often this is when most give up and succumb to the pressure—most often at the point of being just one step short of winning the battle.

I am Master Hilarion. I represent the healing, Emerald Ray of Creator's spectrum. I come in the One Light of Creator/Creation so that you ones may have the spiritual insights you need in order to truly heal selves.

May you maintain persistence and patience within the Light.

Salu.

Reprinted from the 11/22/94 CONTACT p. 17

A SINCERE PRAYER

3/23/94 #2 HATONN

My beloved Father, Who is Creator of all, please dwell with me in Your omnipotent glory. Your name is Holy, that mine might be recognized within YOU. In that way may I ever be such that Your realm is incarnate within me. May Your power reveal itself unto and within me, on Earth as Yours resounds throughout the Heavens AND the Earth. May my presence upon the physical journey of life be a reflection of Your WILL, not mine. I need, this day, my daily bread—that substance which sustains me in Your service as You wish me to serve, and thus, let me see and recognize my transgressions and errors as I also come into the recognition of TRUTH. Let me not "judge" any other and allow forgiveness for myself as well, as only YOU can see my soul and guide my feet and heart within Your LIGHT.

Please do not let me fall into temptation and confusion through the putting aside THY WILL in favor of my human ego wants. Yours is the realm within me and Yours is the POWER and the KNOWLEDGE forever—if I but seek it. For, Thine promise is that if I seek diligently in Truth—so shall I find!

Please allow me to reflect YOUR Light into the dark corners of the shadowed valleys in this journey. May I example my ways that I show unto others that which You have shown unto me and may I only act unto others as in the gentle and wondrous giving which YOU offer unto me—if I but accept Thine gift.

Be ever constant within me, Father, that I may ever see Your will and serve in Your way for I would live for You if You but show me my path.

May all the Creatures and Creation be blessed by Your Grace and may I ever revere and respect that which is put into my care and stewardship and in this way I shall KNOW that Your will IS—everlasting and infinite as I am allowed, also, to become everlasting and infinite in Your LIGHT, not just within Your universe.

Give unto me the ability and desire to serve my brother and think FIRST upon his needs before my own—but let me know the difference in giving and assuming responsibility for self that I do not give of Thine great gifts into the places of the carnal consciousness. Let me learn clearly how to "receive" that I turn not away that which You have sent unto me. Abundance is Thine; Truth and Love are YOU and I humbly ask that I discern well and reflect each as it is given unto me—in glory and use, not in greed for self.

Please strengthen my commitments that I do not fail in Your generous commissions placed in my

care for I AM the reflection of Yourself as gifted unto me—that I may BE, may grow, and may BECOME.

I place no "Amen" upon this prayer, Father, that I may be a continuing reflection without beginning and without ending—but residing ever WITHIN Your Grace.

In my impatience let me ever be mindful that "impatience is only brought about by my lack of FAITH"—so, Father, please allow me the KNOWING that my FAITH can sustain me in the waiting upon my journey. Let me understand that the delays are NOT the denials—but only my own perception—for the greater wisdom resides with YOU.

A NOTE CONCERNING EDITORIAL INTEGRITY by Rick Martin 7/26/96

Occasionally we at *CONTACT* are confronted with difficult editorial decisions.

In my interview in last week's *CONTACT* with Walter Bowart, certain comments were made about Mark Phillips and Cathy O'Brien which appear to be demeaning to Mark's character and divisive, at best.

Whenever I conduct an interview with someone for *CONTACT*, I give them MY WORD that the conversation will appear as it occurred, unaltered. When it came to "negative" comments about Mark, it did push a button with me (excuse the expression) and, in retrospect, I should have said so. Hindsight is always 20/20. The fact is, Walter spoke from his perspective, his world view, his own perception. As a believer in the *1st Amendment*, I honor Walter's right to express his views on any subject. And, further, I appreciate his candid comments during our lengthy telephone conversation.

From personal experience, I can make some observations and comments concerning Mark Phillips and Cathy O'Brien. Mark was a wealthy man when he first met Cathy. He gave up everything in his life to mount his rescue effort for Cathy. Mark's character, and this is my opinion, is unimpeachable. Having given up everything in the struggle toward survival and freedom—yes, there was a period when they experienced financial difficulty. And yes, through the assistance of some caring people in various places, they were able to make it. That, certainly, is nothing to be ashamed of. On the contrary, integrity was not sacrificed for a quick sell-out. And, in fact, being stripped of financial resources is common among truth tellers on the right track.

I can say, without hesitation, that I consider Mark Phillips a friend. I consider Cathy O'Brien a friend. And honestly, I don't say that about many people.

The beauty of a truly *free press* is that issues such as this can be raised, discussed, and then we move on. I am of the personal opinion that *CONTACT* readers who have followed Mark and Cathy's story are certainly discerning enough to add no fuel to the coals of comments such as these. With this as a preface, let us now move into comments by Cathy O'Brien.

7/26/96 CATHY O'BRIEN

Dear Rick/CONTACT,

Wow, free press works both ways. Since it does, I would like to take a moment to counter statements made in the July 23 issue of *CONTACT* that are in direct conflict with Mark Phillips' true character.

Walter Bowart's statement, "Mark had apparently traveled all over the country with his hands out" demands reprisal. Not only did Mark devote his accumulated savings and belongings to rescue Kelly and me, but he continues to give of himself <u>at all costs</u> to keep us alive and to get the truth out. When the CIA, various federal agencies, and controlled/censored book publishers offer(ed) small fortunes for our silence, it was/is not even a consideration—poverty is a small price to pay for Freedom.

Likewise, it is erroneous to suggest that Mark put out a "piece of paper" saying that Walter is/was CIA. Walter may fantasize that Mark considers him to be in this league, but <u>even if</u> this were so—which it is NOT—neither Mark nor I waste our time shooting down well-intentioned others (i.e., Walter) when there is so much <u>POSITIVE</u> work to be done. "It's (CIA) like saying nigger, you know?" is a racist insinuation that is contrary to Mark's and my efforts. It is a deliberate diversionary tactic of those criminals in control of OUR government to create emotional issues—such as racism—to keep us all at odds with each other rather than unifying in purpose to implement soulutions to the very real threats against humanity that <u>we all are facing</u> under the New World Order.

Our work is about LOVE for humanity...<u>not</u> about making money (as evidenced by our continued financial devastation) and <u>not</u> about diversionary, counter-productive hatred like racism.

I am hurt and disappointed to see in print two direct shots at Mark's character in light of the heroism he continues to live in service to humanity in these dark days. In keeping with *CONTACT*'S dedication to TRUTH, I am compelled to keep the record straight via this statement.

In Light of Truth, Cathy O'Brien

THE NEWS DESK by Phyllis Linn 7/28/96

COMPUTER CHAOS IN 2000

From the July 11 issue of *THE GAZETTE*, *MONTREAL*, [quoting:]

WASHINGTON (Reuter/CP)—A technology-industry group painted a grim picture yesterday of the potential havoc on computer systems around the world from the so-called millennium bug. The failure of many computers to recognize the date 2000 properly could disrupt vehicle traffic, paycheques, benefit calculations, security operations and even weapons systems, said the Information Technology Association of America. "I don't want to be in traffic, I don't want to be in an elevator in a tall building, I don't want to be anywhere computer-dependent on Jan. 1, 2000," said Nancy Peters of Darmstadt, Germany-based Software AG.

The problem arose because computer programmers in the 1960s and 1970s—when storage space was tight—used two digits to represent the year instead of four, expecting the programs to be obsolete before 2000. Now, most computers, lacking human intuition, either interpret 00 as 1900, or reject it completely as an invalid date.

Unless the problem is fixed: Flights could be canceled when airport computers ground aircraft because they seem to be 99 years overdue for overhauls, or their pilots appear to have been on duty for hundreds of thousands of hours. Phone calls placed just after midnight could be charged as 53 million minutes. Credit-card balances could soar into the millions of dollars as computers that calculate interest go haywire.

Government treasury departments will be unable to write cheques dated 2000 and computers will reject entries of births that year. City traffic-signal systems, which depend on computers to tell them which days fall on weekends and which days are holidays, would also be in chaos, she said. The problem is cropping up already. Some cash registers refuse to accept credit cards with expiry dates of 2000. Employees have to type in 1999 instead. The technology association estimated that the cost of combing through the computer code of programs is 80 cents to \$1 per line, or about \$4 million for a mid-size company. The worldwide cost will be between \$300 billion and \$600 billion, it said.

Approaches to fixing the date glitch range from such labor-intensive ideas as farming the programming work out to low-wage countries, to high-tech solutions involving sophisticated templates to change each affected line of code. Some companies might even develop completely new software systems. Those who get their act together will still face disarray if their suppliers, customers and affiliates don't. An independent users' group is being set up to encourage computer users to change their programs.

A CLARIFICATION OF TORAH DOCTRINE

Issued By The Central Rabbinical Congress of the U.S.A. & Canada

[The media's accounts of Israeli "right wing/left wing" politics is reminiscent of the way this alleged "dichotomy" is portrayed in the U.S.—a blur of ambiguous adjectives designed to keep the populace in a state of perpetual confusion. The following statement is refreshing and may offer some clarity on this issue. It appeared in the Op-Ed section of the July 14 issue of the NEW YORK TIMES and is quoted in its entirety:]

In the aftermath of the elections in the State of Israel it has become a commonplace that religious Jews and their parties supported a candidate who was in favor of slowing down or stopping the peace process. In the public mind, the policies of these parties became synonymous with *Torah* Doctrine. Moreover, they were portrayed in the media as "ultra-nationalists" willing to exchange "peace" for "land". Thus, when criticisms were voiced against the new leaders of Israel for endangering the peace process it was inevitable that blame would fall on religious Jewry, due to their apparent devotion to an expansionist, "Greater Israel".

This impression is utterly false. All forms of Zionism, be they of the "right" or "left", are inherently antithetical to the teaching of our faith! The great sages and saints of our people have always been opposed to the existence of the Zionist state. Indeed, when an obscure Viennese journalist first challenged the *Torah* approach to exile and redemption over one hundred years ago, he was immediately attacked by the *Torah* sages of that time. Those orthodox Jews who support the Israeli state and "Greater Israel" are falsifiers of *Torah* doctrine. They have abandoned the principles of their predecessors for material benefits derived from the Zionist state.

The harm of observant Jews supporting the Zionist state is compounded by the Israeli government's consistent, public rebellion against G-d's kingship. It is a state which constantly violates *Torah* law, and actively seeks to persecute its observers via cemetery desecrations, autopsies, drafting of women, etc. Accordingly, when observant Jews wax enthusiastic over the state and its leaders, it creates a monstrous desecration of G-d's name.

Torah true Jews who have remained loyal to their ancestral faith are not "ultra-nationalists" who desire land at the price of peace. Throughout history dating back to Temple days they have opposed secular, militaristic solutions to Jewish problems. In Israel today they do not participate in the electoral process of the Zionist state nor do they accept its financial benefits. Frequently ignored by the media, they number in the hundreds of thousands worldwide. Yet, it is they who have remained firmly devoted to Judaism as received and taught throughout the millennia.

It is in their name that we restate the fundamental beliefs of our faith:

Torah Jewry sees its exile from the Holy Land as the result of a Divine decree, based upon the Talmudic "Three Oaths" (Kesubos 111a) which prohibit the Jewish people to travel en masse to the Holy Land, rebel against the other nations or in any way seek to hasten the Messianic process by this worldly means. The land was given to us according to G-d's will, and when our sins accumulated we were exiled from it. This exile is in essence a spiritual state that cannot and (as the *Talmud* teaches) must not be remedied by temporal means. Until G-d chooses to end history as we know it, with redeeming us by miraculous acts, we are commanded by Him to live as co-operative, law abiding and patriotic citizens in our countries of residence. Accordingly, the Jewish people have no "claim" to the Holy Land at present. They have no right to conquer or to rule over it.

Clearly, the creation of the State of Israel in 1948 was in no way a fulfillment of the Jewish people's millennial-long yearning for redemption. It was a bizarre, secularist substitute for that redemption.

The doctrine of constantly leading the Jewish people into confrontations with other nations is the dogma of Zionism not of the *Holy Torah*. We are commanded by G-d to live in dignity and piety wherever Providence has so ordained.

Therefore, we declare that the Zionist State of Israel is not the legitimate representative of our people. Our position on the ceding of land is quite simple: Any Jewish sovereignty over the Holy Land before the Messianic Epoch is sinful and sure to lead to tragedy. And it is certainly absurd to sacrifice even one human life for this illegitimate state.

May all mankind by worthy of true Redemption when the "Swords Will Be Beaten Into Plowshares" and G-d's Glory will fill the world.

CENTRAL RABBINICAL CONGRESS OF THE U.S.A. & CANADA 85 Division Avenue, Brooklyn, N.Y. 11211 Telephone: (718) 384-6765-6

> CDC'S GUN RESEARCH FUNDING SHOT DOWN

From the July 14 issue of THE ORLANDO SENTINEL, [quoting:]

WASHINGTON (AP)—They discovered that guns kill more teenagers than all diseases combined, gun-related homicides—and suicides—are rising, and that firearms send almost 40,000 Americans to their graves each year. Now, doctors at the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention—who track all sorts of causes of death and disease—may be forced to stop reporting on the toll that guns take on the nation. Last week, the House stripped \$2.6 million from the CDC, saying its firearms tracking was being misused to subtly push gun control [subtly!?] The vote was victory for the National Rifle Association, which for three years argued that the CDC's research was biased. "If all you ever do is count the times criminals misuse firearms or the times people accidentally shoot themselves...all you're doing is building up a negative," said NRA spokesman Chip Walker. The

CDC denies ever lobbying for gun control and is fighting to save its program in the Senate. It calls the firearms research vital if the nation is to develop livesaving programs, from suicide prevention to keeping teens from bringing guns to school [a bit far afield of "disease control and prevention"].

IRS WANTS ITS CUT

This "mind-boggler of the week" comes from the July 7 issue of the MODESTO BEE, [quoting:]

SANTA ANA—An Irvine woman accused of smuggling pregnant Hungarians into the United States and selling their babies for up to \$80,000 each, is now accused of failing to pay taxes on the alleged scheme. In a criminal complaint filed by federal prosecutors, Marianne Gati was charged with three fraud counts. [If this woman had been nuts enough to file taxes on her ill-gotten gain, she would have been testifying against herself, which she is not required to do according the U.S. Constitution, right?]

OCHOA OUT OF JAIL

From the July 15 issue of *THE NEW FEDERALIST*, [quoting:]

The man who founded and helped rule the world's most violent criminal organization walked out of a Colombian prison July 5, a mere five years after surrendering to authorities under a plea-bargain arrangement that allowed him to serve his time, with his two criminal brothers, in a hometown jail where his mother's cooking was delivered daily. His brothers are expected to be released within the month. As Medellin Cartel boss Jorge Luis Ochoa left prison and sped off in an armored vehicle, Colombian Justice Minister Carlos Medellin unabashedly informed the media that Ochoa is "probably one of the wealthiest people in the country." During his brief five years of prison time, Ochoa's billions were never touched! It now remains to be seen whether he will make good on his pledge to finance a campaign to legalize drugs, as his first act out of jail.

Your news clippings are appreciated! Be sure to indicate the date and media source and send them to: *CONTACT*, P.O. Box 986, Tehachapi, CA 93581.

* * *

AN UPDATE TO: THE SORDID STORY OF SANTA BARBARA SAVINGS & LOAN by Ray Bilger 7/26/96

GEORGE BUSH AT MILKEN'S ESTATE

The following information was received too late for inclusion in "The Sordid Story Of Santa Barbara Savings & Loan", Part II, printed in the Vol. 13 #11, 7/23/96 issue of CONTACT, pgs. 3-4.

Very reliable sources have confirmed that former President George Bush recently attended Michael Milken's (of Drexel Burnham fame) 50th birthday celebration, over the July 4th weekend, at Milken's

(not in his name, of course) posh Lake Tahoe estate. Also in attendance were former President Gerald Ford, Colin Powell, and Norman Schwarzkopf and others whose names are familiar to most Americans. Most of the people present were Drexel clients. This is a very direct connection between George Bush and Drexel, who sold junk bonds to Santa Barbara Savings & Loan Association.

THE COUNCIL ON FOREIGN RELATIONS AND AMERICA'S NEAR FUTURE

by Ray Bilger 7/27/96

As *CONTACT* readers may recall, the Council on Foreign Relations (C.F.R.) was established in 1921, shortly after the conclusion of World War I, ostensibly to coordinate and inform the Government of the United States of America on international issues and situations that the government needed to be apprised of. Regular readers will probably be aware of the fact that the C.F.R. was actually set up in conjunction with the international banksters, to pave the way toward the establishment of a One World Government. That objective was essentially achieved in 1945 with the founding of the United Nations. At the founding conference of the U.N. in San Francisco, 47 members of the C.F.R. sat on the U.S.A. delegation.

The C.F.R., Inc. has never taken a back seat to anything in America and remains today the most powerful "independent" organization influencing United States foreign policy. The C.F.R. is the parent organization of the Trilateral Commission (T.C.), founded in 1973, with many members maintaining dual membership (and remember, their members include the top echelon of all the major media: newspapers, television, etc., bankers, government officials, etc., etc., etc.). These two organizations issue various reports on matters affecting the U.S. of A. and the international community (read international corporations and banksters). In addition, the C.F.R. publishes a bimonthly magazine called *Foreign Affairs*. If one reads these various publications, one can see future trends outlined in detail, and one can thus become informed about what is planned for our future. (Subscriptions to *Foreign Affairs* are \$44.00 in the U.S., and are available through Foreign Affairs, P.O. Box 420235, Palm Coast, Florida 32142, or by phoning 800-829-5539.) In order for us to be able to do anything to correct our plight, we must be fully informed regarding all plans of those who would control us for devious purposes.

The May/June 1996 issue of *Foreign Affairs* has a lead article by Ethan Kapstein, entitled "Workers and the World Economy". Mr. Kapstein is Director of Studies at the Council on Foreign Relations and has recently written a book entitled *Governing the Global Economy: International Finance and the State*. In his article, Mr. Kapstein states, from his point of view, how the global economy is leaving many disaffected workers in its wake. As in all other information from the C.F.R., Mr. Kapstein wants us to believe that this is a global problem, and that national responses are likely to fail. He tells us that States (Nations) must respond in "a coordinated international effort". Never should we consider a national thought independent from those proposed by our world controllers. Any nation that should seriously entertain such a thought would be quickly chastised for doing so.

Those who subscribe to the C.F.R. and T.C. mentality do not so much represent a conspiracy as they do a consensus. Their individual intentions may not necessarily be realized by them to be evil when they plan to have the corporations and banks control the masses. It is just that the thought of having a just and equitable system beneficial to the workers is absolutely alien to them, so ingrained is the corporate/bankster way of thinking.

Mr. Kapstein's article is woven through and through with the common thread of globalist propaganda. He would have us believe we are heading toward "a global social crisis". If this is so, and we may have reason to believe it is, is it not because this is part of the intentionally designed controlled chaos that the Elite have long planned for us?

Mr. Kapstein makes the very disturbing statement that, "The world may be moving inexorably toward one of those tragic moments that will lead future historians to ask, why was nothing done in time?" We may suspect that if this is so, then perhaps things will be intentionally collapsed. People in chaos and confusion are easily controlled, and, if hungry enough, will do most anything demanded for a mere crust of bread. Again, if such a collapse is imminent, this *Foreign Affairs* article may be the only warning the Elite give us.

Mr. Kapstein concludes his lengthy article by arguing that we need less restrictive economic policies. This author translates Mr. Kapstein's statement as an argument for less restrictions on the policies and practices of multinational businesses. If this leads to more international trade agreements like G.A.T.T. and N.A.F.T.A., then we can expect the workers of the world to suffer even further as multinational corporations seek even cheaper labor markets, eventually leading to a world where only the poor are employed, and only the rich can purchase the products of their labor. In such a scenario we all become slaves to injustice, greed and exploitation.

In the July/August 1996 issue of *Foreign Affairs*, Lawrence S. Eagleburger has co-authored an article with Robert L. Barry, entitled "Dollars and Sense Diplomacy—A Better Foreign Policy for Less Money". Lawrence Eagleburger (a protegé of Henry the K.) served as Secretary of State in the Bush Administration. The article seems to argue that our Department of State, as it is currently structured, is outmoded, and that "(i)t needs an ambitious overhaul".

If one understands that the objective of these Elitists is always toward a One World Government under the United Nations, then Mr. Eagleburger's solution will make more sense. And what does Mr. Eagleburger propose? The solution proposed is the merger of the State Department with the U.S. Information Agency, the Agency for International Development, and the Arms Control and Disarmament Agency. In one broad and sweeping move, this proposal would appear to put us right in the lap of the U.N. and disarm us at the same time, leaving us sheep defenseless and totally controlled.

Although reading *Foreign Affairs* is disturbing to the intelligent reader concerned about the sad state of the world, it is informative about corrupt policies practiced on the unsuspecting masses. Guess what Mr. Eagleburger would call this new and improved State Department? Give up? Would you believe the Department of Foreign Affairs? Where do you suppose they got that name? Sounds a lot like the C.F.R. publication. Anyone getting sick of this yet? Well, until we get upset to the point of stopping this madness and insanity, we can only expect the Elite plans to continue and to get worse.

Those who feel or believe that world events and situations just seem to happen in no specific or particular pattern have not read the publications discussed herein, including *CONTACT*, and/or are not aware of the long history of those organizations and entities who have controlled events for centuries (Remember, it was Baron Edmund de Rothschild, born in 1744, who once said, "Give me

control of a nation's currency and I care not who makes its laws".).

A Report to the Trilateral Commission #32, entitled "Conditions for Partnership in International Economic Management", published in 1986 by the Trilateral Commission, on page 1 of the introduction speaks in part about "...the ability of governments, acting together, to influence events". How much more clearly do you need to have it spelled out for you? Also on page 1 of the introduction it talks about "Skillful crisis management". Does anyone still remember the old formula for crisis management? Here it is: crisis creation plus crisis solution equals crisis control.

On page 47 of the same Report to the Trilateral Commission, the report discusses troubles with participating debtor countries, including Mexico, and notes that "a special emergency package will have to be constructed for Mexico". We should not have been surprised then, in 1995, when a \$20 billion bailout for Mexico was announced, as we were already forewarned about such an occurrence.

The Trilateral Report warns us again on page 38: "One day a crisis might overwhelm us." The only thing the report does not tell us is whether this will be unintentional or planned and carefully orchestrated. Which do you think it will be?

The wise student of world affairs will pay very close attention at this time to rapidly unfolding events. Chaos and confusion will bring the people under absolute submission, as those who control events from behind the scenes manipulate those events and the news reports that mold the opinions we hold concerning those events. (Who would ever believe our secret government could possibly be involved in terrorist events against unarmed civilian populations?) As this article is being written, there is a report of a bomb exploding at the Olympic Games in Atlanta.

In the January/February 1996 issue of *Foreign Affairs*, an article by Laurie Garrett on "Encroaching Plagues" talks about Ebola virus, Marburg Fever, Lassa Fever, Dengue, AIDS, etc. The article fails to mention, obviously, that the above killer diseases are all man-made. The article concludes with the suggestion that throwing more money at the problem should provide the necessary solutions to stop these diseases. The article points out that Dustin Hoffman made more money in the movie *Outbreak* than the combined annual budgets of the U.S. National Center for Infectious Diseases and the U.N. Programme on AIDS/HIV.

Informed readers will be aware of the fact that money will not create a solution, that spreading disease is the real objective, and that the Centers for Disease Control in Atlanta, located at 33° North Latitude (on the 33rd Parallel), is in a perfect position on center stage to help infect the entire world through the Olympic Games.

What is possibly most disturbing and most troubling for people to accept is the fact of our own government's complicit involvement in such dastardly and evil plans against our own citizens. Yet, is this really very different than, for example, World War II, where our own soldiers were sent off to fight and die in a war wherein the major oil companies, many headquartered on U.S. soil, supplied fuel to both sides in the conflict, and where the international bankers funded both sides? What we are witnessing today is simply on a much larger scale, with greater technology available and more

insidious techniques employed, this time against totally unsuspecting civilian populations.

And what we must realize, if we are able to read accurately between the lines, is the very fact that what is happening now has been planned for quite a long time. It is an essential part of the Elite's Global Plan 2000. They build up a civilization and then tear it down, all the while making money hand over fist. This time, however, they intend to destroy civilization.

The words of Ethan Kapstein may very well be hauntingly true, and bear repeating. Please hear his words well: "The world may well be moving inexorably toward one of those tragic moments that will lead historians to ask, why was nothing done in time?" Why indeed? The answer should be painfully obvious. It will be so because we slept on while Rome burned.

Will we wake up in time to put out the fire? Fear controls the masses: the fear to act to save ourselves. Will we overcome that fear? Time will tell, but time grows very short.

National Vietnam P.O.W. Strike Force:
Atlanta Bombing/TWA 800 Update
2615 WAUGH DRIVE, SUITE 217
HOUSTON, TEXAS 77006-2799
(713) 680-3181 VOICE * (713) 680-3185 FAX
"Providing Quality Intelligence to Patriot
Underground Consumers"

ATLANTA BOMBING/TWA 800 UPDATE

(fax received 7/28/96)

- (1) U.S. Government "Big Lie" apparatus is in full overdrive in Atlanta. Those of us who were up most of the night watching live coverage on ABC-TV saw 4 fatalities/200 wounded body count with triage areas set up (for those expected to die). Also heard eyewitness live accounts of 3 bodies being blown across a street and over a fence. A policeman also said they had cleared a 50-foot perimeter away from the bomb. Now they are saying it was a "Pipe Bomb"??? Maybe a 6 feet diameter sewer pipe 20 feet long. (Comparable U.S. Government lie: TWA was a malfunction.)
- (2) U.S. Government sieves (sic) being sent to bars in the DC area frequented by off-duty DIA/FEMA/Mil/FBI/SS etc., saying TWA was two bombs, radio sequenced.
- (3) My sources say Atlanta was a U.S. Government job all the way just like Oklahoma City and the Rodney King riots to test the American people's level of acceptance of total martial law and gun confiscation. Next move likely will be Ebola or Hantavirus on the 80,000 stadium.
- (4) Another source says TWA was a haphazard laser weapons test that went down bad. Previous maverick experiments fried the electronics on PASSENGER JETS which were blamed on people using cellular phones and laptops in-flight (total BS, like ozone, etc.). Other mishaps include houses in spontaneous combustion and home microwave ovens exploding. Two generals secretly fired (allegedly) over the (?) accidental U.S. Government shootdown of TWA 800.
- (5) Leon Panetta and George Stephanopoulous having more and more hissyfits and catfights (the bitches!). When Panetta leaves the Whitehouse, the Rockefeller/Rothschild support is cancelled.
- (6) Rumors still flying about Kissinger being on TWA 800. I supplied Geoff Metcalf, Radio KFFO San Francisco, with Kissinger's daytime unlisted number (available on request). He called and said, "You are live on the air, if H.K. is alive, put him on the phone". There was much laughter and assurances he was in the next room but no H.K. spoke.
- (7) There were 100 eyewitnesses who saw the missile hit TWA 800, two of them were USAF fighter pilots who were flying home in another jet close by and certainly know what a SAM launch would look like. It was also videotaped, but like the Zapryder film, it has been confiscated by the FBI and unlikely will ever again see daylight.
- (8) A very knowledgeable source believes that TWA 800 was brought down by Tesla Weapons

based in Russia and likely under the command of the losing faction in the recent election's General Lebed (who bears an uncanny resemblance to USAF General Secord). If all four engines on TWA 800 come up intact, it could not have been a stinger as it would home in on the hottest of the four engines. Of course, with the U.S. Government in control, who will know? Tesla weapons brought down the *Challenger*. You will recall that seven Russian trawlers fled to sea at flank speed three hours before launch. Then three Atlas rockets in a row blew up at Vandenburg (unprecedented). Barbara Honegger (October Surprise) overheard Richard Brenneke (CIA faction 3) say, "We finally defeated the Nazis." (In 1945 Klaus Barbie, W. Von Braun and Reinhard Von Gehlen were already U.S. agents. The Japanese horror doctors of Unit 731 soon joined them.)

(9) Remember live reports of yachtsmen finding bags of HIV-positive human blood in TWA wreckage. It is now confirmed that French Dr. Rudolf Merrieux was on board and had recently returned from Africa on Ebola research. He works for Rhone-Poulenc which does secret germ warfare research. He was an associate of U.S. Dr. Gajdusek who is NIH with an office at Ft. Detrick (Biowarfare Center) and recently received a U.S. Patent for a human DNA genome of a primitive tribe in New Guinea that is resistant to Hanta, Kuru (Mad Cow disease), Ebola, and AIDS. SAIC/HGDP/DOE are all involved. The USAIR flight 3 years ago was cleaned up by soldiers wearing Biohazard Level 5 space suits. To this day you cannot go near the impact site. A SAM missile launch rack was recovered in Carrol County 1 week later. The Japanese AUM cult (Sarin) included doctors from Russia who do volunteer work in Zaire on Ebola and there have been two mysterious plane crashes there. The seven Navy pilots who flew Clinton to the carrier *Roosevelt* in 1993 for secret meetings overheard secrets and are now dead. Four in a helicopter crash look like weenies left too long in a microwave. Blossom Point (?) accident.

/s/ Joe L. Jordan

insignias